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# HeroFinCorp.

our
Tribute

INn our race to
excellence, there is
no finish line

DR. BRIJMOHAN LALL
MUNJAL,

Founder & Chairman Emeritus, Hero Group

July 01,1923 - Hero Forever
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Strong : Touch Points:

Credit Rating of 4'1 0 o +

AUM:

INR 32, 953

AL at entarprise tevel, it includes Hero FinCorp ond Hero Housing Finance

#includes both onrofl and off roll employees

HIGHLIGHT:
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DEAR
SHAREHOLDERS,

| hope you and your loved ones are keeping
well and staying safe.

The first two quarters of the fiscal were truly
challenging as the subsequent waves of
Covid-19 impacted everyone as it took a toll
on both - lives and livelihoods.

At a time when the health and well-being of
our people and their families were our
top-most priority, we took a conscious call
to stay true to our motto: - ‘Do it! Move it!
Make it Happen!”

Even as disbursals and collections were
negatively impacted, we all came together
to collaborate and took every possible step
to ease the pain of the pandemic for our
Hero Family. A dedicated Covid-Care Task
Force was set up, which helped provide the
necessary support to our entire ecosystem.
Together, we stood by and supported each
other in every possible way.

During this time of crisis, we stayed true to our
core purpose to serve our customers in the
best possible way. Our experience from the
first wave in FY 2021 allowed us to be better
prepared and equipped for the digital way of
working, which helped maintain business
continuity and our customer interface.

During this time, the Reserve Bank of India
announced a slew of measures to tackle the
second wave including the flow of credit to
the desired sectors, and maintain adequate
levels of liquidity in the system. To maintain
resilience, regulators recommended that
the financial entities undertake stress tests
pericdically, and take risk mitigation

measures accordingly. Our Company

# HeroFinCorp.

adhered to all the regulatory guidelines and
ensured continuous improvements in its
Risk Management Frameworks.

Life has gradually started reverting to
normalcy. And our company’s performance
has also begun to reflect the improvement
in our systems & processes and the com-
mitment of our employees. Our standalone
Disbursals increased from INR 13,822 Crore in
FY 2021 to INR 18,543 Crore in FY 2022 (35%
YoY increase), Consolidated Asset Book
increased from INR 27,490 Crore in FY 2021 to
INR 32,953 Crore in FY 2022 (20% YoY
increase), our Customer base grew from 6
million in FY 2021 to 7.5 million in FY 2022 (25%
YoY increase) and our employee base (both
on-rolls and off-rolls) also saw a growth
from 7,800+ in FY 2021 to 10,400+ in FY 2022
(33% YoY increase).

These are all positive numbers, even more
so in light of the performance during a chal-
lenging year. Aside from the commercial
performance, our company was recognized
as Great Place to Work (Category: Overall
& BFSI) for the 5 th consecutive year - this
certification is a victory for all of us.

Going forward, even amidst the global
geo-political uncertainty, India is tipped to
be amongst the fastest-growing economies
with a growth projection of 6.4% in FY 2023
as per the United Nations. | am a firm
believer of India’s Growth Story, and its
inherent resilience and strength. Several
actions and initiatives continue to be taken
by the Government of India and the Reserve
Bank of India to further support a strong
recovery - the increasing credit demand is
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an indicator of positive times to come.

Our Company's outlook for FY 2023 is both
positive and ambitious, especially in terms
of Asset Book and Profitability growth. We
remain committed to achieving new mile-
stones and we aim for each quarter of the
next fiscal year to be the best one yet!

As an organization, we have demonstrated
the ability to adapt to any circumstance,
and developed new capabilities in line with
the need of the hour. We are also adopting
an Agile Operating Model, so that we can be
even more nimble and responsive in our
VUCA (Volatile, Uncertain, Complex, Ambig-
uous) world, | am hopeful that these initia-
tives will help Hero FinCorp become one of
the largest and most customer focused
Financial Institutions in India.

# HeroFinCorp.

I would like to offer my heartfelt grati-
tude to all our Shareholders, Custom-
ers, Investors, Regulatory Bodies,
Employees, and all stakeholders for
their constant support and faith in us.
Your trust and belief have kept us
going and fervently pursue our
purpose, of Empowering Every
Indian’s Dream of Upward Mobility.

| extend my best wishes to each one of
you and your families for a safe and
healthy future.

Warmest Regards,
Dr. Pawan Munjal
Chairman, Hero FinCorp



- MICHELANGELO
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. JL.MD&CEOQ'S
Message

DEAR
SHAREHOLDERS,

| hope you and your loved ones are
thriving!

FY-22 has been a year unlike any other.
This is partially because of the stark dif-
ference in the two halves of the year.
Covid is still a very real part of our lives,
and this was truest during the beginning
of FY-22. The second wave of the
pandemic was not only contagious, but
deadly as well. It created an unprece-
dented health crisis that none of us were
prepared for. The majority of the country
was under strict lockdowns and many of
us lost loved ones.

At Hero FinCorp, we made every effort to
ensure the safety and well-being of our
Hero Parivaar. We set-up a Covid Care
Task Force to facilitate logistical support
to all our employees and their families.
We provided financial support, vaccines,
medicines, and enhanced insurance
coverage, to all our on-roll & off-roll
employees and collection agents.
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While we performed exceptionally well in the
last quarter of the last fiscal year, the
adverse effects of the second wave resulted
in a reduction in new business and lower
collections efficiency, both of which almost
coming to a stand-still. However, each and
every employee at Hero FinCorp showed
resilience and commitment while braving
this storm, and served our customers to the
best of their abilities.

The second half of the year was a stark
contrast to the first. Things started looking
up from the end of quarter 2, and relief
came in the form of vaccinations and lower
restrictions. This was the breath of fresh air
we all needed in order to boost our morale
and ease our anxieties about the future.
While there was a third wave of Covid, it was
much milder yet more contagious than the
previous ones.

As life slowly returned to normalcy, airports
and streets began to draw crowds and the
term ‘revenge tourism’ became popularly
known. Riding the wave of relief and excite-
ment, our festive season went splendidly,
and credit demand picked up in H2 FY22.

Gradual improvements in economic activity
allowed our company to show a tremen-
dous growth of 34% YoY in Disbursements,
we went from INR 13,822 Cr. in FY-21 to INR
18,453 Cr. to FY-22 (standalone figures). Our
Consolidated Asset Book grew by 20% Yoy,
from INR 27,490 Cr.in FY-21to INR 32,953 Cr in
FY-22.

Our core values lie in supporting our cus-
tomers every step of the way. Right from
their first bike to their first home, we assist
and serve them at every point of the journey.
Even in these trying times, our employees
spiritedly served our customers.

This effort did not go in vain, as our
customer base increased to 7.5 million and

# HeroFinCorp.

we maintained nationwide wide presence
at over 4,100 touch points, spread across
over 2,000 locations in India. It is safe to say,
we are firmly on the path to becoming
‘Bharat ka Digital Lender".

We continued working on building a
superior work culture by rewarding merit
and prioritizing employee engagement. Our
efforts were recognized by our 5th consecu-
tive certification of being a Great Place to
Work (Overall & BFSI) - and we aim to
continue this winning streak for years to
come.

Through the year we continued to maintain
a laser sharp focus on strengthening our
Collections Infrastructure and Risk Manage-
ment Capabilities. In the second half, we
focused on making Retail Collections more
Digitally inclined.

This helped fast-track our post-COVID
recovery. This was not an easy feat, it took
diligent work and a plethora of initiatives.
We digitized our collections process, moved
to analytics driven allocation of accounts,
and strengthened our team by introducing
a dedicated Unsecured Collections &
Recoveries vertical. Strategic Partnerships
supported us in increasing our Digital Capa-
bilities. These initiatives led to an increase in
Collections Efficiency, increase in Digital
Payments, and much more.

On the Risk Management front, we prioritized
Process Improvements, Fraud Prevention,
set up an Audit Intelligence Unit, Early
Warning System, and Operational Risk Man-
agement Unit. We strengthened our Under-
writing Scorecards and continued to
enhance Invisible Monitoring.

This helped us in lowering incremental
GNPAs and improve overall Asset Quality. It
is such a special feeling to look back at all
the hard work that has been put in, and see
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the tangible fruits of our labour - growth and
success. In quarter 4, our Collections Effi-
ciency was better than what it was pre
Covid, and we delivered our highest ever
Resolution Rates.

We didn't stop there. We further strength-
ened our Digital, Analytics, and Technology
Capabilities, while maintaining high stan-
dards of Data Security and Privacy. To
ensure that we are able to serve the
evolving needs of our customers. We part-
nered with new age players to offer more
options to our customers. We also set up an
Agile Transformation Office with the motto:
Committed To Perform While We Transform.
Customer Service Capabilities were also
strengthened both Online (through the app)
and Offline with an aim to deliver a superior
and seamless Customer Experience.

As we move towards the 10th anniversary of
our first Two Wheeler Loan, we hope to keep
doing what we do best — serve our fellow
citizens, and while doing so, build a stronger
and more inclusive India.

# HeroFinCorp.

Everything we do, and everything we are, is @
direct result of our ambition to fulfill dreams
and enrich lives. We want to continue to
facilitate and Empower Every Indian’s
Dreams of Upward Mobility,

FY-23 has started off positive and we are
very excited about the next 12 months. I'm
confident our company will continue to
scale to even greater heights in the coming
year.

Before signing off, | would like to offer my
heartfelt thanks to all our Stakeholders, Cus-
tomers, Regulatory Bodies, Investors, and
Employees for their continued support and
belief us.

With best wishes,

ABHIMANYU MUNJAL,
Jt. MD & CEO, HERO FINCORP



-kk
- One Small
. Step for Man.

- AGiant Leap
. for Mankind.

- MEIL ARMSTRONG
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OUR KEY

# HeroFinCorp.

PRINCIPLES

Ission

M

Ision

\'4

Empowering every Indian’s
Dream of Upward Mobility!

0

Our culture manifests
through 5 Core Values -
"TITHI'

Teamwork | Integrity |
Trust & Respect | Humility |
Innovation & Speed

Purpose

We strive to be the
best, most transparent,
next-gen, ultra lean,
credit champion.

Q

Values

To be a Financier of choice and
become a one-stop Financial
Services Company, by offering
world class products through
Innovation & Teamwork.
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

DR. PAWAN MUNJAL

Dr. Pawan Munjal is the Chairman &
Director of Hero FinCaorp Ltd, he also
serves on the Boords of wvarious
Hero Group Companies, Govern-
mental & Educational Institutions.,

MR. ABHIMANYU MUNJAL

Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal has over

15 years of experience in Strategic
Leadership and People Manage-
ment. He has successfully spear-
headed International Jvs, M&AS &
complex transformations.

MRS. RENU MUNJAL

Mrs. Renu Munjal is the Managing
Director of Hero FinCorp Ltd, she is
also actively involved in various
philanthropic activities across the
Hero Group.

[

\}t

Mr. Vivek Choond Sehgal is the
Chairman of the Motherson Group.
A visionary leader, he spearheads
Motherson Group which is one of
the world's largest manufacturers
of components for Automotive and
transport industries with presence
in 41 countries.

MR. VIVEK CHAAND SEHGAL

# HeroFinCorp.

MR. PRADEEP DINODIA

Mr. Pradeep Dinedia is a member of
The ICAl and a senior partner in the
Delhi-based Chartered Accoun-
tancy firm M/s. SR. Dinodia & Co.
LLP,

MR. SANJAY KUKREJA

Mr. Sanjay Kukrejais the MD of Chiry-
sCaopital, and lecds the Business
Services, Financial Services and
Manufacturing sectors for the firm.
He holds an MBA from IIM Bangalore
and a BA in Economics from SRCC,
University of Delhi,
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Hero FinCorp
CSR Report 2021-22

66
%

DR. BRIJMOHAN LALL MUNJAL

FOUNDER AND CHAIRMAN EMERITUS, HERO GROUP
JULY 01, 1923... FOREVER
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Message from

Jt. MD & CEO

- Abhimanyu Munjal

orporate Social Responsibility is an
Cintegrol part of Hero Group’s business
philosophy and we have always remained
committed to it. We aim to build and sustain
a culture of care through our initiatives,
and believe that businesses can be an
enabling force for social advancement.
At Hero FinCorp, we aim to create
sustainable value for the community at
large and build the nation of our dreams.
We focus on being a responsible lender
by fostering the holistic development
of our community and operating
environment. All our CSR interventions
have been designed to serve the
masses. Given our approach and
objectives, our CSR initiatives have
been developed around four broad areas:
Financial Literacy and Skilling, Sustainability
& Environment, Aiding Rural Economy & its
Stakeholders, Support and Empowerment for
Women & Children.

Connecting communities for
transformative change.

| INSPIRE

Inspiring actions to create social impact.

o)

%+| MOBILIZE

Mobilising & providing resources to
support change makers.
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# HeroFinCorp.

Message from

CSR Chairperson’s

iving back to society is one of the key tenets of The Hero
Group. As chairperson of Hero FinCorp’s CSR Committee,

| am proud of our efforts in the areas of Financial Literacy,
Education, and Capacity Building.

Our flagship programs are designed to help individuals

with the calibre to make the nation proud and have already
given wings to many dreams.

& | OUR PHILOSOPHY

We atHero FinCorp believe thatacompany’s performance
must be measured by its contribution to building
economic, social and environmental capital.

In the strategic context of business, we believe that
enterprises possess, beyond mere financial resources,
the transformational capacity to create game-changing
development models by unleashing their power of
entrepreneurial vitality, innovation and creativity.

We aim to reach out to every corner of our country with
the hope and promise of a better tomorrow.

In line with our beliefs, we, as a company, will continue
to support unique models to generate livelihoods and
create a better society.

OUR CSR PROGRAMS INCLUDE

Through our flagship programs, we aim to help those who come from humble backgrounds
but possess the ability to take this nation forward:

Raman Kant Munjal Scholarships

Aimed at supporting meritorious students for their higher education. These students
are selected through a rigorous selection process lasting over a year.

Pathakshala

Teacher’s Training Program

Employee Volunteering

Support provided to RMVM
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202122

CSR INITIATIVES

Q&Mmatan Raman Kant Munjal

munjal  gcholarships 2021-22

SCHOLARSHIPS

his program is aimed at supporting meritorious students from humble backgrounds

with their higher education. These students are selected through a rigorous 6-step
selection process over the course of a few months. The steps involve filtering students
based on marks, their family’s annual income, necessary due diligence, essay writing,
aptitude assessment, and an initial telephonic interview. The final round is conducted by
HFCL leaders to ensure the right students are awarded the scholarships.

IMPACT CREATED

1. The Raman Kant Munjal Scholarship has supported over 54 meritorious and deserving
students this year, out of which 60% are girls.

2. Community Impact: The finance sector will become more robust with students being
properly nurtured with better education.

3. Impacton Scholars: The applicants from humble backgrounds get the chance to go
through a rigorous selection process at a young age, which will aid them in the future.
This way, the scholars have proof of their abilities demonstrating that they have been
chosen from a pool of many, for a prestigious scholarship.

COURSES ACCEPTED

The courses accepted for this scholarship are only in Finance and Management :

BBA | BBM | BMS | BBE | BA Economics (H) | IPM | BFIA | B.Com (H) | B.Com (E)

Bansthali  Vidyapith,  Jaipur

| Christ University & JNC, tucrow
Bengaluru | 1IM, Indore | IIM,

Bodhgaya | St. Xaviers College, e

Kolkata | Loyola College, Chennai | ?g’) ’fff’W%’:j:j:f’f;:f::f::::::::: e
| Delhi University & DSEU, Delhi indore {fr ;{“?if ). s g

| BML, Haryana | SSSC College of :'-.\Gr“ Lo = A ® Nagpur
Commerce for Women, Punjab R \ R 1

| Symbiosis, Nagpur | National PG Bengla o \% I% """""""""""""" SRS

College, Lucknow
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Case

# HeroFinCorp.

Studies | Scholars

In class 10th Neha got 94.75% and in class 12th 89.75%. She got selected in Shyama
Prasad Mukherjee College for B.com.

BEFORE
SCHOLARSHIP

1

Neha had accepted her admission

at Shyama Prasad Mukherjee
College. Her father has a small
shop in Delhi. She comes from a
lower middle-class background.

Despite being a scholar in school,
she always doubted being oby

pursue higher education.

AFTER 2
SCHOLARSHIP

Despite taking out a loan, Neha's
father was unable to afford her
education. However, the Raman
Kant Munjal Scholarship helped
Neha continue her studies without

any financial  burdens.  This
scholarship enabled her to choose
the career path of her choice.

Kushi Kaur Mago has completed her schooling from St. Vincent's High and Technical
School, Asansol. She scored 94% in class 12th and in class 10th she scored 94%. Her
father is working as a daily wage worker where he gets 300 rupees per day.

.

BEFORE W
SCHOLARSHIP

Khushi had accepted admission
at St Xavier's College. Her father,
being a daily wage worker, couldn't
afford a quality education for her.
She became the first girl child in her
family to pursue higher education.

:
AFTER 9,

SCHOLARSHIP

The selection process helped Khushi
focus on her career. The scholarship
holds special value for Khushi since
it is her highest achievement. The
Raman Kant Munjal Scholarship has

allowed her to join the college and
course of her choice.
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Scholars of

# HeroFinCorp.

202] - 22

— ] raman
f»{a,»:—h- kant
L — | munjal
SCHOLARSHIPS
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Teacher Training Program

Pathakshala

hri Raman Kant Munjal believed, “Education is the foundation of progress”, and so Hero
FinCorp’s various initiatives engage and train teachers to positively impact students
and create opportunities to pave a bright future for them.

Pathakshala

A Teachers Training Program, for capability building of the teachers of govt. schools |
rural schools / RKMF Teachers deployed in various educational initiatives. The objective
of the program is to enhance the quality of teachers who teach underprivileged children.
This helps the teachers grow professionally and learn strategies and techniques to
better aid the growth of their students.

Teachers are trained in skills such as Teaching for Success, Classroom Management,
Problem Solving, Appreciative Enquiry, Critical Thinking, Language Skills, etc.

The program covers the following

English language proficiency | Classroom Management | Professional Development

Impact Created

No. of Teacher’s Trained Schools Impacted

- RN N R-F-0-F-

-
L
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o
a
]
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o
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didoodaRODTadE0
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Teachers

Feedback

This program has improved my confidence and brought a much-needed
change in my attitude.
Monisha S., Shri Padmashree school, Banaglore

| attended English speaking training class every Monday. All classes were very

helpful and important. We learnt different types of teaching methods that we

can use in the class. These activities are important for students and help with
expanding their knowledge. Thank you.

Punam Dhall, Asha center, Daultabad

I have learned new things during the teacher’s training. This has also
impacted the performance and participation of students in my class. They
have started studying through activities. | have also improved my teaching

methodology. Additionally, the group trainings helped me improve my
communication skills. I have also improved my English to a great extent and
am working to better it further.

Antimbala Rajput, Asha Centre - Devgarh 2, Pratapghar

It was a pleasure attending such an insightful workshop. The interaction becomes

meaningful when it incorporates, not only the quantity but also the quality of

knowledge and content. The whole course revolved around the enhancement
of skills and learning. The teaching process was dynamic enough to help one
understand the value needed to teach, as a professional. Learning becomes

smooth when the process of teaching is an interesting one. |, from the bottom of

my heart, am thankful and will always be indebted to everything that | have learned

from this course. | am positive that this learning will surely help me in the times to come. The hard

work and the effort put in by the whole PATHAKSHALA team was marvellous.
Congratulations to the whole team for the successful imparting of knowledge.

Tanya Gupta, IMT Academy Senior Branch
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UMANG - Employee Volunteering Activities

2021 -22

hroughout the year, in addition to our organisational CSR projects, our heroes come
together through various employee volunteering activities to contribute to community
building and wellness of society.

CONNECTED WORKPLACE FUNKARI

The Hero FinCorp CSR team undertook a donation drive where reusable cloth face
masks were distributed to the underprivileged.

Hero FinCorp, through its Connected Workplace Funkari program, also engaged its
employees to contribute towards this charitable cause by painting the masks. The
masks were made by the women from the Hamari Asha Project. Most importantly, it
also helped them earn a livelihood for themselves.

People Impacted

. Connected Workplace
Funkar

Vruwre o ddw peifer mhaie:
[ty Ll R

BEMY SANTA

Be My Santa, once again, brought joy to numerous children from humble backgrounds.
over 150 heroes donated gifts for the children and became Santas to 600 delighted
children.
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No. of wishes granted No. of Employee Volunteers

600 154

"BE MY SANTA®

International Women’s Day

A Gift of Health to Sheroes (Asha Workers)

Our heroes came together to give women from low income backgrounds the gift of
health by donating hygiene kits.

Hygiene Kits Donated Heroes Who Donated

125+ 50+
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THIS INTERNATIONAL WOMEN'S DAY,
LET US JOIN HANDS TO GIVE THE GIFT OF HEALTH
THROUGH HYGIENE KITS TO SHEROES
€ Each kit will cost Rs 450/-
S You may donate any number of its

S Kits will be distributed omongst Asho Workees and ather
~women in rural

:ﬁ'ﬁw;ﬁwﬂvﬂl be deducted from your April Salary
p > 4

— raran

k. J want
L S
: i e

OTHER ACTIVITIES
Donation for BPL Students Studying in Raman Munjal Vidya Mandir

Hero FinCorp donated Rs. 4.5 lacs to the Raman Kant Munjal Foundation to support the
education of economically weaker and deprived children.

Vaccination Support Van for Rural Areas

Hero FinCorp donated a VANO Van to the Raman Kant Munjal Foundation to be
converted into a vaccination support van. This vehicle helps government staff carry out
vaccinations in remote and rural areas.




Yesterday
| was clever,
so | wanted
. to change
' the world.
Todaylam|
wise, solam
changing
myself.

- RUMI



1991-2012 2017-18

Incorporated as Hero Incorporated Hero Housing

Honda Finlease Ltd. Finance Ltd.

Financed captive needs Launched Used Car Business

of the Hero Ecosystem A

Obtained ISO certification for
Operations and related
Customer Support

Company renamed as
Hero FinCorp Ltd.

Assets Under Management
reaches 213,540 Cr.

20‘ 3 = l 4 Crossed 2.5 Mn. happy

customers

Business plan created ————
for the new entity

Karo Khwabon Sé Ishq 'lEuu
across TV, Radio & Digital Ptuﬂﬂm

Assets Under Management
reaches 6,407 Cr.



2019

Established presence
at over 3,000 touch
points spread across
1,700+ locations
Assets Under
Management reaches
219,736 Cr.

Crossed 3.5 Mn happy
customers :

Assets Under Mnnqaamm! )

Among Top 3 NBFCs —
Pre-Owned Car Lnans

Fund mismg agreement Esf

1, 0?5 Cr. from PE Investors:
& Promoters
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NUMBERS AT A

GLANCE

Disbursements (INR Cr.) e

@i,-ﬂ 7526 18,543
13822
LT 12,758
9,037

6,735

4,838 ‘lll
FY16 FY17 F‘r"18 Fy1g Fy20 Fy22
=¥

Loan Assets* (INR Cr.)

- 30,231
) '” 25,121
o 23,389
e 19,736
13,540

9,912
oa07 l
F¥16 FY17 FY18 F¥Y19 FY20 F¥22

"Including Lease portfolio and trade receivable
Mote: FY18 to FY22 are as per Ind AS and FY16 & FY17 numbers are as per | GAAP.
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# HeroFinCorp.

Loan Assets Mix (%, INR Cr.)

6407 9,912

FY16 F¥17
Bl Retail Individual BB Retail Business

19,736 23,389 25121 30,23

Fyi1g Fyao FY21 FYiz2

B Corporateloans &8 Others

Mote: FY18 to FY22 are as per Ind AS and FY18 &FY17 numbers are as per | GAAP.

Borrowing Mix (%, INR Cr.)

5222 7,692

L= '.".3‘!

FY16 iz

W wcoucc/on Il CPs

16,323 20,390 21,816 26,065

it
61w BEm
47
FYi19 FY20D F¥21 FY22
TermLoan

Mote: FY18 to FY22 are as per Ind AS and FY 16 & FY17 numbers are as per | GAAP.




31st Annual Report 2021-22 # HeroFinCorp.

Gross NPA to Loan Assets (%, INR Cr.)

30,231

25121

23,389

FY16 FY17 FY18 Yo FY20 FY21 FY22

— Gross NPA to Loan Assets (%) (RHS) [l Gross NPA(LHS) [ Loan Assets (LHS)

* Gross NPA for FY 16 &FY 17 has been recasted to 90 DPD

Yield, Cost of Borrowing and Spread (%)

14.9 1 140 e 14.7 14.8 14.6
e =T 2N —
9.4
— B 1| 8.4 o5 7.8 76
5.5 5.4 6.0 5.3 . 7.0 7.0
FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

=gl = Costof Borrowing = Spread

Mate: Yield and Coat of Bamawing are calculated on Manthly Average
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Cost to Income Ratio (%)
& Opex to Average Assets (%)

66.5

62.5

FYie FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 Fy22

== _0st to Income Ratio (LHS) == Opex to Average Assets (RHS)

*Cost = Tatal Expenses (excluding Finance Cost, impairment
allowance, settlement loss and bad debits written off)

** Income = Total Income net of Finance Cost

& Average Monthly Assets

MNote: FY 18 to FY 22 are as per Ind AS and FY16 & FY17 numbers are as per | GAAP,
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors (*Board”) of Hero FinCorp Limited (“your Company” or “the Company”)
take pride in presenting their 31t (Thirty-first) Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements (both on standalone and consolidated basis) (“Financial Statements”) for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2022 (“FY 2021-22" or “period under review” or “financial year under
review”). The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI”) as a Systemically
Important Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC"”) not accepting public deposits (NBFC-ND-
SI).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Company'’s financial performance (Consolidated and Standalone) for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022 as compared to the previous financial year ended March 31, 2021 is summarized
below:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Total Income 4,490.58 4,091.64 4,797.66 4,333.52

Profit before Finance Costs, Depreciation &

S 1,280.41 1,671.23 1,457.69 1,816.59
Amortization Expenses

Less: Finance Costs 1,508.88 1,550.49 1,678.53 1,710.31
Less: Depreciation & Amortization Expense 27.66 30.67 33.19 35.21
Profit before tax (256.13) 90.07 (254.03) 71.07
Less: Tax expense

Current tax 27.03 105.98 27.03 105.98
Deferred tax (89.16) (86.53) (89.16) (86.53)
Profit after tax (194.00) 70.62 (191.90) 51.62
Other comprehensive income/(loss) net (0.96) 0.11 (1.69) (0.16)
Add: Balance of profit brought forward 548.33 529.77 471.08 471.79
Balance available for appropriation 354.21 600.50 279.22 523.25
Appropriations

Dividend (Rs.) - Proposed (12.73) (30.99) (12.73) (30.99)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 0.00 (14.12) (0.42) (14.12)
Transfer to General Reserve 0.00 (7.06) 0.00 (7.06)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 341.48 548.33 266.07 471.08
Dividend (%) (Proposed) Nil 10.00 Nil 10.00
Earnings per Share (EPS)

e Basic (15.24) 5.78 (15.07) 4.23
e Diluted (15.24) 5.77 (15.07) 4.22

The above figures are extracted from the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as notified under Sections
129 and 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and other relevant provisions of the Act and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“"SEBI Listing Regulations”).

} { Board’s Report



31t Annual Report 2021-22 # HeroFinCorp.

The Audited Financial Statements including the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
as stated above and the Financial Statements of the Subsidiary and all other documents required
to be attached thereto are available on the Company’s website at https://www.herofincorp.
com/investor-relations/financial-performance.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF
THE COMPANY

The Company is engaged in the business of finance and investments as a Non—-Banking Financial
Company without accepting public deposits for which the certificate of registration has been
obtained from the Department of Non- Banking Supervision, Reserve Bank of India. During the
year under review, receivables under financing activity including leasing portfolio has grown by
20% from Rs. 25,121 crore in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 30,231 crore in FY 2021-22.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The management discussion and analysis (MDA) report forms an integral part of this Annual
Report. The MDA report is annexed as Annexure - A. The MDA give details of the overall
industry structure, economic developments, performance and state of affairs of your Company’s
business in India, risk management systems and other material developments during the year
under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the high standards of corporate governance and is
continuously striving to implement several best corporate governance practices. The Company
has also implemented several best Corporate Governance practices as prevalent globally. The
report on corporate governance is annexed as Annexure - B and forms part of this Annual
Report.

In terms of Part C of Schedule - V SEBI Listing Regulations, a report on Corporate Governance
along with the certificate from M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm
Registration No. P2001DE052900) confirming compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance is annexed hereto and forms part of this annual report as Annexure - C.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year under review, receivables under financing activity including leasing portfolio has
grown by 20% from Rs. 25,121 crore in FY 2020-21 to Rs.30,231 crore in FY 2021-22. The total
income has shown growth of 10% from Rs. 4,092 crore in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 4,491 crore in FY
2021-22. Profit/ (Loss) before tax decreased by 384% from Rs. 90.07 crore in FY 2020-21 to
Rs. (256.13) crore in FY 2021-22, accordingly the Profit/(loss) after tax registered a decrease of
375% from Rs. 70.62 crore in FY 2020-21 to Rs. (194.00) crore in FY 2021-22.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The “Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2)", generally known as
COVID-19, which was declared as a pandemic by the WHO on March 11, 2020, continues to
spread across India and there is an unprecedented level of disruption on socioeconomic front
across the country.

As we enter FY22-23, we are on a strong footing. The third wave of COVID-19 has not had any
significant impact on our business. We are seeing a healthy pick-up in the overall economic
activity across the country, which is translating into an improved consumption trend. Considering
the higher vaccination drives and supportive fundamentals, we expect the demand momentum
to keep strengthening in the coming months.

On the whole, we continue to undertake several initiatives to sustain and enhance the pace of
our growth and to further strengthen our market position.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommended payment of any final dividend on the equity shares for the FY
2021-22.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL AND STATUTORY RESERVE

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, no amount has been transferred to General and
Statutory Reserve.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the period under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company has been increased
from Rs. 150,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crore) divided into 15,00,00,000
(Fifteen Crore) Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each to Rs. 2300,00,00,000 (Rupees Two
Thousand Three Hundred Crores) divided into (i) Rs. 300,00,00,200 (Rupees Three Hundred
Crores Two Hundred) divided into 30,00,00,020 (Thirty Crores Twenty) Equity Shares having a
face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) each, and (ii) Rs. 936,99,99,650 (Rupees Nine Hundred Thirty
Six Crores Ninety Nine Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Six Hundred Fifty) divided into 1,70,36,363
(One Crore Seventy Lakhs Thirty Six Thousand Three Hundred Sixty Three) Class A Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares having a face value of Rs. 550 (Rupees Five Hundred Fifty) each
and Rs. 1063,00,00,150 (Rupees One Thousand Sixty Three Crores One Hundred Fifty) divided
into 1,93,27,273 (One Crore Ninety Three Lakhs Twenty Seven Thousand Two Hundred Seventy
Three) Class B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares having a face value of Rs. 550
(Rupees Five Hundred Fifty) each.

However, as on March 31, 2022 there has been no change in Issued, subscribed and paid up
equity share capital of the Company. The issued & subscribed share capital as on March 31, 2022
was Rs. 12,730,66,740 divided into 12,73,06,674 equity shares of Rs. 10 each and paid up share
capital is Rs. 12,730,62,710 divided into 12,73,05,868 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10 each
and 806 partly paid-up equity shares of Rs. 5 each.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

The Company’s Equity Shares are not listed on any stock exchange and are being traded on
off-market platform. As on March 31, 2022, 12,54,42,159 (98.54%) of the total share capital
was held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). In view of the nhumerous advantages offered by the
Depository System, the Members holding shares in physical mode are advised to avail the facility
of dematerialization.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended
March 31, 2022.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE
AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hero Housing Finance Limited ("HHFL") was granted a Housing Finance Company license by the
National Housing Bank (NHB) in August, 2017 to carry on the business of (non-deposit taking)
housing finance. HHFL had started its lending operations from April, 2018. It is an all-inclusive
housing finance company providing hassle-free home loans pan India which includes the following
products to its customers: (i) Home Loans, (ii) Loan Against Property etc.

During the financial year 2021-22, Hero Housing Finance Limited ("HHFL") had allotted 24,55,000
equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 10 per share to certain employees
of HHFL in accordance with Hero Housing Employee Stock Option Plan. Pursuant to the above
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allotment, the status of HHFL has been changed from Wholly owned subsidiary Company to
Subsidiary Company of Hero FinCorp Limited.

HHFL had seen considerable growth in the financial year 2021-22, aided by strong volume growth
across all its lines of businesses. During the year under review, receivables under financing
activity has reached to Rs. 2,689.35 crore in the financial year 2021-22 as compared to Rs.
2,337.85 crore in financial year 2020-21 representing an increase of 15.04% over the previous
year.

HHFL has Revenue from operations of Rs. 298.30 crore in financial year 2021-22 as compared
to Rs. 232.79 crore in previous year 2020-21, registering a growth of 28.14% over the previous
year.

During the financial year 2021-22, HHFL has turned profitable and reported profit after tax of Rs.
2.09 crore as against a loss after tax of Rs. 19.00 crore for the financial year 2020-21.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company including its Subsidiary Company duly
audited by the statutory auditors are presented in the annual report. A report on performance
and financial position of the Subsidiary Company included in the consolidated financial statement
is presented in a separate section of this annual report, please refer AOC-1 annexed to the
financial statements of the annual report.

The Company shall make available the annual accounts of the Subsidiary Company to the member
of the Company upon request. The annual accounts of the Subsidiary Company will also be
kept open for inspection at the registered office of the Company and the respective office of the
Subsidiary Company. The annual accounts of the Subsidiary Company are also available on the
website of the Company viz. https://www.herofincorp.com/ and can be accessed by clicking
on the following link https://www.herofincorp.com/investor-relations/disclosures-
under-regulation-62-of-the-SEBI-LODR/financial-performance.

RAISING OF FUNDS/CAPITAL

During the year under review, your Company continued with its diverse methods of sourcing
funds in addition to regular borrowings like Secured and Unsecured Debentures, Term Loans,
Commercial Papers, etc., and maintained prudential Asset Liability match throughout the year.
Your Company sourced non-convertible debentures and loans from banks and other institutions
at attractive rates. Your Company continues to expand its borrowing profile by tapping into new
lenders.

A. PREFERENTIAL ISSUE OF COMPULSORY CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES
(CCPS)

The Board of Directors in their meeting dated January 28, 2022 had approved the issuance of
1,70,36,363 Class A Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares and 1,93,27,273
Class B Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 550
each.

B. PRIVATE PLACEMENT ISSUES OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)

Secured non-convertible debentures worth Rs. 990 crore were issued on private placement
basis by the Company during the year under review and received
4th Tranche of Rs. 50 crore from partly paid up NCD issue. The said non-
convertible debentures are listed on the Wholesale debt market segment of National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

C. COMMERCIAL PAPERS (CPs)

Commercial Papers worth Rs. 4,390 crore (On Face Value) were issued by the Company during
the year under review. Total Commercial Papers outstanding as on March 31, 2022 was Rs.
3,300 crore as against Rs. 2,660 crore as on March 31, 2021. The outstanding commercial
papers are listed on the Wholesale debt market segment of National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.
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D. BANK/FI LINES

Secured term loans worth Rs. 6,250 crore (including Rs.50 crore in Foreign Currency Loan)
and Secured ECB of Rs. 868.65 crore were borrowed from different banks/FIs during the
year under review. Additionally, your Company enhanced the working capital lines (secured
and unsecured) from Rs. 3,260 crore to Rs. 4,076 crore as on March 31, 2022. The Company
inducted 2 new banks/FIs during the same year. The Company also deepened relationships
with the existing bankers not just in terms of additional working capital and term loan facilities
but also notably deepening the banks’ subscription to our commercial papers and debentures.
As on March 31, 2022, the total outstanding bank/FI lines (secured and unsecured) of the
Company stands at Rs. 20,014.78 crore.

CREDIT RATINGS

Your Company believes that its credit rating and strong brand equity enables it to borrow funds
at competitive rates.

The credit rating details of the Company as on March 31, 2022 were as follows:

(Rs. in crore)

Rating Program(Category) Outlook Quantum
ICRA i i

ICRA AA+ Non-Convertible Debentures Stable 1846
ICRA AA+ Subordinated Debt Stable 700
ICRA AA+ Bank Loan Rating (Long Term) Stable 14696
ICRA A1+ Bank Loan Rating (Short Term) Stable 1304
ICRA A1+ Commercial Paper - 6000
CRISIL

CRISIL AA+ Non-Convertible Debentures Stable 1000
CRISIL AA+ Non-Convertible Debentures Stable 1125
CRISIL AA+ Subordinated Debt Stable 800
,iiiil PP-MLD Long Terr?_islzgcflgzlbz;otteét:d Market Stable 100
CRISIL AA+ Bank Loan Rating Stable 4500
CRISIL A1+ Commercial Paper - 6000
CARE

CARE AA+ Bank Loan Rating Stable 1949
CARE A1+ Commercial Paper - 50

International rating details were at entity level and not rated for any specific program

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s
Rating as on Mar 31, 2022 Rating as on Mar 31, 2022

(BB+) Long term stable
(B) Short term stable

Facility

Entity Level
Bal/Positive

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The details of debenture trustee for the privately placed debentures of the Company: Vistra
ITCL (India) Limited, The IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C-22, G Block, 6™ Floor, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051 Tel: +91 22 69300000 Fax : +91 22 28500029
Email: mumbai@vistra.com.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the RBI pertaining to
non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets etc. As against the RBI norm
of 15%, your Company has been able to maintain a Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 15.60% as
on March 31, 2022, which is well above the RBI mandated norm of 15%.

POSTAL BALLOT

During the year 2021-22, approval of shareholders was sought for the below businesses, through
a Postal Ballot (notice dated January 28, 2022). All the resolutions were passed by overwhelming
majority:

a) Increase and reclassification of authorised share capital and consequent alteration to the
Memorandum of Association.

b) Alteration of the object clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

c) Issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares by way of preferential issue on a
private placement basis.

d) Appointment of M/s. B R Maheswari & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No:
001035N/ N500050) and M/s. Price Waterhouse LLP, (Firm Registration Number: 301112E/
E300264) as joint statutory auditors of the Company.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)
INCLUDING THOSE WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING
THE YEAR

Members of the Company’s Board of Directors are eminent persons of proven competence and
integrity. Besides experience, strong financial acumen, strategic astuteness and leadership
qualities, they have a significant degree of commitment to the Company and devote adequate
time to meetings and preparation. The Board has identified core skills, expertise and competencies
of the Directors in the context of the Company’s business for effective functioning, which are
detailed in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss
and decide on Company / business policy and strategy, apart from other Board businesses. The
Board exhibits strong operational oversight with regular business presentations of meetings. The
Company has complied with secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (ICSI) on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

a. Directors

As on March 31, 2022, the Board of Directors of your Company comprised of 6 (Six) Directors
comprising of 2 (Two) Non-Executive Directors, 2 (Two) Executive Directors and 2 (Two)
Independent Directors. Your Directors on the Board possess experience and competency
and are renowned in their respective fields. The Board composition is in compliance with the
requirements of the Act and the RBI Master Directions.

The Company being a ‘high value debt listed entity’ as defined under the provisions of SEBI
Listing Regulation, Regulation 16 to Regulation 27 of SEBI Listing Regulations are applicable
on the Company w.e.f 07.09.2021 and these provisions are applicable on a ‘comply or explain’
basis until March 31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter. The Company does not have
requisite number of Independent Directors as required under Regulation 17 of LODR which it
needs to comply with upto March 31, 2023.

b. Key Managerial Personnel

Details of the whole-time key managerial personnel ("KMP”) of the Company as on the date
of this report are as under:

e Mrs. Renu Munjal Managing Director

e Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Joint Managing Director & CEO

e Mr. Jayesh Jain Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

e Mr. Shivendra Suman Head - Compliance & Company Secretary
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Pursuant to the RBI Master Directions on Know Your Customer (KYC) Directions, 2016, Mr.
Jayesh Jain, Chief Financial Officer, acts as Principal Officer of the Company for monitoring
and reporting of all transactions and sharing information as required under the aforesaid
regulations.

c. Appointment and Cessation of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the period under review, there has been no change in Director and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.

To comply with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and in terms of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Sanjay Kukreja, Director (DIN: 00175427) is liable to
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting ("AGM") and being eligible, seeks
re-appointment.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of Section 164 of
the Act. The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures under Section 184
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Detailed information on the Directors is provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of this Annual Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section
149 of the Act including compliance of relevant provisions of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board is of the opinion
that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and
expertise and they hold highest standards of integrity.

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA & CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Company has received undertaking and declaration from each Director on fit and proper
criteria in terms of the provisions of RBI Master Directions. The Board of Directors has confirmed
that all existing Directors are fit and proper to continue to hold the appointment as Directors
on the Board, as reviewed and recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
on fit and proper criteria under RBI Master Directions. All the Directors of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company. The Declaration of the same is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 8 (Eight) times during the FY 2021-22 to discuss and approve various matters.
The details of such meetings are given in Corporate Governance Report forming part of this
Annual Report. The intervening gap between these meetings were within the period prescribed
under the Act. The notices and agendas including all material information, were circulated to all
directors, well within the prescribed time, before the meeting or placed at the meeting. Pursuant
to the requirements of Schedule IV to the Act, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors
of the Company was also held on April 28, 2021, without the presence of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management, to review the performance of Non-Independent
Directors, the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and also to
assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company,
management and the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, your Company has an Audit Committee
comprising of three directors viz. Mr. Pradeep Dinodia, Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal and Mrs.
Renu Munjal, majority of them are Independent Director. Mr. Pradeep Dinodia, an Independent
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Director, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the financial year under review, the
Audit Committee reviewed the internal controls put in place to ensure that the accounts of your
Company are properly maintained and that the accounting transactions are in accordance with
prevailing laws and regulations. In conducting such reviews, the Committee found no material
discrepancy or weakness in the internal control system of your Company. The Committee has
also reviewed the procedures laid down by your Company for assessing and managing the risks.
Further, details on the Audit Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of this Annual Report. During the financial year under review, all recommendations
made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. The Committee regularly interacts
with the statutory auditors, internal auditors and auditees in dealing with matters falling within
its terms of reference. In compliance with the provisions of the Act, the Committee met 7
(Seven) times during the year. The details of meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report, forming part of this Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the terms of reference of the Committee comprises of the
following:

e To review of the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the
audit process, the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
and the Code of Conduct of the Company;

e To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company and discuss with Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;

e To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
Audit process;

e To examine the financial statement, financial results and the Auditors’ report thereon;

e To Approve transactions or any subsequent modification to the transactions of the Company
with related parties;

e To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

e To approve payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

e To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems;

e To monitor end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

e To review the functioning of and compliance with the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy;

e To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal
control systems;

e To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities, etc.; and
e To review Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

During the year under review, in pursuance to SEBI circular on ‘Enhanced Governance Norms
for Credit Rating Agencies’ dated November 04, 2019 (“SEBI Circular”), the Audit Committee
members met with representatives of ICRA & CRISIL (hereinafter referred to as “credit rating
agencies” /”"CRAs”) on March 22, 2022 and had discussion on different matters pertaining
to related party transactions, internal financial controls, IT controls/ data security and other
disclosures made by the management etc. which had bearing on rating of the listed NCDs/CPs.
Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, the credit rating agencies were required to meet with Audit
Committee once in a year for discussion on various aspects including corporate governance,
related party, internal financial controls, any other material events/disclosures etc. as prescribed
in the SEBI circular.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Your Company has a duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee (*"NRC"), with its
composition, quorum, powers, role and scope in line with the applicable provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder. The provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations, are applicable
on the Company w.e.f September 07, 2021 on comply & explain basis and mandatory basis from
April 01, 2023. The Company is required to re-constitute the NRC as per the provisions of SEBI
Listing Regulations. Further, details on the NRC are provided in the Corporate Governance Report,
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which forms part of this Annual Report. The NRC has formulated a policy on remuneration under
the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act and the same is uploaded on the Company’s website
at https://www.herofincorp.com/company-policies

The salient features of the remuneration policy are as under:

1. To determine remuneration of Directors, KMP, other senior management personnel and other
employees, keeping in view all relevant factors including industry trends and practices.

2. At the Board meeting, only the Non-Executive and Independent Directors shall participate in
approving the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors.

3. Theremuneration structure for the Executive Directors would include basic salary, commission,
perquisites & allowances, contribution to provident fund and other funds. If the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, they shall be entitled to minimum remuneration as
prescribed under the Act.

4. The Non-Executive and/or Independent Directors will also be entitled to remuneration by way
of commission aggregating upto 1% of net profits of the Company pursuant to the provisions
of Section 197 and 198 of the Act, in addition to sitting fees.

5. The compensation for KMP, senior management and other employees is based on the external
competitiveness and internal parity through periodic benchmarking surveys. It includes basic
salary, allowances, perquisites, loans and/or advances as per relevant HR policies, retirement
benefits, performance linked pay out, benefits under welfare schemes, etc.

ANNUAL EVALUATION - BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS

To comply with the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Act and Rules made thereunder and
Regulation 17(10) of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board had carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own and of the Directors individually including the Independent Directors
(wherein the concerned Director being evaluated did not participate), Board as a whole and
following Committees of the Board of Directors:

i) Audit Committee;

ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
iii) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee; and
iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Board is responsible to monitor and review the evaluation framework. Further, to comply
with Regulation 25(4) of SEBI Listing Regulations, Independent Directors also evaluated the
performance of Non-Independent Directors, Chairman and Board as a whole at a separate
meeting of Independent Directors.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has well-equipped and effective internal control systems in place that match the
scale of its sector and the complexity of the market it works in. Such stringent and detailed
controls ensure effective and productive use of resources to the degree that the Company’s
assets and interests are safe-guarded, transactions are approved, registered, and properly
reported and checks and balances guarantee reliability and consistency of accounting data.
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The Internal Auditors also assesses opportunities for improvement in business processes,
systems and controls, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the organization
and follow up the implementation of corrective actions and improvements in business processes
after review by the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department of the Company, co-sourced with professional firms of Chartered
Accountants, reports directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors independently
evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions
in value terms. Independence of the audit and compliance is ensured by direct reporting of
Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Internal auditing at the Company involves the utilisation of a systematic methodology for
analysing business processes or organisational problems and recommending solutions to add
value and improve the organisation’s operations. The audit approach verifies compliance with the
regulatory, operational and system related procedures and controls.

During the financial year under review, no material or serious observations have been received
from the Auditors of the Company, citing inefficacy or inadequacy of such controls.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March
31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website at http://www.herofincorp.com/.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee which functions
under direct supervision of Mrs. Renu Munjal, Managing Director of the Company, who is also
the Chairperson of the CSR Committee. Other members of the Committee are Dr. Pawan Munjal,
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal and Mr. Pradeep Dinodia. The Committee has formulated the CSR policy
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company from time to time.

The Committee has been entrusted with the prime responsibility of implementation of the
activities under the CSR policy and recommend the amount to be spent on such CSR activities
during the year. The Committee is also responsible for recommending to the Board such activities
which could be undertaken as per CSR policy.

Your Company has undertaken the CSR activities and complied with the provisions of Section
135 of the Act. The CSR activities undertaken by your Company are based on the approved CSR
policy, which is available on the Company’s website, www.herofincorp. com and can be accessed
by clicking on the following link: https://www.herofincorp.com/company-policies.

During the year under review, CSR obligations for the Financial Year 2021-22 was Rs. 5.73 crore
(2% of the average net profit of the Company for last three financial years). The Company had
set-off Rs. 3.04 crore from the contribution made to Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and
Relief in Emergency Situation Fund (PM CARES Fund). The Company had further spent Rs. 1.53
crore towards the CSR activity for the Financial Year 2021-22 in the manner as approved by the
CSR Committee. The Company had also transferred Rs. 1.16 crore to the Unspent CSR Account
and the same will be utilized for the ongoing CSR projects of the Company.

The CSR initiatives undertaken by your Company along with other CSR related details forms part
of the Annual Report on CSR activities for FY 2021-22, which is annexed as Annexure - D.

The CSR policy of your Company, as adopted by the Board, broadly covers the following focus
areas-

e Todirect HFCL's CSR programmes, inter alia, towards achieving one or more of the following:
enhancing environmental and natural capital; supporting rural development; promoting
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education including skill development; providing preventive healthcare, providing sanitation
and drinking water; creating livelihoods for people, especially those from disadvantaged
sections of society, in rural and urban India and preserving and promoting sports;

e To develop the required capability and self reliance of beneficiaries at the grass root level, in
the belief that these are prerequisites for social and economic development;

e To engage in affirmative action/interventions such as skill building and vocational training,
to enhance employability and generate livelihood for persons including from disadvantaged
sections of the society;

e To pursue CSR programmes primarily in the areas that fall within the economic vicinity of
the Company’s operations to enable close supervision and ensure maximum development
impact;

e To carry out CSR programmes in relevant local areas to fulfil commitments arising from
requests by government/regulatory authorities and to earmark amounts of monies and to
spend such monies through such administrative bodies of the government and/or directly by
way of developmental works in the local areas around which the Company operates;

e To carry out activities at the time of natural calamity or engage in Disaster Management
system; and

e To promote sustainability in partnership with industry associations, like the Confederation of
Indian Industry (CII), PHD, FICCI, etc. in order to have a multiplier and far reaching impact
on the society.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board hereby state and confirm that:

e inthe preparation of the annual accounts for FY 2021-22, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures in the
Auditor’s Report and Notes to accounts;

o they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit & loss of the
Company for the said period;

o they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

e they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND REPORT

M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101248W/W100022) were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the AGM held on September 21, 2018,
for a term of five consecutive years commencing form the conclusion of 27" AGM upto the
conclusion of the 32" AGM. The RBI vide its circular dated April 27, 2021, issued Guidelines for
Appoitnment of Statutory Central Auditors ("SCAs")/ Statutory Auditors (“"SAs”) of commercial
Banks (excluding Regional Rural Banks), urban Co-operative Banks("UCBs"”) and Non-Banking
Financial Companies(*NBFCs"”) (including Housing Finance Companies) (*RBI Guidelines”)

In terms of the aforesaid RBI guidelines, the Statutory Auditors who have completed a tenure
of 3 years cannot continue to hold office of Statutory Auditors, even though they may not have
completed their present tenure as approved by the Members of the said entity. Accordingly,
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M/s. B S R & Co. LLP vacated the office with effect from December 16, 2021. Further, the RBI
Guidelines stipulated that for entities with assets size of Rs. 15,000 crore and above as at the
end of the previous year, the statutory audit shall be conducted under joint audit of a minimum
of two audit firms.

Accordingly, pursuant to the RBI Guidelines and based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on December 16, 2021,
approved the appointment of M/s. B R Maheswari & Co. LLP (Firm Registration No: 001035N/
N500050) and M/s. Price Waterhouse LLP (Firm Registration No: 301112E/E300264) as Joint
Statutory Auditors of the Company upto the conclusion of next AGM of the Company to be held
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, to fill the casual vacancy caused due to vacation of
office of M/s. B S R & Co. LLP.

The members of the Company had approved the appointment of M/s. B R Maheswari & Co. LLP
and M/s. Price Waterhouse LLP as Joint Statutory Auditors through postal ballot on March 08,
2022.

The Board of Directors, subject to approval of shareholders, has proposed the appointment of M/s.
B R Maheswari & Co. LLP (Firm Registration No: 001035N/N500050) and M/s. Price Waterhouse
LLP (Firm Registration No: 301112E/E300264) as Joint Statutory Auditors for a remaining period
of 2 years i.e. from conclusion of 315t Annual General Meeting till conclusion of 33 Annual
General Meeting. The Company has received a confirmation that they are not disqualified to act
as the Auditors and are eligible to hold the office of the Auditors of the Company. The Board
recommends their appointment as Joint Statutory Auditors for approval of members.

The Auditors’ report, read with notes to the accounts are self-explanatory and therefore do not
require further comments/elaborations pursuant to Section 134 of the Act. There is no qualification
made by the Statutory Auditors in their report. Further, there were no frauds reported by the
Statutory Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, read with corresponding rules framed
thereunder, M/s Sanjay Grover and Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No.:
P2001DE052900), were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to carry out the
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

A secretarial audit report given by the Secretarial Auditors of the Company in requisite Form No.
MR-3 is annexed as Annexure — E with this annual report.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions
of Section 148(1) of the Act, are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the
Company.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186
of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND POLICY

All contracts, arrangements and transactions entered by the Company during FY 2022 with
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and were
approved by the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors of the Company had laid down the
criteria for granting the omnibus approval by the Audit Committee for the transactions which
are repetitive in nature, in line with the Company’s Policy on Materiality of and dealing with
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Related Party Transactions (*RPT Policy’). During the year, the Company had not entered into any
materially significant transaction with related parties as defined in the RPT Policy. Accordingly,
the disclosure of Related Party Transactions under Section 188(1) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not
applicable. Details of Related Pary Transaction as per Ind AS - 24 may be referred to in Note 38
of the Standalone Financial Statments.

None of the Directors had any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company
except as provided in the notes to the accounts.

Pursuant to the requirement of Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the
policy on related party transactions is annexed as Annexure - F and is also available on the

Company’s website, at https://www.herofincorp.com/company-policies.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a vigil mechanism through which directors, employees and business
associates may report unethical behavior, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, violation of
Company’s code of conduct, leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information
without fear of reprisal. Under the vigil mechanism all directors, employees, business associates
have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit committee, and also to a three member direct
touch team established for this purpose.

During the financial year 2021-22, following is the summary of complaints received and disposed
off under this policy by the Disciplinary Committee (DC) and report finally presented before the
Audit committee/ Board.

No. of complaints received: 20
No. of complaints disposed off: 18

The whistle blower policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website and can be
accessed by clicking on the following link https://www.herofincorp.com/company-policies.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company did not accept/ renew any public deposit(s) under
the provisions contained in Section 73 of the Act, and the rules made there under and as such,
no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the balance sheet date. Further, The
Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any
public deposits during the year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO
WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

No material changes and/or commitment affecting the financial position of your Company has
occurred between April 1, 2022 and the date of signing of this report.

INFORMATION AND CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Company is committed to take effective measures to conserve energy and drive energy
efficiency in its operations and also continuously making efforts on increasing use of renewable
energy and enhancing waste management to reduce the carbon footprint. The Company also
strives to focus on technologies, processes and improvements that matters for the environment.
During the year, the Company undertook some cost-effective energy-efficiency initiatives.
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The Company believes in leveraging technology to transform every dimension of its business.
Investments in technology infrastructure is an important element of Company’s commitment
to delivering seamless customer experience. Further, steps taken towards Energy Conservation
are the result of technology absorption. However, there is no other specific information to be
furnished in this regard.

The information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are as follows:

e Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: Earnings — Nil

Outgo - Rs. 23.49 crore on account of travel, information technology, legal & professional,
training etc. (Previous year Rs. 15.44 crore).

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s governance structure has well-defined roles and responsibilities,
which enable and empower the Management to identify, assess and leverage business
opportunities and manage risks effectively. There is also a comprehensive framework for strategic
planning, implementation and performance monitoring of the business plan, which inter alia
includes a well-structured Business Risk Management process.

Mr. Pradeep Dinodia, Independent Director, is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee
(RMC) of the Board. RMC assist the Board in its oversight of various risks, review of compliance
with risk policies, monitoring of risk tolerance limits, review and analyse the risk exposures
related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across the organization. The details of
the Committee along with its terms of reference are set out in the Corporate Governance Report,
forming part of this Report. Effective risk management is integral to Hero FinCorp’s operations
and is embedded in its day-to-day business transactions and activities. The framework in place
seeks to identify, prioritise, mitigate, monitor and appropriately report any significant threat
to the organisation’s strategic objectives, its reputation, operational continuity, environment,
compliance, and the health and safety of its employees.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors had approved and
adopted the Nomination and Remuneration policy, inter alia, for the appointment and fixation of
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of your Company
as applicable. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also developed the criteria for
determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors and for
making payments to Executive and Non- Executive Directors of the Company. The said policy is
attached herewith as Annexure - G to this Report. The remuneration policy of your Company
can be accessed by clicking on the following link https://www.herofincorp.com/company-
policies.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

During the year under review, there was no change in Hero FinCorp Employee Stock Option
Plan, 2017 ("ESOP 2017"). Details of ESOP disclosure pursuant to Rule 12 of Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Section 62 of the Act. read with rules
framed thereunder is annexed as Annexure - H to this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the significant contribution made by all
employees, who through their competence, dedication, hard work, co-operation and support
have enabled the Company to achieve different milestones on a continual basis. A detailed note
on personnel is given in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of
this Annual Report. The statement of Disclosure under Section 197 of the Act and Rule 5(1) of
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the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”),
is appended as Annexure — I to this Report. The information as per Rule 5(2) of the Rules,
forms part of this Annual Report. However, as per first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and
second proviso of Rule 5(2) of the Rules, the Report and Financial Statements are being sent to
the Members of the Company excluding the statement of particulars of employees under Rule
5(2) of the Rules. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the said statement may write to
the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company or may address their e-mail at
investors@herofincorp.com.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125 of the Act, read with Companies (Declaration and
Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, your Company had transferred unclaimed/ unpaid dividend
of Rs. 5,75,850 for FY 2013-14 lying with the Company for a period of 7 years after declaration
of dividend to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of Central Government of India.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act, read with IEPF Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, all shares in respect to which dividend
had not been paid or claimed for 7(seven) consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF
Authority. Accordingly, w.r.t. FY 2013-14 whose dividend had not been claimed for last 7 (seven)
years, the Company has transferred 5,900 equity shares into demat account of IEPF Authority.
The details of equity shares transferred to IEPF are also available on the Company’s website,
by clicking on the following link- https://www.herofincorp.com/investor-relations/
disclosures-under-regulation-62-of-the-SEBI-LODR/unclaimed-unpaid-dividend

NODAL OFFICER

Your Company has appointed Mr. Shivendra Suman, Head-Compliance & Company Secretary as
Nodal officer for the purpose of coordination with Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
Authority.

RBI DIRECTIONS

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the RBI pertaining
to non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets, etc. Your Company
complies with the direction(s), circular(s), notification(s) and guideline(s) issued by the RBI as
applicable to your Company as a systemically important non-deposit taking NBFC. The Company
has in place the system of ensuring compliance with applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and rules made thereunder. In line with the RBI guidelines for Asset
Liability Management (ALM) system for NBFCs, the Company has an Asset Liability Management
Committee, which meets at regular intervals to review its ALM risks and opportunities.

The Company continues to be in compliance with the Master Circular-"Non-Banking Financial
Companies-Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015".

Your Company has complied with all the norms prescribed by the RBI including the Fair Practices
Code, Anti Money Laundering and Know Your Customer (KYC) guidelines besides other guidelines.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems and processes for complying with the requirements
of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on
Board Meetings (SS-I) and General Meetings (SS-II) and such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.
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STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

e Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
e Buy Back of shares
e Issue of sweat equity shares to employees of your Company.

¢ No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

e There were no delays or defaults in payment of interest/principal of any of its debt securities.
e The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans from banks and financial institutions.
e There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

DISCLOSURE UNDER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

Your Company has complied with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) Policy is in
place and as per the said Policy, an Internal Committee is also in place to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. The constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)
is as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 and the Committee includes external member with relevant experience. The Committee
meets at regular intervals in order to ensure and enhance security of female employees. The
Company aims at providing a workplace that enables employees to work without gender bias
and sexual harassment.

An annual report by the Committee is submitted to the Board of Directors of your Company on
the complaints received and action taken by it during the said year. Following is the summary of
complaints received and disposed off during year under review:

e No. of complaints received: 0

e No. of complaints disposed off: 0

DETAILS OF APPLICATION PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

The details of application made by the Company which are pending under Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 are annexed as Annexure - J.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFICER (IPO)

The Company is committed to work towards its plan to bring an Initial Public Offer of its equity
shares which shall be enhancing the value for our stakeholders.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

During the year under review, your Company has been facilitated with the following awards and
Recognition: -

e Hero FinCorp Limited was certified as a Great Place to Work (GPW) for the fifth time in a row.
e Hero FinCorp is amongst Top 30 Best Workplaces in BFSI by GPTW.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS AND
ACQUIRED IMMUNE DEFICIENCY SYNDROME (PREVENTION AND
CONTROL) ACT, 2017

During the year under review, no complaints were received by the Complaints Officer under the
Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (Prevention and
Control) Act, 2017.
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Annexure - A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBAL ECONOMY

As the global economy was gradually putting the COVID-19 pandemic behind, with many parts
of the world lifting restrictions, and several economies returning to their pre COVID size, another
shock struck. The ongoing conflict between the Russian government and Ukraine since late
February is a humanitarian crisis. It is also shaping up to be a prelude to a new geopolitical era,
one where progress against global issues in areas such as health and climate change becomes
harder to do. Even if the conflict between Russia and Ukraine itself remains localized, it has broad
implications for economies all across the world. While Russia and Ukraine together represent a
relatively small part of the world economy, they account for a large share of global energy
exports, as well as exports of a range of metals, food staples and agricultural inputs.

As we continue to emerge from the restrictions imposed by the pandemic, one of the major
concerns has been the rise in inflation across many parts of the world. Higher inflationary
pressures saw a change in the policy stance of central banks in several economies already last
year, with rising inflationary pressures prompting many to start raising rates

Going forward, the world economy will have to navigate a difficult period ahead under a cloud of
geopolitical uncertainty. Businesses and households will be hoping for the best but should plan
for potential ongoing disruptions and uncertainty.

INDIAN ECONOMY

The global economy remains hostage to heightened uncertainty, with Omicron sparking fresh
containment measures. The Indian economy bounced back strongly in Q2:2021-22, with GDP
surpassing its pre-pandemic levels, and inflation broadly aligning with the target. A host of
incoming high frequency indicators are looking upbeat and consumer confidence is gradually
returning. Aggregate demand conditions point to sustained recovery, albeit, with some signs of
sequential moderation. On the supply front, farm sector situation remains strong with impressive
progress of Rabi sowing, while the manufacturing and services record strong improvement on
strengthening demand conditions and surge in new business.

Agriculture and allied sectors have been the least impacted by the pandemic and the sector has
grown by 3.9 per cent in 2021-22 after growing by 3.6 per cent in the previous year.

Industrial sector went through a sharp rebound from a contraction of 7 per cent in 2020-21 to
an expansion of 11.8 per cent in this financial year. The manufacturing, construction and mining
sub-sectors went through the same swing although the utilities segment experienced a more
muted cycle as basic services such as electricity and water supply were maintained even at the
height of the national lockdown.

Services sector has been the hardest hit by the pandemic, especially segments that involve
human contact. This sector has grown by 8.2 per cent this financial year following last year’s
8.4 per cent contraction.

India’s exports of both goods and services have been exceptionally strong in 2021-22.
Inflation has reappeared as a global issue in emerging economies. The surge in energy prices,
non-food commodities, input prices, disruption of global supply chains, and rising freight costs
stoked global inflation during the year. In India, Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation moderated
to 5.2 per cent in 2021-22 from 6.6 per cent in the corresponding period of 2020-21. It was
5.6 per cent (YoY), which is within the targeted tolerance band. The decline in retail inflation in
2021-22 was led by easing of food inflation. Wholesale Price Inflation (WPI), however, has been
running in double-digits.
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FINANCIAL SERVICES - NBFC SECTOR

NBFCs (Non-Banking Financial Companies) play an important role in promoting inclusive growth
in the country, by catering to the diverse financial needs of bank excluded customers. Further,
NBFCs often take lead role in providing innovative financial services to Micro, Small, and Medium
Enterprises (MSMEs) most suitable to their business requirements. NBFCs do play a critical
role in participating in the development of an economy by providing a fillip to transportation,
employment generation, wealth creation, bank credit in rural segments and to support financially
weaker sections of the society. Emergency services like financial assistance and guidance is also
provided to the customers in the matters pertaining to insurance.

NBFCs are financial intermediaries engaged in the business of accepting deposits delivering credit
and play an important role in channelizing the scarce financial resources to capital formation.
They supplement the role of the banking sector in meeting the increasing financial needs of
the corporate sector, delivering credit to the unorganized sector and to small local borrowers.
However, they do not include services related to agriculture activity, industrial activity, sale,
purchase or construction of immovable property. In India, despite being different from banks,
NBFCs are bound by the Indian banking industry rules and regulations.

NBFCs focuses on business related to loans and advances, acquisition of shares, stock,
bonds, debentures, securities issued by government or local authority or other securities of like
marketable nature, leasing, hire-purchase, insurance business, chit business etc.

The banking sector would always be the most important sector in the field of business because
of its credibility in supporting manufacturing, infrastructural development and even being the
backbone for the common man’s money. But despite this, the role of NBFCs is critical and their
presence in a country would only boost the economy in the right direction.

REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS AND SCHEMES

The NBFC sector continued to grow its share in the financial services industry. The government
and the RBI announced the slew of regulatory forbearances and schemes during the year - some
of the key being are:

Asset Classification and Income Recognition: As part of the Covid-19 regulatory package,
the RBI had allowed lending institutions to grant a moratorium on payment of installments of
term loans falling due between March 01 and May 31 of the last year. The moratorium was
extended by three months till August 31. All lending institutions shall immediately put in place a
Board-approved policy to refund/adjust the ‘interest on interest’ charged to the borrowers during
the moratorium period.

Statutory Central Auditor (SCAs)/ Statutory Auditor (SAs): The Reserve Bank of India
had issued guidelines for appointment of Statutory Auditors of Banks and Non-Banking Finance
Companies (NBFCs), including Housing Finance Companies. Guidelines for Appointment of
Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/ Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding
RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs)' will be applicable for financial year 2021-22 and
onwards. The guidelines provide necessary instructions for appointment of SCAs/SAs, the number
of auditors, their eligibility criteria, tenure and rotation, etc. while ensuring the independence of
auditors.

Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress: In view of the resurgence of the
Covid-19 pandemic in 2021 and recognising the difficulties it may pose for the borrowers in
meeting the operational parameters, it has been decided to defer the target date for meeting
the specified thresholds in respect of the four operational parameters, viz. Total Debt / EBIDTA,
Current Ratio, DSCR and ADSCR, to October 01, 2022. The target date for achieving the ratio
TOL/ATNW, as crystallised in terms of the resolution plan, shall remain unchanged as on March
31, 2022.

Scale Based Regulatory Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs):
As the SBR framework encompasses different facets of regulation of NBFCs covering capital
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requirements, governance standards, prudential regulation, etc., it has been decided to first
issue an integrated regulatory framework for NBFCs under SBR providing a holistic view of the
SBR structure, set of fresh regulations being introduced and respective timelines. The regulatory
structure for NBFCs shall comprise of four layers based on their size, activity, and perceived
riskiness. NBFCs in the lowest layer shall be known as NBFC - Base Layer (NBFC-BL), NBFCs in
the middle layer and upper layer shall be known as NBFC - Middle Layer (NBFC-ML) and NBFC
- Upper Layer (NBFC-UL) respectively. The Top Layer is ideally expected to be empty and will
be known as NBFC - Top Layer (NBFC-TL). Further, it has been decided to introduce a Large
Exposure Framework (LEF) for NBFCs placed in the Upper Layer. Accordingly, large exposure
of an NBFC to all counterparties and groups of connected counterparties will be considered for
exposure ceilings. Simplified and separate guidelines will be issued incorporating the definition of
large exposure, regulatory reporting and large exposure limits. In addition to the internal limits
on SSE in respect of capital market and commercial real estate.

Internal Ombudsman mechanism for Non Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs):
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has directed Deposit-taking NBFCs (NBFCs-D) with 10 or more
branches and Non-Deposit taking NBFCs (NBFCs-ND) with asset size of Rs. 5,000 crore and
above having public customer interface to appoint Internal Ombudsman (I0) at the apex of their
internal grievance redress mechanism within a period of six months from the date of issue of the
direction, except for certain types of NBFCs.

Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) Framework for NBFCs: The Reserve Bank of India on
December 14, 2021 has issued the Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) Framework for Non-Banking
Financial Companies (NBFCs). It may be recalled that the revised Prompt Corrective Action
(PCA) Framework for Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs) was issued on November 02, 2021.
NBFCs have been growing in size and have substantial inter-connectedness with other segments
of the financial system. Accordingly, a PCA Framework for NBFCs has also been put in place to
further strengthen the supervisory tools applicable to NBFCs. This shall apply to: All Deposit
Taking NBFCs [Excluding Government Companies]; All Non-Deposit Taking NBFCs in Middle,
Upper and Top Layers [Excluding - (i) NBFCs not accepting/not intending to accept public funds;
(ii) Government Companies, (iii) Primary Dealers and (iv) Housing Finance Companies]. The
PCA Framework for NBFCs shall come into effect from October 01, 2022, based on the financial
position of NBFCs on or after March 31, 2022. A separate circular would be issued in due course
with regard to applicability of PCA Framework to Government NBFCs.

THE COMPANY

Hero FinCorp Limited (“the Company” or "HFCL") is an NBFC with a diversified product portfolio.
Its aim is to aid financial inclusion of the unserved and partnering the dreams of Indian
entrepreneurs & businesses.

In the two wheeler segment, the Company has focused on customers who are left out of the
banking network for reasons like limited documentation, limited credit history and hence are
perceived as a high-risk category by the banking channels. The Company believes that credit
worthiness can be evaluated by employing innovative methods that take into accountthe
subjective knowledge gleaned from customer visits, background checks, etc. This can provide
opportunity to the customer to start building a credit history and move towards financial inclusion.

The Company provides a bouquet of other financial products including used Car Financing,
Loyalty Personal Loan, Inventory Funding, Loan Against Property, Loans to SMEs and Emerging
Corporates.

The Company has set up a housing finance arm, namely, Hero Housing Finance Limited (subsidiary
of Hero FinCorp Limited), to cater the housing needs and support in the Government’s holistic
mission of “Housing for All by 2022".
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company always focus on three key principals - operating efficiency, customer centricity
and skill up. The Company, has again shown a strong year of performance aided by a diversified
portfolio mix, robust volume growth, prudent management strategic initiatives.

During the year under review, Asset Under Management (AUM) has grown up by 20% from Rs.
25,106 crore in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 30,228 crore in FY 2021-22. The total income has shown a
growth of 10% from Rs. 4,092 crore in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 4,491 crore in FY 2021-22.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

Retail Business

The Two-Wheeler business is present at 900 dealerships at the end of Financial Year 2022. Our
services are now available at over 4,100+ touch points across 2,000 cities, towns & villages.
The Retail team has built the capacity to disburse a loan every 10 seconds and have serviced over
7 million happy customers as on March 31, 2022; an amazing achievement within a short span
of less than 9 years. A total of over 8.78 Lakh of Two-wheeler loans were disbursed in the last
financial year (10 Lakh in FY21) amounting to a total active customer base of around 2.8 Million
and an asset book of approx. Rs. 7,980 crore.

SME & Corporate Business

At present the Company is operating out of 55 Locations on the non-retail segment. The team
built a capacity to process 1,000 applications including EMI & No EMI loans in a month. In FY22,
Rs. 6,094 crore worth of loans were disbursed during the year under review. The Company has
closed the year with an impressive SME & Corporate asset book of Rs. 11,624 crore.

TREASURY

The Company has a full-fledged independent treasury function which effectively manages the
borrowings and treasury investments. The function ensures borrowing of funds at competitive
costs to meet the business requirement and also maintain sufficient liquidity to tide over any
unforeseen circumstances. Investment activities are undertaken to invest excess liquidity in
various instruments.

BORROWED FUNDS

The Company has diversified sources of borrowings including debt market (non-convertible
debentures and commercial paper), banks and financial institutions (term loans, working capital
facilities and external commercial borrowings).

The Company endeavors to maintain a prudent mix of fixed rate borrowings and variable rate
borrowings with a view to minimize the weighted average cost of borrowings and maintain a
healthy spread on its lending activities.

During the year, the Company borrowed to the tune of Rs. 12,548.65 crore (excluding rollovers)
to serve business needs. The borrowing book stood at Rs. 26,065.22 crore as on March 31, 2022
against Rs. 21,816.43 crore as on March 31, 2021, an increase of 19.48% from the previous
year.

Borrowings and debt securities constituted 81.87% of funds employed as on March 31, 2022. Out
of the total borrowings, Banks and financial institutions constitute 76.73% (term loans 63.11%,
working capital facilities 10.33% and external commercial borrowings 3.30%), debt market
constituted 23.27% (non-convertible debentures 10.94% and commercial paper 12.32%).

The Company has a strong relationship with 36 banks/FIs including all PSU, major private and
foreign banks. The Company deepened relationships with the existing bankers not just in terms
of additional working capital and term loan facilities but also notably deepening the banks’
subscription to our commercial papers and debentures.
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The average cost of borrowing is 7.0% for the year ending March 31, 2022 as against 7.8% for
the year ending March 31, 2021.

Borrowing Mix FY 2021- 22 (%) Borrowing Mix FY 2020-21 (%)

B Term Loan m'Working Capital Facilities m Term Loan = Working Capital Facikties
® Nen Convertible debentunes Commercial Fapers B Mon Convertibhe Debentures Commercial Papers
m External Commercial Borrowings ® External Commercial Borrowings

Term loans

During the FY 2021-22 the Company raised Rs. 6,250.00 crore from banks/financial institutions
in the form of term loan facilities including foreign currency loan. The term loan book stood at
Rs. 16,449.07 crore as on March 31, 2022 against Rs. 15,442.83 crore as on March 31, 2021.
The banks lines are rated “"CRISIL AA+ with stable outlook” by CRISIL and “"ICRA AA+ with stable
outlook” by ICRA and “"CARE AA+ with stable outlook” by CARE. These indicates high degree of
safety with regard to timely servicing of financial obligations.

Working capital facilities

The Company enhanced the working capital facilities (secured and unsecured) from Bank/financial
institutions from Rs. 3,260.00 crore as on March 31, 2021 to Rs. 4,076.00 crore as on March
31, 2022. The working capital facilities book stood at Rs. 2,691.70 crore as on March 31, 2022
against Rs. 1,499.44 crore as on March 31, 2021. During FY 2021-22 the average utilization of
the working capital facilities stood at 31% of the total working capital facilities.

External commercial borrowings

During the FY 2021-22 the Company raised USD 115 Mn. (Rs. 868.65 Crore) of foreign currency
denominated External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) under the automatic route of the RBI.
ECB was done with an aim to augment the investor base of the Company. This will also help in
improving the borrowing-mix. The Company is the first Indian entity to have raised ECB linked
to Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) after the transition from London Interbank Offer
Rate (LIBOR). The ECBs are hedged using a Cross-Currency Swap (variable rate structure linked
with OIS). The ECBs are fully hedged (interest + principal) for forex risks against the regulatory
requirement of minimum 70% of the exposure as set out by RBI. The ECB book stood at Rs.
859.43 crore as on March 31, 2022 against Rs. 200.00 crore as on March 31, 2021.

Non-convertible debentures

During the FY 2021-22 the Company raised Rs. 1,040.00 Crore from the Non-convertible
debentures. The Non-convertible debenture book stood at Rs. 2,852.77 crore as on March 31,
2022 against Rs. 2074.52 crore as on March 31, 2021 (including subordinate debts). The non-
convertible debentures are rated AA+ from CRISIL/ICRA.

As per SEBI’'s “"Operational Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised
Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial Paper” dated
August 10, 2021 a large corporate (LC) has to raise 25% of its incremental long-term borrowings
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through debt securities during a block of two financial years. During FY 2021-22 as per the circular
the Company was required to raise 1822.50 Crores through the issuance of debt securities out of
which the company borrowed 1,040.00 crore during the FY 2021-22 and the remaining amount
of Rs. 782.50 is targeted to be raised during FY 2022-23. There was significant investor interest
in the debt security issuances of the Company during the year however, the company decided to
explore other available fund-raising options which were more value accretive.

Commercial paper

During the FY 2021-22 the Company raised Rs. 4,390.00 Crore from commercial papers. The
commercial paper book stood at Rs. 3,212.23 crore as on March 31, 2022 against Rs. 2,599.64
crore as on March 31, 2021. The commercial papers are rated "CRISIL A1+"” and “ICRA Al+”,
indicating very strong degree of safety regarding timely payment of financial obligations.

Subordinated Debt

The outstanding subordinated debt as at March 31, 2022 stood at Rs. 593.51 crore. Based on the
balance term to maturity, as at March 31, 2022, subordinated debt is considered as Tier II capital
as per the guidelines issued by RBI for the purpose of computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio.

Liquidity and Treasury Investment

The Company follows a Board approved investment policy. The investment activities are carried
out with an objective to maintain sufficient liquidity, the smooth functioning of day to-day cashflow
operations and to invest any surplus funds generated during the course of such operations.

As at March 31, 2022, the Treasury investment portfolio stood at Rs. 2,592.48 crore. It constituted
8.14% of total assets as on March 31, 2022. The Company maintained a healthy daily weighted
average LCR of 209% during FY 2021-22 as against the regulatory requirement of 60%. Further,
the Company has maintained total liquidity of Rs. 6,792.00 crore (Standalone basis) as on March
31, 2022 which included cash and treasury investment of Rs. 2,132.00 crore, available bank
lines of Rs. 2,660.00 crore and proposed capital infusion of Rs. 2,000.00 crore.
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ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Company has a prudent ALM policy and the Asset Liability Committee which regularly monitors
the ALM. The Company throughout the year has maintained positive mismatches across buckets
up to 5 years i.e. the cumulative inflows of assets are higher than the cumulative outflows.

Contractual Asset Liability Management Mar-22 (Standalone)

Bucket Cum. Mismatch (Rs. Crore) % age RBI Limit
Up to 1m +5,852 +314% Negative 20%
1to 3m +7,279 +194%

3 to 6m +8,700 +137%

6 to 12m +4,791 +29%

1-3 yr +2,454 +8%

3-5yr +2,952 +9%

Above 5 yr - 0%

e The financial balances provided above are as per the IND-AS.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the RBI pertaining
to non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets etc. As against the RBI
norms of 15%, your Company has been able to maintain a Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of
15.60% as on March 31, 2022, which is well above the RBI mandated norms of 15%.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Hero FinCorp endeavors to be a customer-centric organization and a leader in innovative digital
products and technology. We are happy to report that in FY22 we have made significant strides
with the launch and update of application & platforms catering to customer acquisition, servicing
and collections with the aid of analytics.

Mobile application catering to the retail LOB now has a customer base of over 3.5 million in FY22,
enabling payment collection on mobile. In addition to the mobile application, personal payment
link was enabled over mobile to drive growth in payments for Retail collections. Analytics driven
retail collection was enabled, which helped us to select the appropriate agency & collector for the
case resolution. 80k+ leads were generated for TWL, UCL and OMPL from website. Restructured
several loans for customers as well as Financial Institutions during the COVID period.

Simple, scalable & flexible - collateral Management System launch has helped to manage end to
end lifecycle of collaterals & providing solution to the regulatory, complex monitoring challenges,
information for existing & new corporate loan collaterals. Newly launched C&IF business on
digital platform in FY22.

In FY22, enablement of the deduplication process for TWL products minimized fraudulent
attempts of loan sanction which helped us to save credit risk by rejecting fraudulent cases.
Digital Vertical has improved the underwriting process with additional fraud and KYC checks for
our instant Personal Loan product - ‘SimplyCash' which has now 14 lakh installations. Digital
enabled business growth through multiple Partnerships.

Hero FinCorp's technology strategy is to enable business strategy through a flexible, open yet
secure platform, which promotes the usage of Artificial Intelligence led capabilities in simplifying
the experience of our customers. Along with the technical capabilities and technology advancement
the organization also ensures security of customer data.

Hero FinCorp has a robust IT governance structure in place & the organization ensures compliance
to RBI master direction for NBFC, IT Act and other applicable regulations. We are also ISO
27001:2013 certified, which is a global standard for Information security management system.
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We take pride in well-secured Infrastructure with state of the art networking (P2P, MPLS, ILL),
end user assets (DLP, Anti-virus), hybrid hosting (On-prem & cloud), secure patches (OS, third
party applications & end user asset), telephony & conferencing, BCP & DR. Web Application
Firewall (WAF) & Cyber Geo-Fence is in place to restrict malicious and repeat offender traffic and
also protect from cyber-attacks like DDoS, SQL Injection, Cross site scripting etc.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONCERNS

The Company promotes a strong risk culture throughout the organization designed to help
reinforce Hero Fincorp’s resilience by encouraging a holistic approach to manage risk & return and
provide Management with a greater insight into risks and their impact. The Company operates
with an effective Risk Management Framework to actively manage all the material risks faced, in
a manner consistent with our risk appetite.

Financial services industry in India and across the globe witnessed unprecedented financial
crisis during FY-21 and FY-22 owing to COVID-19 pandemic. It reemphasized the importance of
robust risk management practices amongst Banks & NBFCs. COVID19 brought in its wake an
environment of not only heightened risk, but of prolonged uncertainty. It emphasized the need
to manage risk in a VUCA (Volatility, Uncertainty, Complexity, and Ambiguity) environment.
Risk Management Department at Hero Fincorp has been performing the dual tasks of setting up
the Risk Management process of identifying, measuring, monitoring and reporting risks in the
Company; and, at the same time, upgrading and repositioning risk management - by bringing
in vision, understanding, clarity and agility in running the risk management practices in the
Company.

The Risk Management Department (RMD) in Hero Fincorp is based on the ‘Three lines of
Defence’ model. The model distinguishes amongst the three groups (or lines) involved in
effective risk management:

e Functions that own and manage risks (frontline teams/operational managers who own and
manage risks and are responsible for implementing corrective actions to address process and
control deficiencies)

e Functions that oversee risks (RMD & Compliance)
e Functions that provide independent assurance (Internal Audit)

Risk Management team at Hero Fincorp identifies, measures and mitigate risks faced by the
Company. We have a differentiated approach to managing risks across our platforms with robust
governance mechanisms in place, that not only manage risks at each of the segment levels but
also at the Company level.

Risk Management team is guided by the Company’s Risk Management Committee which
oversees development and implementation of Risk Assurance practices. Under the overall ambit
of Corporate Governance, the Company has in place a Risk Management policy along with other
risk related policies.

Our approach to risk management assists us in identifying risks early and addressing them in
ways that manage uncertainties, minimize potential hazards, and maximize opportunities for
the good of all our stakeholders including shareholders, customers, lenders, regulators and
employees.

The Company has to manage various risks associated with the lending business. These risks
include credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk amongst others. The
Company manages credit risk through prudent credit norms. The Company measures, monitors
and manages credit risk at an individual borrower level and at the group exposure level for
corporate borrowers. The credit risk for individual borrowers is being managed at portfolio
level for Loans. The Company has a structured and standardized credit approval process, which
includes a well-established procedure of comprehensive credit appraisal. Operational Risk
comprises of risk of loss due to losses arising from failure of internal systems, process and
personnel or external events. The Company has identified risks under this category and has put

} { Board’s Report




31st Annual Report 2021-22 PF HeroFinCorp.

in place appropriate controls and disaster recovery plans to mitigate or minimize the risk. In
order to mitigate the interest rate risk and liquidity risk, we have developed innovative resource
mobilization techniques and prudent fund management practices, among others.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a robust and well embedded system of internal controls. The Internal Audit
function provides assurance to the Board regarding the adequacy and efficacy of internal controls,
advises management on the changing risks and controls landscape and helps anticipate and
mitigate emerging risks. The internal audit plan focuses on critical risks that matter and is
aligned with the business objectives. Progress to plan and key findings are reviewed by the Audit
Committee each quarter. Further, the Audit Committee also monitors the status of management
actions following the internal audit reviews.

An extensive risk based programme of internal audits and management reviews provides
assurance to the Board regarding the adequacy and efficacy of internal controls. The internal
audit plan is dynamic and aligned to the business objectives of the Company and is reviewed
by the Audit Committee each quarter. Further, the Audit Committee also monitors the status of
management actions emanating from internal audit reviews. Such actions are now being tracked
through an automated tool.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES

We at the Company aim at building our business through building our people. We ensure that our
goal of Customer Delight not only comes alive for our external customers but also for our very
own Hero Parivaar. Beginning with a digitally engaging induction program that aims at creating
a WOW new joiner experience, our employees go through various touchpoints through their
tenure at the Company. We offer our people a plethora of learning opportunities through a blend
of instructor led training sessions and self-paced e-learning platforms. We also ensure clear
communication with all our employees through various mediums and platforms. Our undeterred
hard work and keen focus on employee wellbeing has led us to get certified as a Great Place To
Work for the fifth time in a row as well as feature among the Top 30 BFSIs to work for once again.

Owing to the pandemic that almost seemed to find a degree of permanence, it was of utmost
priority to conduct business effectively whilst ensuring employee well-being. Having drafted the
HR blueprint, we have covered quite a distance in delivering against it through the year:

e Working in the new normal: Through the year as we worked during the pandemic, one
thing became certain - the operating model has changed and hybrid working will perhaps find
permanence. Thus, there was a need to ensure that appropriate guidance was made available
to all staff with respect to the new normal ways of working. Connected Workplace Guidelines,
dealing with COVID, ‘Working in the new normal’ e-learning came into existence promptly.
Continued intense communication through all possible mediums further propelled the already
established COVID safety norms in the new world order. The HR team continued monitoring
the well-being of the staff and took timely actions to enable them in performing their duties.
Employee rosters were created, round the year, for those at work to ensure social distancing.
Numerous townhalls and employee connects ensured that we stay connected with all staff.

e Building a Safe & Healthy Workplace: Employee wellness was one of the key priorities
through the year and the HR team worked to ensure connectedness and safety for all. There
were several steps taken towards this:

o To enable Heroes to combat these stressful times, an Employee Assistance Program was
made available for On Roll staff, recognizing the need for mental-well-being. This 24x7
helpline was extended not only to employees but their immediate family members as
well.

o Revisions to the Leave policy with the introduction of Bereavement Leave, Paternity Leave
and 3 months of LWP for supporting prolonged sickness of immediate family member.
Additionally, providing ‘Special Leaves’ for COVID under the ‘Dealing with COVID SOP'.
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o Enhancement of Social security benefits such as GMA and GLIC for on rolls and Mediclaim
extended to off rolls who were not covered under ESI, to ensure psychological safety for
the staff.

o Supporting employees and their families in the unfortunate event of an employees’ death
owing to COVID

o POSH awareness boosted through PRIDE Modules as well as communication to cement
the fact that we are a ‘safe workplace’

e Continued Focus on Capacity & Capability - To ensure organizational readiness, the HR
team worked in close partnership with the business towards hiring and growing for skills in the
organization. Our continued focus on hiring / retention and upskilling continued relentlessly
through the year.

Capacity:
o Accelerated rate of hiring across on rolls as well as FOS staff;
o Concerted efforts towards retention of key and critical talent; and

o Digitization of On-Boarding process further adds to building organization capacity with
less turnaround time.

Capability:
o Close to 56K across ~10400 unique employees (on roll and FOS staff);

o CareerProgressions through RISE (Internal Mobility Program) and role elevations including
off roll to on roll conversions have further strengthened our talent actions to assess and
recognize capability while providing them more responsibilities and job enrichment; and

o Focus on building and enhancing supervisory capability.

e Leadership in Hybrid World as part of IVY league: 7 Sessions focusing on Design Thinking,
Innovation Strategy, Building High Performing Teams etc. in partnership with Imperial College
of London;

e GROW 1.0 - First Time Managers covering 157 employees focusing on areas of Listening,
Speaking, Developing & Thanking;

e Grow 2.0 - Experienced Managers, covering 27 employees focusing on areas of Leadership,
Development & Collaboration;

e Management Essentials — Training managers on off roll management covering 411 employees;
e Pragati - focusing on a successful transition to a Collections Cluster Manager; and

e Effective Performance Conversation sessions covering 269 Managers;

0 The Hi-Po development through IVY League took a digital form and continues to be a
major focus of development of future leaders; and

o To facilitate learning for all staff across the length and breadth of the country, we curated
and launched the PRIDE modules in 11 vernacular languages thereby enabling 100%
compliance across all staff.

e Building a digital mindset: Digital is the way forward and so we have ensured that we work
towards building the desired capability throughout the organization. A number of initiatives
and processes were enabled through technology.

o Employee On-Boarding saw all new joiners starting their journey in a seamless manner
through the tool;

o HR Chatbot with Al enabled technology launched to bring speedy resolutions to employee
queries around HR policies and processes;

o Facial Recognition for Front Line Staff launched towards strengthening the attendance
marking and monitoring process. This will help enhance authenticity, accuracy and
governance and equip Managers to have better connect with the team in the field;
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Various employee processes such as induction, learning and engagement continued to be
digital;

Propelling digital learning through Skillsoft and Study Circles with thematic learning
months focusing on ‘building digital dexterity’ and ‘working in the new normal’ further
adding to this space;

Employee Engagement continued to bring the organization together through the second
wave digitally. Celebrations, Health & Wellness and all employee connects continued
without missing a step; and

Our Talent program of IVY League had sessions focused on ‘Building an Innovative
Mindset’ to propel a culture of creativity and innovation across the organization. We also,
had a number of sessions focused on ‘Innovation’, ‘Creativity’ and ‘Design Thinking’ for
our key talent as well as Leaders.

e Constant focus on building a meritocratic culture - We have worked extensively towards
nurturing a culture which is meritocratic. This journey did not stop even during the pandemic
wherein HR continued to partner with business to ensure performance excellence is captured,
enhanced and fostered.

o

Quarterly Reviews: Initiated rigorous quarterly reviews in a structured format for
each of the Department along with Leadership Group to ensure strict adherence to the
Organization objectives;

Performance Assurance: To ensure quality goals are inputted, an audit was conducted
across a sample population and feedback shared with LOB (Line of Business) heads. The
intention was to ensure that employees feed in sharp, relevant and quantifiable goals;

Rigor in Promotion Process: Promotions were based on a comprehensive ‘Promote
for Potential’ approach along with assessments on key organizational policies to ensure
that the key talent is placed in the right spot, thus ensuring maximization of potential.
Promotions to Band 1 went through a panel discussion of internal / external assessors to
help create a development plan for them;

Financial and Non-Financial Metrics: To ensure transparency and standardization, a
rating scale has been defined for both financial and non-financial parameters. This helps
in objective assessment of the individuals and ensures that the same lens is applied
across the organisation; and

Minimum Performance Standards Framework - The MPS framework has been
embedded across various incentive policies for enhanced productivity in Field teams. The
framework helps objectively define the expected performance and outcome.

e Celebrations: The year once again saw a number of digital engagement initiatives to
celebrate big and small wins and occasions.

o

Right from Suno Sunao that connected the organization through the second phase saw
more than 20+ sessions organised around health & wellness, family, fun & entertainment;

Notable events such as Women’s Day, IVY League, Management Trainee Graduation,
International Yoga Day, Independence Day were celebrated with absolute fervor as
always and received phenomenal feedback from all corners;

Festive Celebrations including contests, decorations and Diwali events added just the
right amount of brightness;

Hero Fitness League, focusing on building a ‘Healthy Hero Healthy FinCorp’, saw more
than 1200 staff participating in the week-long celebration of fitness;

‘Gratitude Month’ was perhaps the most fitting end to a year marred by the pandemic.
The month saw numerous activities organised such as ‘I Appreciate You' week, Be My
Santa and Connected Workplace Funkari, truly celebrating the values of *Humility; and

Employee Recognition including SuperHero award, quarterly awards as well as Long
Service Awards saw more than 600+ Heroes recognized for their exemplary performance
and celebrated through employee townhalls and R&R events.
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e Propelling '‘PRIDE’: Having launched the PRIDE (Pledging Respect and Integrity with
Discipline and Ethics) framework early last year, humerous steps / actions were taken to
strengthen not only the controls but also build a culture of discipline and ethics. Intertwined
with our values - TITHI, we continued to coach our staff towards ‘doing the right thing’
and remaining professional at all times. Sponsored by each leader, under the umbrella, we
achieved 100% completion of all staff on PRIDE modules as well as ‘Conflict of Interest’
declaration. PRIDE modules were launched in vernacular languages complemented by a
number of PRIDE Marathons helped build awareness and understanding of our wide-spread
Heroforce. Employee townhalls and a series of communications including Leader messages
further acted as propellers. Even Talent & Performance actions of IJPs under RISE and
Promotions in PMS, saw the introduction of PRIDE modules assessment thereby ensuring
that employees understand and are able to apply the knowledge at work.

e Strategic HR Business Partnering: Staying true to the organizational context, HR Team
collaborated and partnered with the business functions extensively to ensure various people
initiatives land effectively. A few critical ones were;

o Performance Management for the second time in Covid dominated year;

o Employee Connect through Townhalls, 1:1, Skip Levels, Fresh Eye sessions, Virtual
Dealership visits; and

o Productivity studies conducted through the means MPS and Incentive policies to analyse
the effectiveness and efficiencies of business targets achieved / desired.

Additionally, a monthly rhythm established early last year, continued with most of the Department
Heads to share various upcoming initiatives both on People and Business front and build a
platform for exchange, feedback and partnership.

e Continued focus on striving for Excellence in HR - Our commitment towards building
a high performance-high trust culture was recognized by GPTW as well with an additional
recognition for the same. We were once again certified as ‘Great Place to Work’ and announced
as ‘Best Workplaces in BFSI 2022". Our HR practices were also recognized by CII and we were
awarded - ‘Significant Achievement in HR Excellence’;

e Further, participation in ‘India’s Best Leaders in Times of Crisis’ study and being recognized
for it, was perhaps the summation of all the great work that we have done as an organization
under the guidance and leadership of Jt. MD & CEO, Abhimanyu Munjal. Further, we are
continuing to benchmark our people practices through external industry leaders such as Aon
Hewitt, GPTW, CII etc.;

The entire HR team continued their own capability building through the launch of Skillsoft Learning
Hour besides various formal learning opportunities. Talent within HR team was groomed to take
on higher responsibilities and was nurtured. Regular townhalls within HR Team were conducted
for enhanced connect, knowledge sharing, team well-being, discussions on various process
changes as well as setting priorities in alignment with the changing business landscape.

e CSR (Employee Volunteering) - Finally, through focused approach to Employee
Volunteering, HR team facilitated employees to champion beyond work;

o Through UMANG week - propelled by a digital employee volunteering platform, saw a
number of employees get involved in career counselling, educating children on COVID
practices or creating learning materials. Initiatives such as Be My Santa, Connected
Workplace Funkari or Donating Hygiene Kits to Asha Workers on the occasion of
International Women’s Day; and

o Raman Kant Munjal Scholarship saw the Leadership team’s involvement increase steadily
to identify almost 54 meritorious students from a humble background to be awarded
scholarships.

We have 2099 on-roll employees as a part of our ever-growing Hero family that strengthens our
business every day through their undiluted loyalty, dedication and commitment. Our Company is
compliant across all human resource linked policies as required by the Reserve Bank of India as
well as the Government of India and keeps human capital as the core of every decision it makes.
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SWOT ANALYSIS

Strengths
e Strong Brand Name (Hero);
e PAN India presence of network;

e A well-defined and scalable organizational structure based on product, territory and process
knowledge;

e Experienced and stable senior management team;

o Cost of borrowing being one of the lowest in the industry;

e More than 7.5 Million happy customers;

e Consistent financial track record with rapid growth in AUMs; and

e Strong relationships with public, private as well as foreign banks, institutions and investors.

Weaknesses
e Business and growth directly linked with the GDP growth of the country; and
e Retail portfolios also likely to come under stress

Opportunities
e Large untapped market, both rural and urban and also geographically;

e Huge opportunity to finance as more and more customers are likely to go for Technology
upgradation; and

e On boarding customers on technology platform and effectively used for extending credit on
their working capital needs and also for enhancing our digital footprint on recovery.

Threats

e All risks associated with pandemic;

e Inadequate availability of bank finance and upsurge in borrowing cost; and
e Competition from captive finance companies, small banks etc.

Future Strategy

The Board has determined the following medium-term and long term strategies to achieve its
corporate goals over a period of next 1-2 years:

e Periodical review of pandemic risks, business continuity plan, liquidity management;

e To focus on digital initiatives to effectively service customers and to educate customers on
the digital payment of EMIs;

e Effective use and implementation of data analytics in the process of loan disbursement and
loan recovery;

e Further enhancing quality of loan portfolio;
e Maintaining customer loyalty through winning relationship and customer satisfaction; and

e Promoting Work from Home, innovative method of working culture, employee up-skilling and
re-skilling.

OUTLOOK

Indian economy will continue its growth trajectory for FY-23 with major rating agencies and
think tanks projecting a growth of 7-7.5% p.a. While being on a growth path, FY-23 has come up
with its own set of challenges like surge in crude oil prices & commodity prices, soaring inflation
& rising Geo-Political tensions. However, the momentum of economic activity & opportunities
of growth has remained intact despite the aforesaid challenges. The economic growth will be
driven by expected normal monsoon, continued vaccination drive, increase in public & private
investment and continuous support by Government & RBI through favorable monetary and fiscal
policy.
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The Company combine with strong parentage, liquidity and clear business strategy is well
equipped to take on opportunities for all line of businesses. Economic recovery and increased
consumption will lead to rise in credit demand from across the spectrum of customers and will
drive growth.

HFCL is responsive to the changing landscape in the financial services industry. It is confidently
better placed to overcome the new challenges and sustain its performance in a challenging
environment.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This report contains forward-looking statements extracted from reports of Government Authorities
/ Bodies, Industry Associations etc., available in the public domain, which may involve risks and
uncertainties including, but not limited to, economic conditions, government policies, dependence
on certain businesses, and other factors. Actual results, performance, or achievements could
differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. This report
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements included herein and the notes thereto.
The Company does not undertake to update these statements.
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ANNEXURE - B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is about meeting our strategic goals responsibly and transparently, while
being accountable to our stakeholders. It is an interplay between people, processes, performance
and purpose. At Hero FinCorp Limited (“the Company”), we feel proud to belong to a Company
whose visionary founders laid the foundation stone for good governance long back and made it
an integral principle of the business, as demonstrated in the words above.

The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures
fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all stakeholders comprising
regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company’s
hallmark inherited from the HERO culture and ethos.

The Company is always committed towards achieving the highest standards of Corporate
Governance by staying true to its core values:

e Customer First
e Transparency

e Integrity

e Professionalism

The Company continually works towards implementing robust, resilient and best-in-class
corporate practices in every facet of its operations and in all spheres of its activities, thereby
generating higher returns and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) are responsible for and committed to sound principles of
Corporate Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the
management serves the short and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.
This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective,
informed and independent Board. We keep our governance practices under continuous review
and benchmark ourselves to best practices across the Country.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At Hero FinCorp, we believe that a diversified, active and well-informed Board is necessary
to ensure highest standards of Corporate Governance. We believe that an enlightened Board
consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to
improve the quality of governance.

The statutory and other significant and material information is placed before the Board to enable
it to discharge its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the
Company’s corporate governance philosophy.

The Company’s policy is to have an appropriate blend of independent and Non-Independent
Directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of
governance and management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2022, the Company’s Board consists of 6 (Six) Directors, which includes 2 (two)
Executive Directors, 2 (two) Non- Executive Directors and 2 (two) Non-Executive & Independent
Directors.
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Note:

(i) None of the Directors holds office as a director, including alternate director, in more than
twenty (20) Companies at the same time. None of them has directorships in more than
ten (10) Public Companies. For reckoning the limit of Public Companies, directorships of
Private Companies that are either Holding or Subsidiary Company of a Public Company are
included.

(ii) As per declarations received, none of the Directors serves as an Independent Director in
more than seven (7) Listed Companies.

(iii) Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) along with rules framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing
Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors,
the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as
mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149(6)
of the Act and that they are independent of the management. Further, the Independent
Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained
with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as given above, the outstanding attendance
record and participation of the directors in Board/Committee meetings indicate their
commitment and ability to devote adequate time to their responsibilities as the Company’s
fiduciaries.

NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD
BY NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Details of equity shares held by Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) are as
follows—-

Name of Director _Category No. of shares held Beneficiary

5,92,259 Self

On behalf of Brijmohan Lal Om
Parkash, Partnership Firm

On behalf of Pawan Munjal
Family Trust

Non-Executive 36,08,812

Dr. Pawan Munjal Director

7,90,394

Apart from the above, none of the Non-Executive (including Independent) Directors hold any
shares (as own or on behalf of any other person on beneficial basis) in the Company as on March
31, 2022.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Act define an ‘Independent Director’ as a person who is not a promoter or employee or one
of the key managerial personnel of the Company or its subsidiaries. Further, the person should
not have a material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company or its subsidiaries,
during the two immediate preceding financial years or during the current financial year, apart
from receiving remuneration as an Independent Director.

We abide by these definitions of Independent Director and based on the disclosures received from
all the Independent Directors and in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill
the conditions specified in the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the
management.

Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, eminent people having an independent
standing in their respective field / profession and who can effectively contribute to the
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Company’s business and policy decisions are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, for appointment, as an Independent Director on the Board. The Committee inter
alia considers qualification, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of Directorship(s)
and Membership(s) held in various committees of other Companies and determining Directors’
independence. The Board considers the Committee’s recommendation and takes appropriate
decision.

During the period under review, no Independent Director has resigned from the Board of the
Company.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Schedule IV of the Act and the Rules made thereunder mandate that the Independent Directors
of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the Management. At such meetings, the Independent
Directors discuss, among other matters, the performance of the Company and risks faced by it,
the flow of information to the Board, competition, strategy, leadership strengths and weaknesses,
governance, compliance, board movements, human resource matters and performance of the
executive members of the Board, including the Chairman. During the year, the Independent
Directors met without the presence of the Management.

SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the reporting financial year, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company, was held on April 28, 2021, whereat the following items as enumerated under Schedule
IV to the Act were discussed:

e Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

e Review of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

e Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
Company management and the Board.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is based on various factors
which includes participation and contribution by a Director, commitment, effective deployment
of knowledge and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of
behaviour and judgment.

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP

There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the
Company, apart from the sitting fees and commission, if any, received by them for attending the
Meetings of the Board and Committee(s) thereof.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year 2021-22, your Board met 8 (Eight) times i.e. on April 29, 2021, June 23,
2021, July 22, 2021, November 09, 2021, December 16, 2021, January 17, 2022, January 28, 2022 and
March 05, 2022 respectively. The gap between any two meetings has been less than one hundred
and twenty days as required under Section 173 of the Act.

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

Agenda papers along with the necessary documents and information are circulated to the Board
and the members of the Board Committee(s) well in advance before each meeting of the Board
and Committee(s) thereof. In addition to the general business items, the following items/
information is regularly placed before the Board and/or Committees to the extent applicable:
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e Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates;

e Capital Budgets and any updates;

e Quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company;

e Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board of Directors;

e Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important;

e Any material defaults in financial obligations to and by the Company for substantial non
payments;

e Strategic business proposal or activities to be undertaken;

e Purchase and disposal of major fixed assets;

e Sale of material nature of investments and assets, which are not in the normal course of
Business;

e Reports on Internal Controls Systems, Internal Audit Reviews and Statutory Audit reviews
etc.;

e Related Party Transactions;

e Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’
Services; and

e Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

All material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused
discussions at the meetings. Where it is not practicable to attach any document to the agenda, it is
tabled before the meeting. The quantum and quality of information supplied by the management
to the Board goes well beyond the minimum requirements stipulated under the Act, Secretarial
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and as per the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations, wherever applicable.

MINUTES OF BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Minutes of proceedings of each Board and Committee meetings are recorded and draft minutes
are circulated to Board/Committee members for their comments and/or confirmation within 15
days from the date of the meeting. The inputs, if any, of the Board & Committee Members are
duly incorporated in the minutes after which these are entered in the minutes book within 30
days from the date of meeting.

SUBSIDIARY

The Company has one Subsidiary Company viz. Hero Housing Finance Limited ("HHFL"). HHFL
was granted a Housing Finance Company license by the National Housing Bank (NHB) in August,
2017 to carry on the business of (non-deposit taking) housing finance. HHFL had started its
lending operations from April, 2018. It is an all-inclusive housing finance company providing
hassle-free home loans pan India which includes the following products to its customers: (i) Home
Loans, (ii) Loan Against Property etc.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES
(i) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 7 (Seven) times, i.e. on April 29, 2021,
July 22, 2021, November 09, 2021, November 23, 2021, December 16, 2021, January 28, 2022
and March 22, 2022 respectively.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on date of this Report and the attendance details of
the meetings held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:
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i No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Name of the Members Position Held held g attended 9
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Chairman 7 7
Mrs. Renu Munjal Member 7 6
Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal Member 7 7

The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
NBFC Regulations and SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable. All the Members have the ability
to read and understand financial statements and have relevant finance and / or audit experience.

Mr. Pradeep Dinodia was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
September 14, 2021, to answer the shareholders’ queries, if any.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year.

The Joint Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and representatives
of the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors also attended the Committee meetings upon
invitation of the Chairman. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.

Terms of reference

The Board has adopted an Audit Committee Charter which defines the composition of the Audit
Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting functions in accordance
with the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(\\RBIII).

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include:

e To review the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the audit
process, the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the
Code of Conduct of the Company;

e To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company and discuss with Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;

e To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
Audit process;

e To examine the financial statement, financial results and the Auditors’ report thereon;

e To approve transactions or any subsequent modification to the transactions of the Company
with related parties;

e To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

e To approve payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
Auditors;

e To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems;
e To monitor end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;
e To review the functioning of and compliance with the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy;

e To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems;

e To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities etc. and
e To review Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

(ii) ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALM Committee) met
4 (Four) times, i.e. on April 28, 2021, July 21, 2021, November 08, 2021 and January 27, 2022
respectively.
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The composition of the ALM Committee as on date of this Report and the attendance details of
the meetings held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:

Name of the Members Position Held No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

held attended
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Chairman 4 4
Mrs. Renu Munjal Member 4 4
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Member 4 4
Mr. Sanjay Kukreja Member 4 4

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the ALM Committee, inter alia, include:

e To check the Asset Liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc;

e To help the Company to improve the overall system for effective risk management in various
portfolios held by the Company;

e Compliance with RBI Prudential Norms / directions / guidelines for asset liability management;
and

e Debt Composition and plan of the Company for fund raising.

The sub-committee of the ALM Committee, consisting of heads of various functions, met regularly
during the year to discuss liquidity risk management, management of market risks, funding
and capital planning, growth projections, forecasting and preparation of contingency plans. A
synopsis of the minutes of the meetings of the sub-committee are regularly placed before the
ALM Committee for its consideration.

(iii) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee met 4 (Four) times, i.e. on April
28, 2021, July 21, 2021, November 08, 2021 and January 27, 2022 respectively.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as on date of this Report and the attendance
details of the meetings held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings

Name of the Members Position Held held attended
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Chairman 4 4
Mrs. Renu Munjal Member 4 4
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Member 4 4
Mr. Sanjay Kukreja Member 4 4

The composition of the Risk Management Committee is in line with the provisions of NBFC
Regulations and SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee, inter alia, include:

e To assist the Board in its oversight of various risks;
e To formulate a detailed Risk Management Policy and oversee implementation of the same,
including evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;

e To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and
evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;
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e To review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer; and

e To review and analyse risk exposure related to specific issues and provide oversight of risk
across the organization.

(iv) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) timei.e. on
April 29, 2021, July 22, 2021 and November 09, 2021 respectively.

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on date of this Report and the
attendance details of the meetings held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:

Name of the Members Position Held No. th':ﬁletmgs No.ac;:;zztcllngs
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Chairman 3 3
Dr. Pawan Munjal Member 3 3
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Member 3 3
Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal Member 3 3

Mr. Pradeep Dinodia was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
September 14, 2021, to answer the shareholders’ queries, if any.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter alia, include:

e To formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors the Company’s policies, relating to
the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees, criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director;

e To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board
of Directors;

e To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who might be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal;

e To extend the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

e To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

e To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees; and

e To devise a policy on “Board diversity”.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration paid to the Executive Director(s) is approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and endorsed by the Board of Directors of the Company, in line with the approval
granted by the shareholders of the Company. At the Board Meeting, only the Non-Executive
Directors participate in the business pertaining to the approval of the remuneration to be paid to
the Executive Director. The remuneration is fixed considering various factors such as qualification,
experience, prevailing remuneration in the industry and the current financial position of the
Company.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are paid sitting fees of Rs. 50,000 for attending
each meeting of the Board and Committees of the Board, other than the Committee of Directors.
The Non-Executive Directors are also entitled to remuneration by way of commission aggregating
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upto 1% of net profits of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197 and 198 of the
Act in addition to the sitting fees.

The details of the remuneration paid / payable to Mrs. Renu Munjal, Managing Director and Mr.
Abhimanyu Munjal, Joint Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022 are given below:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Mrs. Renu Munjal Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal
Salary* 105,843,086 69,972,074
Contribution
- Provident Fund 6,628,884 3,338,496
- Super Annuation Fund 8,286,106 -

Variable Pay - -

Total 120,758,076 73,310,570

Period of Contract September 01, 2020 to June 01, 2021 to May 31, 2026
August 31, 2025

Notice Period and Managing Director, liable Joint Managing Director, liable

Severance Fees to retire by rotation. There to retire by rotation. There is no

is no separate provision for separate provision for payment
payment of Severance fees.  of Severance fees.

Employee Stock Options

(\\ESOPH) Nll N|I

* Salary includes basic salary, perquisites and allowances, payment and expenses incurred on
perquisites.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the year ended March
31, 2022 are given below:

(Amount in Rupees)

Name of the Directors Sitting Fees Commission Total
Dr. Pawan Munjal 5,50,000 - 5,50,000
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia 16,00,000 - 16,00,000
Mr. Sanjay Kukreja - - -

Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal 9,50,000 - 9,50,000

(v) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met on
April 28, 2021.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on date of this Report and the
attendance details of the meeting held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:

. No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Name of the Members Position Held held g attended 9
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Chairman 1 1
Mrs. Renu Munjal Member 1 1
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Member 1 1
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Mr. Pradeep Dinodia was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
September 14, 2021, to answer the shareholders’ queries, if any.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter alia, include:

e To consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders, debenture holders and other security
holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares,
non-receipt of balance sheet and non- receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of interest/
principal on debt instruments; and

e To look into matters that can facilitate better security-holders services and relations.

NAME, DESIGNATION AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPLIANCE OFFICER UNDER SEBI
LISTING REGULATIONS, 2015:

Mr. Shivendra Suman, Head - Compliance and Company Secretary
9, Community Centre, Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi - 110057
Telephone No. 011-49487150

E-mail: investors@herofincorp.com

INVESTORS COMPLAINTS

Details of Complaints received from the Equity shareholders and redressed during FY 2021-22
are, as follows:

Opening at the Received Resolved Closing at the
Sr. Description begn:mmg_of dL_lrmg _the dL_lrmg _the end of the
No. the financial financial financial . .
financial year
year year year
1. Complaints 5 NIL NIL 5
Total 5 NIL NIL 5

During FY 2021-22, no complaints were received from the Debenture holders of the Company.

(vi) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
met on April 29, 2021.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility as on date of this Report and the attendance
details of the meetings held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:

. No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Name of the Members Position Held held 9 attended g
Mrs. Renu Munjal Chairperson 1 1
Dr. Pawan Munjal Member 1 1
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Member 1 1
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Member 1 1

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Corporate Social Responsibility, inter alia, include to oversee:

e Formulation of the CSR Policy as specified in Schedule VII of the Act indicating the activities,
projects, timelines and expenditure thereon;
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e Recommendation of the CSR Policy to the Board;
e Recommendation of the expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred above;
e Monitoring & oversight the implementation of the Policy; and

e Formulation and recommendation to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the
CSR Policy and in accordance with the applicable Rules. Further recommending alteration
in such Plan to the Board of Directors, at any time during the financial year, based on the
reasonable justification to that effect.

(vii) IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE
Meeting, Composition and Attendance

During the year under review, the members of the IT Strategy Committee met 3 (Three) times
on April 28, 2021, October 22, 2021 and January 27, 2022 respectively.

The composition of the IT Strategy Committee as on date of this Report and the attendance
details of the meetings held during the FY 2021-22 are, given below:

. No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Name of the Members Position Held held g attended g
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia Chairman 3 3
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal Member 3 3
Mr. Sanjay Kukreja Member 3 3
Mr. Sajin Mangalathu Member 3 3

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee, inter alia, include:

e To approve the IT strategy and policy documents;
e To recommend the appointment of IT / Information Systems (“IS”) Auditor; and

e To review the IT / IS Audit report and provide its observation / recommendations to the
Board.

(viii) COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The Committee of Directors deals with routine matters of the Company on day to day basis and the
matters relating to allotment, transfer, transmission, transposition, issue of new/duplicate share
certificates, matters relating to borrowing, investment of surplus funds, opening and closure of
Bank accounts, allotment of NCDs, issue of commercial paper (CP) & other debt instrument and
all other matters as prescribed and delegated to the Committee by the Board from time to time.
The Committee of Directors comprises of Dr. Pawan Munjal, Mrs. Renu Munjal and Mr. Abhimanyu
Munjal as its members.

This Committee generally meets as and when required to deal with day to day affairs of the
Company. During the year under review, 15 (Fifteen) meetings of the Committee of Directors
were held.

Ason March 31, 2022, the Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements specified
in Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI Listing Regulations except Regulations 17(1)(b), Regulation 19(1)
(b) and 23 which have been made applicable to the Company as a High Value Debt Listed Entity
effective September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2023. The Company
has been providing the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on Corporate
Governance submitted to the Stock Exchanges.
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DISCLOSURES

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In terms of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, all related party transactions entered into
by the Company during FY 2021-22 were duly approved by the Audit Committee. No approval
of the Board was required as all the transactions were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary
course of business. Disclosure of related party transactions as required under Indian Accounting
Standard 24 (Ind AS-24) were, however, disclosed to the Board.

The transactions with the Related Parties are on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business of the Company and do not have any potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of location, day, date and time of the General Meetings held during the last three years
and resolutions passed there at are given below.

DETAILS OF GENERAL MEETINGS
(A) Details of the last 3 General Meetings of the Company:

Financial Day, Date & Summary of Special Resolution(s)

L .
Year ocation Time Passed
Annual General Meeting
2020-21 Video Conferencing | Tuesday, Special Resolution(s):
(VC) / Other Audio- | September 14, e Re-Appointment of Mr. Pradeep
Visual Means | 2021 at 5:00 P.M. Dinodia (DIN: 00027995) as non-
(OAVM)/(e-AGM) executive independent director of

the Company for the second term
of 5 (five) years.

e Re-Appointment of Mr. Abhimanyu
Munjal (DIN: 02822641) as Joint
Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer (CEQO) of the Company for
the period of 5 (five) years and
fixation of his remuneration.

e Payment of Remuneration for the
financial year 2020-21 to Mrs. Renu
Munjal (DIN: 00012870), Managing
Director and Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal
(DIN: 02822641), Joint Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of the Company.

e Revision in terms of remuneration to
Mrs. Renu Munjal (DIN: 00012870),
Managing Director of the Company.

2019-20 Video Conferencing [ Tuesday,

(VC) / Other Audio- | September 15,
Visual Means [ 2020 at 3:00 P.M.
(OAVM)/(e-AGM)
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2018-19 Friday, Special Resolution(s):
September 06, e Enhancement in

2019 at 3:00 P.M. Borrowings.

Jacranda, Indian
Habitat Centre,
Lodhi Road,

the Ilimit of

New Delhi - 110003

To provide the security for securing
the Borrowings.

The shareholders who participated at the last e-AGM sought clarifications on wide-ranging subjects
such as Company strategy for combatting COVID -19, minimum capital adequacy requirements,

Dividend payout, update on Hero Housing Finance Limited business, etc.

(B) During the year, the Company has passed the following resolutions through Postal

Ballot:

Financial
Year

Date of
Postal
Ballot
Notice

Date of
Postal
Ballot
Result

Kind of
Resolution

Details of Voting
Pattern of Special
Resolutions

Summary of
Resolution(s)
Passed

2021-22

January
28, 2022

March 09,
2022

Ordinary
Resolution

Increase and
Reclassification
of authorized
share capital and
consequent alteration
to the Memorandum
of Association.

Special
Resolution

Particulars

Percentage

Assent

99.99999

Dissent

0.00001

Total

100.00000

Alteration of the
object clause of the
Memorandum of
Association of the
Company.

Special
Resolution

Particulars

Percentage

Assent

99.9998

Dissent

0.0002

Total

100.00000

Issuance of
compulsorily
convertible preference
shares by way of
preferential issue on
a private placement
basis.

Ordinary
Resolution

Appointment of M/s.
B R Maheswari &
Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (Firm
Registration No:
001035N/ N500050)
and M/s. Price
Waterhouse LLP,
(Firm Registration
Number: 301112E/
E300264) as joint
statutory auditors of
the Company.

(C) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise:

Mr. Devesh Kumar Vasisht (CP No. 13700), Partner of M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, New Delhi.
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(D) Procedure for Postal Ballot:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Company provides facility to the members to exercise
votes through electronic voting system (‘remote e-voting’), in addition to physical ballot. Postal
ballot notices and forms are dispatched along with the postage pre-paid business reply envelope
to members/beneficial owners through email at their registered email IDs and through physical
copy to the members who have not registered their email IDs.

The Company also publishes notice in the newspapers for the information of the members.
Voting rights are reckoned on the equity shares held by the members as on the cut-off date.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Company appoints a scrutiniser for conducting the
postal ballot process in a fair and transparent manner. The scrutiniser submits his consolidated
report to the Chairman and the voting results are announced by the Chairman by placing the
same along with the scrutiniser’s report on the Company’s website, besides being communicated
to the stock exchanges. The resolution, if passed by requisite majority, is deemed to have been
passed on the last date specified by the Company for receipt of duly completed postal ballot
forms or remote e-voting.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

For the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the financial results of the Company were announced
on:

a) First quarter ended June 30, 2021 July 22, 2021

b) Second quarter ended September 30, 2021 November 09, 2021
¢) Third quarter ended December 31, 2021 January 28, 2022
d) Fourth quarter ended March 31, 2022 April 29, 2022

For the year ending March 31, 2023, the financial results of the Company are likely to be
announced on (Tentative and Subject to Change):

a) First quarter ending on June 30, 2022 Third week of July, 2022

b) Second quarter ending on September 30, 2022 Second week of October, 2022
c) Third quarter ending on December 31, 2022 Third week of January, 2023
d) Fourth quarter ending on March 31, 2023 Second week of April, 2023

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

(a) Results

The Company publishes limited reviewed un-audited standalone financial results on a half
yearly basis and quarterly basis. However, the Company publishes the audited standalone and
consolidated financial results for the complete financial year.

(b) Newspapers wherein results are normally published

The quarterly/ half-yearly/ annual financial results were published in ‘Financial Express (English)
Newspaper & Jansatta (Hindi) Newspaper.

(c) Website, where displayed

The financial results and the official news releases are also placed on the Company’s website www.
herofincorp.com in the ‘Investors’ section on the following link - https://www.herofincorp.
com/investor-relations/disclosures-under-regulation-62-of-the-SEBI-LODR/financial-
performance

(d) Annual Report

The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, the audited financial statements (standalone &
consolidated), Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA)
report and other important information is circulated to shareholders and other stakeholders and
is also available on the Company’s website at www.herofincorp.com in the ‘Investors’ section
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on the following link - https://www.herofincorp.com/investor-relations/disclosures-
under-regulation-62-of-the-SEBI-LODR/financial-performance.

(e) Reminder to Investors

Periodical reminders for unclaimed shares and unpaid dividends are sent to shareholders
as per records of the Company. These details are also uploaded on website of the Company
at www.herofincorp.com in the ‘Investors’ section on the following link - https://www.
herofincorp.com/investor-relations/disclosures-under-regulation-62-of-the-SEBI-
LODR/financial-performance

(f) Official news releases

All financial and other vital official news releases and documents under the SEBI Listing
Regulations, are also communicated to the concerned stock exchanges, besides being placed on
the Company’s website.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’' INFORMATION

i) Annual General Meeting - date, time and venue:
Annual General Meeting (for the Financial Year 2021-22)
Day: Friday
Date: September 16, 2022
Time: 03:00 P.M.

Venue: The Company will conduct the meeting through VC / OAVM, relevant details of
which have been provided in the notice of AGM.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through its circulars Nos. 20/2020, 02/2021,
19/2021, 21/2021 and 2/2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 issued by SEBI (collectively referred to as ‘Circulars’),
Companies are allowed to hold Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM up to December
31, 2022 and send financial statements (including Board’s report, Auditors’ Report and
other documents to be attached therewith) through email.

Accordingly, the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2022 along with the Notice of AGM
are being sent by email to the members and all other persons/entities entitled to receive
the same. As stated above, 315t AGM of the Company will be convened through VC or
OAVM.

i) Financial Year:

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1St April of a year and ends on 315t March
of the following year.

ili) Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable
iv) Listing on Stock Exchange:

The Non-Convertible Debentures and the Commercial Papers issued by the Company are
listed on -

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

The Company has paid Annual Listing Fees for FY 2022-23 to the exchange within the
stipulated time.

v) Stock Code: Not Applicable*

m } { Board’s Report




31st Annual Report 2021-22 PF HeroFinCorp.

vi)

vii)
viii)

ix)

xi)

Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year: Not Applicable*

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL
Index etc: Not Applicable*

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall
explain the reason thereof: Not Applicable

Share transfer system:

In terms of Regulation 61(4) read with Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as
amended from time to time, securities can be transferred only in dematerialized form. All
requests for transfer and/or dematerialisation of securities held in physical form, should be
lodged with the office of the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent for dematerialisation.

The Share transfer job is being handled by the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company
i.e. M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited. During the year 2021-22, 19,620 shares were
transferred (including transmission) and the said transfers were affected within the prescribed
period. Shares under objection were returned to respective shareholder.

Company’s Registrar Details:
Equity Shares
M/s Link Intime India Private Limited

Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot Number NH-2, C1 Block,
LSC Near Savitari Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058

Phone No. 011-49411000; Fax No. 011-41410591
Non-Convertible Debentures and Commercial Papers:

M/s KFin Technologies Limited

(Formerly Known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)

Selenium, Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32,

Financial District Nanakramguda,

Serilingampally Hyderabad Rangareddy, Telangana - 500032
Phone: Tel: +91 40 6716 2222, 79611000, Fax: 040- 2300 1153

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March 2022:

No. of Shares held
No. of
Catedories fully paid No. o_f partly ToFaI no. of Percentage of
g up equity p_ald up equity shares Shareholding
equity shares held
shares held
held

Promoters’ Holding 10,12,56,432 0 10,12,56,432 79.54
Non - Promoters 2,60,49,436 806 2,60,50,242 20.46
Holding
Grand Total 12,73,06,674 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

As per the notification dated September 10, 2018 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA), made compulsory for every holder of the securities of unlisted public companies
who intends to transfer such securities on or after October 02, 2018 shall get such
securities dematerialized before the transfer or who subscribes to any securities of an
unlisted public company (whether by way of private placement or bonus shares or rights
offer) on or after October 02, 2018 shall ensure that all his existing securities are held in
dematerialized form before such subscription.
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The shares of the Company are traded in compulsory demat segment. As on March 31, 2022,
12,54,42,159 equity shares (98.53%) of the total share capital was held in dematerialized
form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL).

xii) Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on
equity: Not Applicable

xiii) Plant locations: Not Applicable
xiv) Address for correspondence
Shareholders/investors can correspond with the Company at the following address:

Registered Office:

34, Community Centre, Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi - 110 057
Phone: 011-4604 4100, 011-4948 7150; Fax: 011-4948 7197 (98)
Company Identification No. (CIN): U74899DL1991PLC046774
Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAACH0157]

Tax Identification Number (TIN): 07850173974

GST Number (GSTIN): 07AAACH0157]1ZS

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mr. Shivendra Suman

Tel No: 011-46044100; 011-49487150

Email: investors@herofincorp.com Website: www.herofincorp.com

Or

Any query relating to the financial statements of the Company can be addressed to:
Mr. Jayesh Jain, Chief Financial Officer.

xv) Credit Rating
The list of credit ratings for all instruments has been provided in the Board's Report.
xvi) Dates of book closure: Not Applicable

During the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any Final
Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2021-22.

xvii) Dividend Payment

During the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any Final
Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2021-22.

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchange and hence certain
details are not applicable to the Company.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

As per section 124(5) of the Act, any money transferred by the Company to the unpaid dividend
account and remaining unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer shall
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (the ‘Fund’) set up by the Central
Government. Accordingly, the unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the previous financial years has
already been transferred by the Company to the said Fund from September 2015 onwards.
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31t Annual Report 2021-22

Communications are being sent to members who have not yet claimed dividend for 2014-15,
requesting them to claim the same as well as unpaid dividend, if any, for subsequent years.

The following are the details of unclaimed dividends which are due to be transferred to the
Fund in the coming years including current year. Further, members who have not claimed the
dividends till date are requested to verify their records and send their claim, if any, before the
same becomes due for transfer to IEPF:

TABULAR DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDEND PAYMENT SINCE 2014-15

Dividend Date of Last Date of claiming

Year %age Declaration Date of Payment of Unpaid Dividend
2020-21 10 14/09/2021 17/09/2021 14/10/2028
2019-20 25.5 15/09/2020 18/09/2020 15/10/2027
2018-19 42.50 06/09/2019 09/09/2019 06/10/2026
2017-18 28 21/09/2018 24/09/2018 21/10/2025
2016-17 15 29/09/2017 03/10/2017 29/10/2024
2015-16 10 15/09/2016 16/09/2016 15/10/2023
2014-15 20 15/09/2015 21/09/2015 15/10/2022

The Company has uploaded the details of unclaimed dividend on the Company's website https://
www.herofincorp.com/ and also on website specified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/services.html

TRANSFER / TRANSMISSION / TRANSPOSITION OF SHARES

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), vide its Circular No. MRD/DoP/Cir-05/2009
dated 20th May, 2009 and Circular No. MRD/DoP/SE/RTA/Cir-03/2010 dated 7th January, 2010
made it mandatory that a copy of the PAN Card is to be furnished to the Company in the
following cases:

- deletion of name of deceased shareholder(s) where shares are held jointly in the name of two
or more shareholders;

- transmission of shares to the legal heirs where shares are held solely in the name of deceased
shareholder; and

- transposition of shares where order of names of shareholders are to be changed in the
physical shares held jointly by two or more shareholders.

Investors, therefore, are requested to furnish the self-attested copy of PAN card, at the time of
sending the physical share certificate(s) to the Company, for effecting any of the above stated
requests.

Shareholders are also requested to keep record of their specimen signature before lodgment of
shares with the Company to avoid probability of signature mismatch at a later date.

CONSOLIDATION OF MULTIPLE FOLIOS

Shareholder(s) of the Company who have multiple accounts in identical name(s) or holding more
than one Share Certificate in the same name under different Ledger Folio(s) are requested to
apply for consolidation of such Folio(s) and send the relevant Share Certificates to the Company.
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NOMINATION FACILITY

Provision of Section 72 of the Act, read with rule 19(1) of the rules made thereunder extends
nomination facility to individuals holding shares in the physical form. To help the legal heirs/
successors get the shares transmitted in their favour, shareholder(s) are requested to furnish the
particulars of their nomination in the prescribed Nomination Form. Shareholder(s) holding shares
in Dematerialized form are requested to register their nominations directly with their respective
DPs.

UPDATE YOUR CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS/ BANK MANDATE/ EMAIL ID

To ensure all communications/ monetary benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding
shares in physical form are requested to notify to the Company, change in their address / bank
details / email ID instantly by written request under the signatures of sole/ first joint holder.

Shareholder(s) holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify change in bank
details / address / email ID directly with their respective DPs.

QUOTE FOLIO NO. / DP ID NO.

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos., as the case
may be, in all correspondence with the Company.

Shareholders are also requested to quote their Email IDs, Contact/Fax numbers (landline/ cell
phone) for prompt reply to their correspondence.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016 (the ‘Rules’) notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
effective September 7, 2016, as amended, all shares in respect of which dividend has remained
unclaimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more are required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

During the year, notices were sent to the concerned shareholders whose shares were liable to be
transferred to IEPF/Suspense Account under the said Rules for taking appropriate action and full
details of such shareholders and shares due for transfer to IEPF Authority/Suspense Account have
also been uploaded on Company’s website at link https://www.herofincorp.com/investor-
relations/unclaimed-unpaid-dividend.

An option to claim from IEPF Authority, all unpaid/unclaimed dividends or other amounts and
the unclaimed shares transferred to IEPF, is available to members. Members may make their
claim by following the due procedure for refund as prescribed under the said rules. Details of
refund process are also available on website of the Company at https://www.herofincorp.
com/investor- relations/unclaimed-unpaid-dividend.

Details of dividends remaining unpaid/unclaimed have been duly uploaded on the website of the
Company at www.herofincorp.com and at the website of IEPF authority at www.iepf.gov.in.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

In accordance with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and MCA
circulars, the Company will also provide e-voting facility for members attending the ensuing AGM
through VC or OAVM. Shareholders who are attending the AGM through VC or OAVM and who
have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right of voting
at the meeting. The cut-off date to determine the number of shareholders who are eligible to
vote thereat, as per the said Rules, shall be September 09, 2022 and the remote e-voting shall
be open for a period of three (3) days, from September 13, 2022 (9.00 a.m. IST) till September 15,
2022 (5.00 p.m. IST) (both days inclusive).
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Detailed procedure is given in the Notice of AGM and is also placed on the Company’s website
www.herofincorp.com
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Shareholders may get in touch with the Company Secretary at
for further assistance.

The Company has appointed Mr. Devesh Kumar Vasisht (FCS-8488, CP No. 13700), Partner of
M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates, failing him, Ms. Priyanka, (Membership No. F10898, CP No.
16187), Partner of M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates, Practice Company Secretaries, New Delhi
(Firm Registration No. P2001DE052900) as the Scrutinizer for to scrutinizing the remote e-voting

& e-voting process to ensure that the process is carried out in a fair and transparent manner.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Particulars

Details

Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with
the interests of listed entity at large.

There are no material related party
transactions during the year under review
that have potential conflict with the interest
of the Company.

Details of non-compliance by the Company,
penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by Stock Exchange(s) or the Securities
and Exchange Board of India or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital
markets, during the last three years.

Nil

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism /
Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no
personnel have been denied access to the audit
committee.

In compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Act and other applicable regulations,
the Audit Committee of the Company
recommended the Board of Directors for
the approval of the policy/mechanism on
dealing with whistle blowers. However, the
Audit Committee reviews Whistle Blower
cases on quarterly basis. During the year,
no individual was denied access to the Audit
Committee for reporting concerns, if any.
The said policy/mechanism is disclosed
on the Company’s website, link for which
is https://www.herofincorp.com/
company-policies.

The Company has put in place a whistle
blower policy to support the Code of Conduct.
The details about the vigil mechanism forms
part of the Board’s report.

Web link where policy for determining ‘Material’
Subsidiaries is disclosed.

The Company does not have any ‘Material’
Subsidiary Company.

Details of compliance with mandatory
requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements.

Details of compliance with non-mandatory
and mandatory requirements are mentioned
below.

Web link where policy on dealing with related
party transactions;

The policy on dealing with related party
transactions is disclosed on the Company’
website, link for which is https://www.
herofincorp.com/company-policies

Disclosure of commodity price risks and

commodity hedging activities.

Not Applicable

|
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Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

Not Applicable

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice
that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as directors
of Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority.

The Company has obtained certificate from
M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as directors
of Companies by the Board/Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority. The same is reproduced at the end
of this report and marked as Annexure I.

Where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation of any committee of the Board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant
financial year, the same to be disclosed along
with reasons thereof.

During FY 2021-22, all the recommendations
of the various Committees of the Board were
accepted by the Board.

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity
and its subsidiaries to the statutory auditor and
all entities in the network firm/network entity of
which the statutory auditor is a part.

M/s B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
("BSR") (ICAI Firm Registration Number:
101248W/W-100022) resigned as the
Statutory Auditors with effect from
December 16, 2021 due to their ineligibility
to continue as statutory auditors in terms of
RBI circular dated April 27, 2021.

In view of the above, M/s. B R Maheswari
& Co. LLP (Firm Registration No: 001035N/
N500050) and M/s. Price Waterhouse LLP
(Firm Registration No: 301112E/E300264)
were appointed as the Joint Statutory
Auditors of the Company with effect from
December 16, 2021.

The particulars of payment of fees to
Statutory Auditors for FY 2021-22 is given
below:

Hero
Hero N
FinCorp ?;:::22 Total
L' i - -
Particulars imited Limited | (Amount
in Rs.
Amount A(?:‘O;:t ¢
(in Rs. Cr) cr)
Audit Fees 0.95 0.17 1.12
Ililml'ted 0.33 0.12 0.45
eview
(F:ertlﬁcatlon 0.28 0.12 0.40
ees
Sroup ) 0.07 - 0.07
eporting
Others 0.47 - 0.47
Out of pocket 0.10 0.01 0.11
expenses
Total 2.20 0.42 2.62

Further no fees were paid to any entity in
the network firm/network entity of which
the Statutory Auditor is a part.
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Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment | [ Number of | Number of Number of
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition complaints | complaints complaints
and Redressal) Act, 2013. filed disposed off pending as
during the |during the year |on end of
year the year
0 0 0

Disclosure by the Company of ‘Loans and Nil

advances in the nature of loans to firms/

companies in which directors are interested by

name and amount.

Familiarization Program Details of familiarisation programmes
imparted to Independent Directors is
disclosed on its website at:
https://www.herofincorp.com/about-
us

NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT OF SUB-PARAS ABOVE, WITH REASONS THEREOF SHALL BE
DISCLOSED

Composition of the Board

Currently, the composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements of the Act. In
view of the provisions under the SEBI Listing Regulations relating to Board composition which
have been made applicable to High Value Debt Listed entities, the Company shall reconstitute its
Board within the specified timelines.

Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

In view of the provisions under the SEBI Listing Regulations relating to Nomination & Remuneration
Committee composition which have been made applicable to High Value Debt Listed entities,
the Company shall reconstitute its Nomination & Remuneration Committee within the specified
timelines.

THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES
(A) TO (I) OF REGULATION 62(1A) OF SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS
SHALL BE MADE IN THE SECTION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT

As on March 31, 2022, the Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI Listing Regulations except Regulations 17(1)(b)
which have been made applicable to the Company as a High Value Debt Listed Entity effective
September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2023. The Company has been
providing the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance
submitted to the Stock Exchanges.

DECLARATION SIGNED BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR STATING THAT
THE MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL HAVE AFFIRMED COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT
OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director.
In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company’s website (www.herofincorp.
com).
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All the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by the Managing Director to this
effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as Annexure II.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM EITHER THE AUDITORS OR
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SHALL BE ANNEXED WITH
THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Company has obtained compliance certificate from the Practising Company Secretaries M/s
Sanjay Grover & Associates on Corporate Governance. The same is part of the Annual Report as
Annexure - C.
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Annexure - 1

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

To,

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Members of

Hero FinCorp Limited

(CIN: U74899DL1991PLC046774)
34, Community Centre, Basant Lok,
Vasant Vihar, New Delhi -110057

1.

2.

Place: New Delhi

That the debt securities of Hero Fincorp Limited (herein after referred as "the Company")
are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

We have examined the relevant disclosures received from the Directors, registers, records,
forms, and returns maintained by the Company and produced before us by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i)
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications and
examination of the disclosures under section 184, 189, 170, 164, 149 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and Director Identification Number (DIN) status at MCA portal, www.mca.
gov.in, and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we certify that
none of the below named Directors on the Board of the Company as on March 31, 2022
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the
Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authority:

Sr. No. Name of Director Dwectoaic;s;:;ﬁcatmn ApE:i;et:*nfent
1. Dr. Pawan Munjal 00004223 16/12/1991
2. Mrs. Renu Munjal 00012870 11/07/1992
3. Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal 02822641 01/06/2016
4. Mr. Pradeep Dinodia 00027995 29/05/2016
5. Mr. Sanjay Kukreja 00175427 15/09/2016
6. Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal 00291126 06/12/2019

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is
the responsibility of the management of the Company and our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is based on the information and records available up to this date and we
have no responsibility to update this certificate for the events and circumstances occurring
after the date of the certificate.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900

Date: April 29, 2022

Devesh Kumar Vasisht

Partner

CP No.: 13700 / Mem. No. F8488
UDIN: FO08488D000428160
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Annexure - I1

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I
hereby confirm that, all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have
affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

For Hero FinCorp Limited

Renu Munjal
Managing Director
Place: London
Date: April 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE - C

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

To
The Members
Hero FinCorp Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Hero FinCorp
Limited (“the Company”), for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, as mentioned under
Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR Regulations”). The Company is a ‘high
value debt listed entity’ as defined under the provisions of the LODR Regulations, which is
effective from 07.09.2021. Accordingly, Regulation 16 to Regulation 27 of the LODR Regulations
is applicable on the Company on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2023.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the Company has complied with provisions of the LODR Regulations and given
explanations, wherever necessary. The Company is required to appoint requisite number of
Independent Directors and reconstitute Nomination & Remuneration Committee upto March 31,
2023.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Place: New Delhi . . . Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900

Date: April 29, 2022
Devesh Kumar Vasisht
Partner

CP No.: 13700 / Mem. No. F8488
UDIN: FO08488D000428380
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ANNEXURE - D

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FY 2021-22

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hero FinCorp Ltd. ("HFCL") has adopted the CSR
policy which has following key points:

A) HFCL's CSR Programme, inter alia, includes achieving one or more of the following
- enhancing environmental and natural capital; supporting rural development;
promoting education including skill development; providing preventive healthcare,
providing sanitation and drinking water; creating livelihoods for people especially those
from disadvantaged sections of society in rural and urban India and preserving and
promoting sports;

B) To develop the required capability and self-reliance of beneficiaries at the grass roots,
in the belief that these are pre-requisites for social and economic development;

C) To carry out CSR Programme in relevant local areas to fulfill commitments arising from
requests by government/regulatory authorities and to earmark amounts of monies and
to spend such monies through such administrative bodies of the government and/or
directly by way of developmental works in the local areas around which the Company
operates;

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SI Name of Designation / Number of meetings Number of meetings

No. Director of CSR Committee of CSR Committee
Nature of held during the year attended during the

Directorship year
1 Mrs. Renu MD & 1 1
Munjal Chairperson
Chairman
> Dr. Pawan - Board of 1 1
Munjal Directors &
Member
Independent
3 MrPradeep  hociore 1 1
Dinodia
Member
4 Mr. Abhimanyu Jt. MD & CEO 1 1
Munjal and Member

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company.

The policy is available on the Company’s website, www.herofincorp.com on the following
link: https://www.herofincorp.com/company-policies and the projects or programs
are available on the Company’s website, www.herofincorp.com on the following link:
https://www.herofincorp.com/csr/

The Composition of CSR Committee is available on the Company’s website, www.
herofincorp.com on the following link: https://www.herofincorp.com/about-us

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

Not applicable. Average CSR obligation for the three immediately preceding financial years
has been lesser than Rs. 10,00,00,000/-.
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any

. . Amount available for set- Amount required to be set-off
Sl. Financial . ) . . . .
N off from preceding financial for the financial year, if any
o. Year . .
years (in Rs.) (in Rs.)
1. 2021-22 3,03,92,342 3,03,92,342
Total 3,03,92,342 3,03,92,342

Note: A contribution of Rs. 10,00,00,000 was made towards PM Cares Fund with respect to
Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Office Memorandum No. CSR-05/1/2020-CSR-MCA dated
28.03.2020. This contribution was made on March 31, 2020, which can be set-off towards
CSR obligation arising in subsequent years. Rs. 6,96,07,658 was adjusted from the payment
to PM Care Fund in FY 2020-21 and the remaining amount of Rs. 3,03,92,342 was adjusted
in FY 2021-22, which was surplus from previous financial year 2019-20.

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

2018-19 Rs. 369.48 crore
2019-20 Rs. 439.01 crore
2020-21 Rs. 51.17 crore
Total Rs. 859.66 crore

Average Net Profit Rs. 286.55 crore

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs. 5,73,11,000

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the previous
financial years. — NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Rs. 3,03,92,342
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c). - Rs. 2,69,18,658

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial Year

(in Rs.)
Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund
to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per
as per section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount (in Date of Name of Amount Date of
Rs.) transfer the Fund transfer
1,53,67,120 1,16,00,000% 19.04.2022 N.A. N.A. N.A.

#Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 1,16,00,000 to Unspent CSR Account as
against its actual obligation of Rs. 1,15,51,538.
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable = Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) - Rs. 1,53,67,120

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl.

No Particular Amount (in Rs.)

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per

(i) section 135(5) >,73,11,000
(i)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (FY 21-22) 1,53,67,120
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or .
(iv) S : ; . . Nil
activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)- .
(v) . Nil
(iv)]
9. (@) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil
Amount Amount Amount transferred to Amount
transferred spent any fund specified under remaining to
Preceding to Unspent in the Schedule VII as per section 9
Sl. _. - . . be spent in
Financial CSR Account reporting 135(6), if any .
No. . X . succeeding
Year under section Financial Fi ial
135 (6) (in Year (in Name of Amount. Date of InarECIa
Rs.) Rs.) theFund (inRs.) transfer Years (in Rs.)
T ———

Total

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
Financial Year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9
Sl. Project Name Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status
No. 1ID of the Year in Duration amount spenton amount of the
Project which the allocated the project spentat project -
project was for the in the the end of Completed
commenced project reporting reporting /Ongoing
(in Rs.) Financial Financial
Year Year

(inRs)  (inRs.)

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil

asset-wise details:-
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset

} { Board’s Report




31t Annual Report 2021-22 # HeroFinCorp.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5):

Reason: In this year, the Company pivoted towards a lot of digital initiatives which resulted
in lesser expense. The following programs therefore had unspent amount at the end of the
financial year:

o Dhancharcha, our financial literacy flagship program, which required social gatherings
was delivered digitally owing to COVID times.

o Hunar, a program that aims at skilling youth in vocational courses, again required
students to gather for vocational training, and hence saw the budget remaining unspent
as this was curtailed given COVID times.

We will provide continuity to these projects with the unspent amount in the upcoming
Financial Year.

For Hero Fincorp Limited

Renu Munjal

Chairperson, CSR Committee
Managing Director

DIN: 00012870

Place: London

Date: 29 April, 2022
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Annexure - E

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

HERO FINCORP LIMITED

(CIN: U74899DL1991PLC046774)

34, Community Centre, Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar,
New Delhi- 110057

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Hero FinCorp Limited (hereinafter called the
“"Company”) whose debt securities are listed on National Stock Exchange Limited. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the
Company.

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliances
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations
and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 315t March, 2022 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings, where applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR);

(vi) The Company primarily provides two-wheeler financing, pre-owned car financing, inventory
funding, loan against property, loans to SMEs and emerging corporates housing loan and
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules, regulations & directions issued by Reserve Bank
of India from time to time, are the laws specifically applicable to the Company. On the basis
of management representation and our check on test basis, we are on the view that the
Company has adequate system to ensure compliance of laws specifically applicable on it and
the Company was generally complied with the these specifically applicable laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard
on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, to the extent applicable, as mentioned above. Further, the Company is generally

} { Board’s Report



31st Annual Report 2021-22 PF HeroFinCorp.

regular in filings with the Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India relating to NBFC
Compliances and National Stock Exchange.

The Company being a ‘high value debt listed entity’ as defined under the provisions of LODR,
regulation 16 to regulation 27 of LODR are applicable on the Company w.e.f 07.09.2021 and
these provisions are applicable on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2023 and on a
mandatory basis thereafter. The Company does not have requisite humber of Independent
Directors as required under Regulation 17 of LODR which it needs to comply with upto March
31, 2023.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent directors.
The changes in the board of directors that took place during the audit period were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance of the meeting and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views
were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the members of the Company through
postal ballot (result declared on March 09, 2022) approved the following resolutions-

e Ordinary resolution for increase and reclassification of authorised share capital and
consequent alteration to the Memorandum of Association of the Company;

e Special resolution for alteration of the object clause of the Memorandum of Association
of the Company;

e Special resolution for Issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares by way of
Preferential Issue on a Private Placement Basis;

e Ordinary resolution for Appointment of M/s. B.R. Maheswari & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants and M/s. Price Waterhouse LLP, Chartered Accountants as joint statutory
auditors of the Company in compliance with RBI Circular dated April 27, 2021;

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900

Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: April 29, 2022 CP No.:10385/M. No. A21089
UDIN: A021089D000238130
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Annexure - F

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

1. Introduction

Hero FinCorp Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as HFCL or the company) recognizes that Related
Party Transactions can present potential or actual conflicts of interest and may raise questions
about whether such transactions are consistent with the Company and its shareholders’ best
interests and in compliance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations,
2015.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the following policy and procedures with
regard to materiality of Related Party Transactions and also ondealing with them as defined
below.

The objective of this policy is to regulate transactions between the Company and its Related
Parties based on the Companies Act 2013, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and other laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

2. Definitions

These definitions should be read together with the definitions contained in SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, and Companies Act, 2013 and
if there is any divergence in the definitions mentioned herein then the definitions contained
in the regulations and Act shall prevail.

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013

“Audit Committee” means the Committee of the Board formed under Section 177 of the
Act.

“Arm’s length transaction” means a transaction between two related parties that is
conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

“Company” means Hero FinCorp Limited.

“Designated Securities” means specified securities, non-convertible debt securities,
non- convertible redeemable preference shares, perpetual debt instrument, perpetual non-
cumulative preference shares, Indian depository receipts, securitised debt instruments,
security receipts, units issued by mutual funds and any other securities as may be specified
by the Board.

“Director” means a person as defined in Section 2(34) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Half Year” means the period of six months commencing on the first day of April or October
of a financial year.

“High Value Debt Listed Entities” means a listed entity which has listed its non-convertible
debt securities and has an outstanding value of listed non-convertible debt securities of INR
500 crore and more.

“Key Managerial Personnel” shall mean the officers/ employees of the Company as
defined in Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Listed Entity” means an entity which has listed, on a recognised stock exchange(s), the
designated securities issued by it or designated securities issued under schemes managed
by it, in accordance with the listing agreement entered into between the entity and the
recognised stock exchange(s).

“Material Modifications” means any modifications to the material related party transactions
which were approved by the Audit Committee or Shareholders during the year which will
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change the complete nature of the transaction and in case of monetary thresholds which is
in excess of 10% of the originally approved transaction, in case of exigencies only.

“Material Related Party Transaction” means a transaction entered individually or taken
together with previous transactions during a financial year value of which exceeds INR
1,000 crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last
audited financial statements of the listed entity, whichever is lower as per the last audited
financial statements of the Company.

“Material Subsidiary” means a subsidiary, whose income or net worth exceeds 10% of the
consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the
immediately preceding accounting year.

“Non-Convertible Debt Securities” means ‘debt securities’ as defined under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021.

“Ordinary course of business” means the usual transactions, customs and practices
undertaken by the Company to conduct its business operations and activities and includes
all such activities which the company can undertake as per Memorandum & Articles of
Association.

“Promoter” means the person/ entity as defined in regulation 2(o00) of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
or a person as defined in Section 2(69) of the Act.

“Promoter Group” means the person/ entity as defined in regulation 2(pp) of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018.

“Regulations” means Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

“Relative” with reference to a Director or KMP means the person as defined in Section
2(77) of the Act and rules prescribed thereunder.

“Related Party” means an individual, entity, firm, body corporate or person as defined
in Section 2(76) of the Act and regulation 2(zb) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time
to time.

“Related party transaction” means any transaction as given under clause (a) to (g) of
Section 188(1) of the Act or transfer of resources, services or obligations between:

a. a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of the listed
entity or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand; or

b. a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand, and any other person or entity on
the other hand, the purpose and effect of which is to benefit a related party of the listed
entity or any of its subsidiaries, with effect from April 01, 2023;

regardless of whether a price is charged and a “transaction” with a related party shall
be construed to include a single transaction or a group of transactions in a contract.

Following shall not be considered as related party transaction:

a. the issue of specified securities on a preferential basis, subject to compliance of the
requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

b. the following corporate actions by the listed entity which are uniformly applicable/
offered to all shareholders in proportion to their shareholding:

i. payment of dividend;
ii. subdivision or consolidation of securities;
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iii. issuance of securities by way of a rights issue or a bonus issue; and
iv. buy-back of securities.

c. acceptance of fixed deposits.

Any other term not defined herein shall have the same meaning as defined in the Act,
or in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 or such other regulations as applicable from time
to time.

3. Applicability
This policy shall be applicable on all related party transactions entered into by and between

Hero FinCorp Limited and its related parties and shall come into effect from the 01t day of
April, 2022.

4. Review and approval of Related Party Transactions

Every Related Party Transaction shall be subject to the prior approval of the Audit Committee.
Further, members of the audit committee who are Independent Director shall approve
related party transaction and member of the Audit Committee who has a potential interest
in any Related Party Transaction shall abstain from discussion and voting on the approval of
such transaction.

The approval policy framework is given below:

a. Audit Committee approval: Prior approval of audit committee is required for the
following related party transactions:

. Where Company is a party;

e  Where subsidiary of the Company is a party but the Company is not a party, if
the value of such transaction whether entered into individually or taken together
with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds ten per cent of the
annual consolidated turnover, as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company;

e  With effect from April 01, 2023, where subsidiary of the Company is a party but
the Company is not a party, if the value of such transaction whether entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year,
exceeds ten per cent of the annual standalone turnover, as per the last audited
financial statements of the subsidiary;

e Transaction of the Company and/ or its subsidiaries with unrelated parties, the
purpose and effect of which is to benefit the Related parties of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

b. Board approval: Following transaction shall require approval/ of the Board:

e In case any Related Party Transactions as referred to the Board for its approval due
to the transaction being (i) not in the ordinary course of business, or (ii) not at an
arm’s length price, such transactions shall be effected only with prior approval of
the Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of Audit Committee.

o Material Related Party Transactions not in ordinary course or not on an arm’s
length basis shall require prior approval of the Board.

c. Shareholders’ approval: Following transaction shall require approval of the
shareholders:

e All material related party transactions whether in ordinary course of business
and/ or arm’s length basis or not shall require approval of the shareholders and
the related parties shall abstain from voting on such resolutions irrespective of
whether the entity is a party to the particular transaction or not;

e All transactions exceeding the threshold limit as specified in Section 188 of the
Act;
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5. Procedure for omnibus approval of Related Party Transactions

Audit committee may grant omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to
be entered into by the company in accordance with rule 6A of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and subject to the following conditions:

a.

|

Audit Committee shall review the following for granting approval to the proposed
related party transaction:

i. Type, material terms and particulars of the proposed transaction;

ii. Name of the related party and its relationship with the listed entity or its subsidiary,
including nature of its concern or interest (financial or otherwise);

iii. Tenure of the proposed transaction (particular tenure shall be specified);
iv. Value of the proposed transaction;

v. The percentage of the listed entity’s annual consolidated turnover, for the
immediately preceding financial year, that is represented by the value of the
proposed transaction (and for a RPT involving a subsidiary, such percentage
calculated on the basis of the subsidiary’s annual turnover on a standalone basis
shall be additionally provided);

vi. If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary:

vi-a) details of the source of funds in connection with the proposed transaction;

vi-b) where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make or give loans, inter-corporate
deposits, advances or investments,

¢ nature of indebtedness;
e cost of funds; and
e tenure;

vi-c) applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, interest rate and repayment
schedule, whether secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of security; and

vi-d) the purpose for which the funds will be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT.

vii. Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the listed entity;

viii. A copy of the valuation or other external party report, if any such report has been
relied upon;

ix. Percentage of the counter-party’s annual consolidated turnover that is represented
by the value of the proposed RPT on a voluntary basis;

On the basis of the above information, Committee shall satisfy itself regarding the
need for such omnibus approval and that such approval is in the interest of the listed
entity;

Omnibus approval resolution shall specify the following: -

i. the name(s) of the related party, nature of transaction, period of transaction,
maximum amount of transactions that shall be entered into;

ii. the indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for variation
in the price if any.
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Further, where the need for related party transaction cannot be foreseen and aforesaid
details are not available, audit committee may grant omnibus approval for such
transactions subject to their value not exceeding INR 1 crore per transaction.

d. Audit committee shall review, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related party
transactions entered into by the listed entity pursuant to each of the omnibus approval
given.

e. Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one year and shall
require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year:

6. Information to be provided to Audit Committee for approval of Related party
transactions

Audit Committee shall approve the related party transaction on the basis of receipt of
information as mentioned in point 5(a) of this policy.

7. Information to be provided to Shareholders for approval of Related party
transactions

The notice being sent to the shareholders seeking approval for any proposed RPT shall, in
addition to the requirements under the Act, include the following information as a part of
the explanatory statement:

a. Summary of the information provided by the management of the listed entity to the
Audit Committee as specified in point 5(a) of this policy;

Justification for why the proposed transaction is in the interest of the listed entity;

Where the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary, the details specified
under point 5(a) of this policy; (The requirement of disclosing source of funds and cost
of funds shall not be applicable on the company.)

d. A statement that the valuation or other external report, if any, relied upon by the
listed entity in relation to the proposed transaction will be made available through the
registered email address of the shareholders;

e. Percentage of the counter-party’s annual consolidated turnover that is represented by
the value of the proposed RPT, on a voluntary basis;

8. Reporting of Related party transactions

a. Disclosure in Annual Report: Company shall make the disclosure of related party in
its annual report in compliance with the Accounting Standard. Further company shall
make the disclosure of transactions entered into with any person or entity belonging
to the promoter/ promoter group which holds 10% or more shareholding in the listed
entity in the format prescribed in the relevant accounting standards for annual results.

b. Disclosure in Corporate Governance Report: Company shall make the disclosure of
its materially significant related party transactions in its Corporate Governance Report.

c. Disclosure to the regulator: Company shall submit to the stock exchanges disclosures
of the related party transactions in the format specified by SEBI on the day of disclosure
of financial statement to the SEBI.

d. Website Disclosure: Company shall publish the disclosure of related party transactions
furnished to SEBI on its website.

9. Review of the Policy

The Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis pursuant to any regulatory amendment or
for any reason as deemed appropriate by the Board of the Company.
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II1.

III.

Annexure - G

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

PREAMBLE

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Regulations’), the
Board of Directors is required to constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The Company has already constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines and recommends to the
Board the compensation payable to Directors. Remuneration for the Executive Directors
consists of a fixed component and a variable component linked to the long term vision,
medium term goals and annual business plans.

The company had set-up a Remuneration Committee on April 18, 2005 to review and
recommend the quantum and payment of annual salary and commission and finalize
service agreements and other employment conditions of the Executive Directors. The
Committee takes into consideration the best remuneration practices being followed in
the industry while fixing appropriate remuneration packages. As per the guidelines of the
Act, the committee has been renamed as the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
("NR Committee”).

Section 178 of the Act provides that the Committee shall recommend to the Board a
policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees, further the Committee shall also formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director. This Committee and
the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Act, read along with the
applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 of SEBI Regulations.

OBJECTIVE
The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary
report to the Board for further evaluation.

¢) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

DEFINITIONS

“Board of Directors” or “"Board”, in relation to a Company, means the collective
body of the Directors of the Company;

- The expression “senior management” means personnel of the Company who are
members of its core management team other than the Board of Directors. This
would include all members of management one level below the Executive Directors,
including all the functional heads;

-  "“Company” means “Hero FinCorp Limited”;

- “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the
Act.

|
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IV.

VI.

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means

(i) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager,
(ii) Company Secretary,

(iii) Whole-time Director,

(iv) Chief Financial Officer and

(v) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of
Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Act.

“Policy or This Policy” means, *“Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

“"Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person
for services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-
Tax Act, 1961.

INTERPRETATION

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to
them in the Act, as amended from time to time.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The Policy ensures that

The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks;

Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the longer term interests of the
company and its shareholders;

Minimize complexity and ensure transparency;
Link to long term strategy as well as annual business performance of the Company;

Promotes a culture of meritocracy and is linked to key performance and business
drivers; and

Reflective of line expertise, market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE
The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following:

1.

To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend
to the Board their appointment and/ or removal.

. To carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director, recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

|
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4. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

5. To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-time
Director(s) based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

6. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and
/ or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be
applicable.

7. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the
performance of its duties.

MEMBERSHIP

a) The Committee shall comprise at least three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be non-
executive Directors and at least half shall be Independent.

b) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the
provisions of the Act. and applicable statutory requirement.

c) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

d) Terms of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of
Directors.

CHAIRMAN
a) Committee shall be chaired by an Independent Director.

b) Chairman of the Company, if any, may be appointed as a member of the Committee
but shall not Chair the Committee.

c) Members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them
to act as Chairman.

d) Chairman of the Committee could be present at the Annual General Meeting or may
nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as prescribed
under the Act and SEBI Regulations.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being
evaluated.

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be
present at the meetings of the Committee.

VOTING

a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a
majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all
purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.

b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting
vote.
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XII. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

e Appointment criteria and qualifications:

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior
Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

2. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion
to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person
are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

3. The Company shall appoint/ re-appoint as Managing Director/Whole-time
Director/Manager in Compliance with the provisions of the Act, Guidelines issued
by Reserve Bank of India, SEBI Regulations and other Regulatory Authorities from
time to time. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by
passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the
notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment
beyond seventy years.

e Term / Tenure:

1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person)

- The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person
for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

2. Independent Director

- An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years
on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for reappointment on passing
of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in
the Board’s report.

- No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms,
but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of
three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

e Evaluation: The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every
Director, KMP and Senior Management at regular interval (yearly).

e Removal: Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act, rules made
thereunder or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee
may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a
Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of
the said Act, rules and regulations.

o Retirement: The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Act, and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the
same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age,
for the benefit of the Company.

XIII REMUNERATION PAID TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

e The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is recommended by the Committee
and approved by the Board in the Board meeting, subject to the subsequent approval
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by the shareholders at the general meeting and such other authorities, as the case
may be.

e At the Board meeting, only the Non-Executive and Independent Directors participate

in approving the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors. The remuneration is
arrived by considering various factors such as qualification, experience, expertise,
prevailing remuneration in the industry and the financial position of the Company.
The elements of the remuneration and limits are pursuant to the Section 178, 197
and Schedule V of the Act.

1 Remuneration Policy Structure

The remuneration structure for the Executive Directors would include the following
components:

(i) Basic Salary

- Provides for a fixed, per month, base level remuneration to reflect the scale
and dynamics of business to be competitive in the external market.

- Are normally set in the home currency of the Executive Director and
reviewed annually.

- Will be subject to an annual increase as per recommendations of the
Committee and approval of the Board.

(ii) Commission
- Executive Directors will be allowed remuneration, by way of commission
which isin addition to the Basic Salary, Perquisites and any other Allowances,
benefits and amenities.

- Subject to the condition that the amount of commission shall not exceed
5% of net profit of the Company in a particular financial year in the manner
referred in Section 197 & 198 of the Act.

- The amount of commission shall be paid subject to recommendation of the
Committee and approval of the Board.

(iii)Perquisites and Allowances

A basket of Perquisites and Allowances would also form a part of the remuneration
structure.

(iv)Contribution to Provident and Other funds
In addition to the above, the remuneration would also include:
- Contribution to Provident and Superannuation Funds
- Gratuity

(v) Minimum Remuneration

Ifin any financial year during the tenure of the Executive Directors, the Company
has no profits or its profits are inadequate, they shall be entitled to, by way
of Basic Salary, Perquisites, Allowances, not exceeding the ceiling limit of INR
2,00,000 per month, and in addition hereto, they shall also be eligible for
perquisites not exceeding the limits specified under Part IV of Schedule V of the
Act. Remuneration payable to Non-Executive & Independent Directors or other
such limits as prescribed by the Government from time to time as Minimum
Remuneration, whichever is higher.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO NON-EXECUTIVE & INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company would be paid sitting fees of INR 50,000
for each meeting of the Committees and Board.

|
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The Non-Executive and/ or Independent Directors will also be entitled to remuneration
by way of commission aggregating up to 1% of net profits of the Company pursuant
to the provisions of Section 197 and 198 of the Act, in addition to the sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board and any Committee thereof.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors would be as per recommendations of
the Committee and approval of the Board. It would be pursuant to the provisions of
sections 197,198 of the Act.

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY FORKEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL,
SENIOR MANAGEMENT & STAFF

The compensation for the Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and staff at
Hero FinCorp would be guided by the external competitiveness and internal parity
through annual benchmarking surveys.

Internally, performance ratings of all Hero FinCorp Employees would be spread across
a normal distribution curve. For the reason of role (such as driver, runner, any other
role which does not have a direct impact on business / cases of long leave, medical
condition or for employees where an investigation is under process, there could be cases
of employees “Not Rated’ in the cycle, which would not be part of Distribution curve.
The rating obtained by an employee will be used as an input to determine the Merit Pay
increases. Merit pay increase will also factor for internal / external pay parity. Variable
payout will be calculated using a combination of individual performance and Department
/ Function performance and organizational performance. Grade wise differentiation in
the ratio of variable and fixed pay as well as in increment percentage must be made.

Compensation given as pay or rewards can also be determined based on identified skill
sets critical to success of Hero FinCorp. It is determined as per management'’s review of
market demand and supply.

Additional rewards may be determined based on specific projects that Hero Fincorp may
undertake towards given objectives. Achievement of such objectives may result in the
team member(s) getting duly recognized and rewarded.

For compensation revision and/or annual performance-based variable payout and/or any
other discretionary payout / reward, employee must be in good standing as determined
by the Company in its sole discretion, without violation of any Company policy and/or
procedure, in each case.

1 Grade Structure (Leadership Pyramid)

Since HFCL is an evolving organization in the Financial Services Space and aspire to
be one of the leading financial service organization in the field of the Two Wheeler
and Corporate Finance. The Grade Structure of HFCL has been aligned as per the work
value of jobs and degree of responsibility and accountability involved. The Classification
of each grade is based on the level of the work undertaken, and encompasses the
elements of decision making, communication, knowledge and proficiency.

The Grade Structure will help an employee to understand about their current level and
career progression path in the organization.
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Parameters to Focus (Compensation

Employee Group Mix)

High weightage to company performance

Top Management
P g & Emphasis on Long term incentives and

(Impact Level 1) Benefits
Middle management High weightage on individual performance
(Impact Level 2) & lesser variable component.

No Variable, Fixed Income & some social

Junior Management Security

No Variable, Fixed Income. Better then
industry pay. Focus on providing necessary
and statutory benefits Grade Structure
(Leadership Pyramid)

Individual Contributor

2 Performance Framework

In HFCL Meritocracy is the backbone of the performance and potential recognition
framework, driven on principles of the Balanced Score Card approach. The Performance
Management Policy revolves around the three ‘P’ approach:

= People
= Performance
= Potential

HFCL recognizes its People as an Asset and believes in recognizing and supporting
employee’s duties done in the best interest of the organization and compensate
appropriately. The PMS policy also clearly distinguishes between the Performance &
Potential by:

= Pay to Performance
= Promote to the potential

Performance planning is the process of setting goals and objectives at the start of the
year. The process of "GOAL SETTING"” needs to be conducted in the month of May / June
every year. Goal Setting should include a discussion between the Appraise & Appraiser
and should be mutually decided. Targets set during the process should be SMART.

(S-Specific, M-Measurable, A-Attainable, R-Realistic and T-Time bound).
3 Mid Year Review

HFCL encourages constant review culture. However, midyear review is the process of
taking stock of the performance after 6 months of goal setting. This would be conducted
in the month of October every year.

This discussion would summarize accomplishments to date, identify what goals have been
added, eliminated or changed, review priorities and clarify performance expectations
going forward. There could be changes in salary or grade on a case to case basis at the
time of Mid-term review or otherwise. Any compensation actions as above may be
determined by the Company in its sole discretion. Such actions will be directed towards
employee(s) who are in good standing as determined by the Company and will be
approved by Jt. MD and CEO where Jt. MD & CEO is the L1 or L2 and for all other full
time staff by CHRO.
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MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

Proceedings of all Meetings must be recorded in the Minutes book and signed by the
Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes
of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee
meeting.

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY

Deviations on elements of this Policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed
necessary in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to
do so in an individual case.
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ANNEXURE - H

INFORMATION TO BE DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 62(1)(B) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL
AND DEBENTURES) RULES ON ESOP DISCLOSURES FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

S. . ESOP Scheme
No. Particulars 2017
1. | Options Granted 19,13,205
2. | Options Vested 7,52,764**
3. | Options Exercised Nil
4. | The total no. of shares arising as a result of exercise of option Nil
5. | Options Lapsed 5,79,671
6. | The Exercise Price NA
7. | Variation of terms of Options NA
8. | Total No. of Options in Force 13,33,534
9. | Employee wise details:
i) Key Managerial Personnel 1,41,485
ii) Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any
one year of option amounting to five per cent or more of Nil
option granted during that year.
iii) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one
year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital Nil
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
Company at the time of grant.

**\/ested Options: 57,100 with exercise window open from 25t April' 22 to 9®June' 22

Vested Options: 6,95,664 can be exercised only after IPO.

|
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ANNEXURE - 1

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED

1.

UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year:

Remeqnertation Percentage Ratio of the
p A
Name of Directors/ Key Managerial OKMI;'.r?:r?:';(/ incr(eg)s)e in :gThuenﬁ'lr:ctllig:
Personnel ("KMP") and Designation 2021-22 . v
Remuneration employee’s
(Rs. crore) in FY 2021-22 remuneration
Executive Directors
Mrs. Renu Munjal - Managing Director 12.08 (29.46) 164
Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal - Joint Managing 7.33 (44.03) 99.32

Director & CEO

Non-Executive Directors”

Dr. Pawan Munjal 0.06 57.14% 0.82
Mr. Sanjay Kukreja - - -

Non-Executive and
Independent Directors”

Mr. Pradeep Dinodia 0.16 (50.76%) 2.18
Mr. Vivek Chaand Sehgal 0.10 (62.74%) 1.36
Employees & KMP

Mr. Jayesh Jain - Chief Financial Officer 2.18 10% 29.70
Mr. Shivendra Suman - Company Secretary 0.93 11% 12.70

AIncludes sitting fees and commission

Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees and commission as per the statutory
provisions and within the limits approved by the shareholders. Remuneration details for
Independent Directors in the above table, is comprised of sitting fees and commission.

Mr. Sanjay Kukreja, Non-Executive Director, did not receive any sitting fees or any other
remuneration.

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the FY was Rs. 7.35 lacs.

Median salary of employees in current year has increased by (2%) in comparison to the
previous year.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2022 was
2099 (previous year 1829).

Average percentage increase made in the salary of employees other than the managerial
personnel in last FY i.e. 2021-22 was 11.5%.

It is hereby affirmed that remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the
Company are in line with the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE - J

HERO FINCORP LIMITED NCLT MIS MARCH 31, 2022

HFCL Claim
Customer Name Case Details Amount NCLT Status
(Rs. crore)
HEMA M/s P.R. Rolling Mills Pvt. Ltd.
ENGINEERING Versus .
INDUSTRIES M/s Hema Engineering Industries Ltd. 217.49 CIRP ongoing
LIMITED C.P. (IB)-900(ND)/2020
Daikin Airconditioning India Pvt. Ltd.
KINGS Versus .
ELECTRONICS Kings Electronics Pvt. Ltd. 0.78 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)2267/1&BP/2019
K.K.R. India Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.
Versus Company in
KWALITY LIMITED M/s Kwality Ltd. 22.44 Liquidation

C.P.(IB)-1440(ND)/2018

M/s Hind Tradex Ltd.
Versus
M/s Lakshmi Precision Screws Ltd.
C.P.(IB)155/Chd/Hry/2018

M/s Jay Packaging

LAKSHMI
PRECISION
SCREWS LIMITED

Resolution Plan
11.54 pending approval
of NCLT

MAGPPIE Versus Resolution Plan
INTERT_?I'DI'IONAL Magppie International Ltd. 2.63 pendg]lgNaC?:pj_roval
C.P.(IB)-2924/2019
M/s Manoj Kumar and Company
Versus Resolution Plan
MATAJI DYEING Mataji Dyeing Mills Pvt. Ltd. 2.99 pending approval
C.P.(IB)-400/2019 of NCLT
Ahemdabad
Dynamic Star Securities & Allied
NEWGEN Services Company in
SPECIALTY Versus 5.2 g uipdat}’on
PLASTICS LTD Newgen Speciality Plastics Ltd. 9
C.P.(IB)-1251/ND/2018
Pawar Milk Suppliers
PANDHARI MILK Versus 2.7 Company in
PRIVATE LIMITED Pandhari Milk Pvt. Ltd. ' Liguidation
C.P.(IB)-2139/MB/2019
Columbia Petro Chem Pvt. Ltd.
PETROLUBE INDIA Versus 1.91 Company in
LTD Petrolube India Ltd. ) Liquidation
C.P.(IB)-343/ND/2017
American Express Banking Corp.
PRATIBHA KRUSHI Versus 10.58 Company in
PRAKRIYA LTD Pratibha Krushi Prakriya Ltd. ' Liguidation
C.P.(IB)-1852/1&BP/2019
Keshav Multipack (India) Pvt. Ltd.
REGENT GRANITO Versus 15.69 Company in
INDIA LIMITED Regent Granito India Ltd. ) Liquidation

C.P.(IB)-206/2018
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HFCL Claim
Customer Name Case Details Amount NCLT Status
(Rs. crore)
SHILPT CABLE Mvaua\;’éersliasnk e Company in
TECEI'I\\I,IOI.II:SSIES Shilpi Cable Technologies Ltd. 25.79 Liquidation
C.P.(IB)-64/PB/2017
Pankhuri Investments and Securities
SHREEDHAR MILK Vlé:gt;s 14.8 Company in
FOODS LIMITED Shreedhar Milk Foods Ltd. Ligquidation
C.P.(IB)-625-PB/2018
Radha Krishna Acua Pvt. Ltd.
DIGITAL MICRON versus 0.18 CIRP ongoin
Digital Micron Roto Print Pvt. Ltd. ) going
C.P.(IB)-21/9/2019
SOUTHERN A'ah\"jgfs‘tfa”k
PRI\B/'XEESIl\I,IEISTED Southern Batteries Pvt. Ltd. 3.15 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)-357/2019
Minda Capital Pvt. Ltd.
Versus .
DILIP CHHABRIA Dilip Chhabria Design Pvt. Ltd. 2.29 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)-1877/2018
EMKAY Swastll\;elzls;iles Lmtd.
?EESI\SII-PRBIIELS? Emkay Automobiles Industries Ltd. 5.54 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)-3173/ND/2019
LIMITED .
New Delhi
Durga Enterprises .
SRS MEDITECH Versus 403 ﬁgsno't;‘é;;’”
LIMITED SRS Meditech Ltd. ' im Iementzd
C.P.(IB)-64/2018 P
Cytech Coating Pvt. Ltd.
Versus .
ESS DEE s Company in
ESS DEE Aluminium Ltd. 46.79 S
ALUMINIUM LTD C.P.(IB) - 157/KB/2018 Liquidation
Kolkata
STEEL KONNECT ) i1 C;C”;‘e’:r?:“éi/e
INDIA PVT LTD GSEC
WORLDS WINDOW State %Z?L‘uzf India
PRIIQ/I/;'IE)E( II_II\II\I,?II.}AED Worlds Window Impex India Pvt. Ltd. 6.15 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)-376/2020
Sanchar Polytubes
EVERGREEN Versus ,
ENVIRO PVT LTD Evergreen Enviro Pvt. Ltd. 1.63 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)-766/2019
State Bank of India
SU KAM POWER Versus 30.6 Company in
SYSTEMS LIMITED Su-kam Power Systems Ltd. ) Liquidation

C.P.(IB)-540/2017
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HFCL Claim
Customer Name Case Details Amount NCLT Status
(Rs. crore)
XALTA FOODS AND Super E)/er‘stuier"ices Company in
BEVERG_GDES PVT Xalta Foods and Beverages Pvt. Ltd. 3.51 Liquidation
C.P.(IB)-702/2018
GUMAN Punjab National Bank
FURNITURE Versus 2.82 Company in
AND SERVICES Guman Furnitures and Services Pvt. Ltd. ) Liquidation
PRIVATE LIMITED C.P.(IB)-45/7/2018
R.H. Petroleum Pvt. Ltd.
TAG OFFSHORE Versus 36.92 Company in
LIMITED TAG Offshore Ltd. ’ Liquidation
C.P.(IB)-54/2019
SK UNI Print Pvt. Ltd.
ADI AUTOMOTIVE Versus i
PVT LTD ADI Automotive Pvt. Ltd. 2:22 CIRP ongoing
C.P.(IB)-259/2019
TALWALKAR
HEALTHCLUBS
LIMITED Axis Bank Limited
(MERGED WITH Versus 66.03 Company in
TALWALKAR Talwalkar Healthclubs Limited ) Liquidation
BETTER VALUE C.P.(IB)-1056/2020
FITNESS
LIMITED)
TRIMAX IT Corporation Bank Resolution
INFRASTRUCTURE Versus 25.57 Plan bein
AND SERVICES Trimax IT Infrastructure Ltd. ) im Iement?ad
LIMITED C.P.(IB)-3457/2018 P
UNIVERSAL Pallavi JOSh\I/eE:ZI:QrU Creditor Resolution
BUILDXYI_EDLL PVT Universal Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. 30.98 inlzlaignezlnr::gd
C.P.(IB)-456/2018 P
AJIT JAIN AND
GAURAYV JAIN C.P.(IB)-205/2021 11.58 CIRP ongoing
(DCP INDIA)
Reliance Commercial Finanace
APEX MRI CENTRE Versus 236 Company in
PRIVATE LIMITED Apex MRI Centre Pvt. Ltd. ) Liguidation
C.P.(IB)-369/2018
Peddington Chemical Industries (India) Resolution
ARADHYA STEEL Versus 37.04 Plan bein
PRIVATE LIMITED Aradhaya Steel Private Limited ) im Iementgd
C.P.(IB)-227/2019 P
ITW Consulting Pvt. Ltd.
ARISE INDIA Versus 13.08 Company in
LIMITED Arise India Limited ' Liquidation
CO.PET. 618/2015
Gaurav Goel, Proprieter of Riyal Packers .
Versus Resolution
24.97 Plan being
implemented

BENLON INDIA
LIMITED

Benlon India Ltd.
C.P.(IB)-1612/2018

{ Board'’s Report

|



31t Annual Report 2021-22 # HeroFinCorp.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HERO FINCORP LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Hero FinCorp Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and
the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive income (comprising of loss
and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4,

We draw attention to Note 43.2.4 to the standalone financial statements, which describes
the Management’s assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) on
the business operations of the Company. In view of the uncertain economic environment,
a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon
circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board’s report, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for
the standalone financial statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial
statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
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10.

11.

the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

12.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021,
were audited by another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report
dated April 29, 2021, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

13.

14.

131

AsrequiredbytheCompanies (Auditor'sReport) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
GovernmentofIndiaintermsofsub-section(11)ofSection143oftheAct, wegiveintheAnnexureBa
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:
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iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 37.2 to the standalone
financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 6, 8 and 43.2.3 to the
standalone financial statements;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year;

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 43.6 to the
standalone financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts , no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer
Note 43.6 to the standalone financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.

15. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the

Act.
For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050
Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari
Partner Partner
Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
UDIN: 22101119AIBGPL6621 UDIN: 22081075AIBWGM5043
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of Hero FinCorp Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of Hero FinCorp Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements
6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
standalone financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by ICAIL. (Also refer paragraph 4 of the main audit report).

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:

301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075

UDIN: 22101119AIBGPL6621 UDIN: 22081075AIBWGM5043

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members
of Hero FinCorp Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the

i. (a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(b)

i.  (a)

(b)

()

|

year ended March 31,2022

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the
question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation
by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or
more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have
been initiated on the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and
therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not
hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess
of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements
with such banks and financial institutions, which are in agreement with the
unaudited books of accounts except the insignificant differences as represented by
the management. (Also refer Note 17.9 to the financial statements)

As the company is a registered non-banking finance company in the business of
granting loans and making investments, matters specified in clause iii(a) of paragraph
3 of the CARO, 2020 does not apply to the Company.

In respect of the investments /loans, the terms and conditions under which such
loans were granted/investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest. The Company has not made an advance in the nature of loans /given any
guarantee/not provided any securities.

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Considering that the Company
is a non-banking financial company engaged in the business of granting loans to
retail and corporate customers, the entity-wise details of the amount, due date for
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payment and extent of delay (that has been suggested in the Guidance Note on
CARO 2020 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting
under this clause) have not been reported because it is not practicable to furnish
such details owing to the voluminous nature of data generated in the normal course
of the Company’s business. Further, except for the instances where there are delays
or defaults in repayment of principal and/ or interest and in respect of which the
Company has recognised necessary provisions in accordance with the principles of
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India ("RBI”) for Income Recognition and Asset Classification (which has
been disclosed by the Company in Note 46.28 to the financial statements), the
parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in
payment of interest, as applicable.

(d) In respect of the loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days as at
March 31, 2022 is Rs. 910.30 crore. In such instances, in our opinion, based on
information and explanations provided to us, reasonable steps have been taken by
the Company for the recovery of the principal amounts and the interest thereon.
Refer Note 43.2.3 in the financial statements for details of number of cases and the
amount of principal and interest overdue as at March 31, 2022

(e) As the company is a registered non-banking finance company in the business
of granting loans and making investments, matters specified in clause iii(e), of
paragraph 3 of the CARO, 2020 does not apply to the Company.

(f) The loans granted during the year, including to promoters/related parties had
stipulated the scheduled repayment of principal and payment of interest and the
same were not repayable on demand.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and sub-section (1) of Section 186 of the
Act in respect of the loans and investments made and guarantees and security provided
by it, if any. The provisions of sub-sections (2) to (11) of Section 186 are not applicable
to the Company as it is a non-banking financial company registered with the RBI engaged
in the business of giving loans.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there
under to the extent notified. Further, the provisions of sub-sections (1) of Section 73 are
not applicable to the company as it is a non-banking financial company registered with
the RBI engaged in the business of giving loans.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

Vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of Provident fund, though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including , income tax, value added tax, cess, goods and services tax and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues of goods and service tax and
cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of
other statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31,2022 which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Amount Period to Forum
Name of Nature of (Rs. in which the where the Remarks, if
the statute dues . amount dispute is any
crore) .
relates pending
) Commissioner  Amount paid
Income Tax Income tax 9.11 2013-14 (Appeals) of under protest is
Act, 1961 2014-15
Income Tax Rs. 3.69 crore
Income Tax 1 ome tax 0.33 2006-07 The High ur?t??a?ucgtpeasfis
Act, 1961 ' 2009-10  Court of Delhi P
Rs. 0.14 crore
Income Tax _ The High _
Act, 1961 Income tax 86.63 2017-18 Court of Delhi
Income Tax Commissioner Amount paid
Income tax 202.87 2016-17 (Appeals) of under protest is
Act, 1961
Income Tax Rs. 25.73 crore
2013-14 Objection
Delhi Value 2014-15 hearing
Value added 2015-16 .
added Tax 0.53 authority
tax 2016-17 -
Act 2017-18 (Trade & Tax
department)
Total 299.48

viii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

iX. (a)
(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

|

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained except for the Rs. 390 crore which were
pending to be utilised as the term loans were raised at the end of the financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, except for 3 instances
aggregating Rs.48.45 Crore and for which the Management has taken appropriate
steps including criminal complaint and Demand notices under SARFAESI act , we
have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such
case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section
143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
received whistle-blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by
us for any bearing on our audit and reporting. As represented by the management,
there were 2 complaints having an immaterial impact, if any, in respect of which
investigations are ongoing as on the date of our report and hence, the impact on our
audit report in respect of those complaints is not considered.

Xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

Xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered
by us for the substantial part of the year. As represented to us by the management
of the Company, Internal Audit Reports for the balance period of the Company are
under progress as per the internal audit plan and accordingly, the Internal Audit
Reports have been considered by us for the purpose of our audit to the extent those
were made available to us.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as an Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial
Company ("NBFC") not accepting public deposits (NBFC-ND-SI) vide certificate of
Registration No. 14.00266.

(b) The Company has conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the
Company holds a valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)
(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the
Company, the Group has one CIC as part of the Group as detailed in note 38 to
the financial statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the
information provided by the management is accurate and complete.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
As stated in the resignation letter dated December 16, 2021 of the outgoing statutory
auditors, the resignation was pursuant to the “Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory
Central Auditors (SCAs)/ Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding
RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs)” issued by RBI on April 27, 2021. We noted no
issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing statutory auditors in their aforesaid
letter.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 43.3.1, 46.1 and 46.25 and to the standalone financial statements),
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

XX. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company
doesn’t have any amount remaining unspent under section 135(5) of the Act.

(b) The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility
remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to
ongoing project/(s) to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of Section 135 of the Act. Details are as given below:

Amount Amount
Amount transferred to transferred to Amount not
remaining Special Bank Special Bank transferred
unspentas Account u/s Account u/s to Special
at the year- 135(6), within 135(6), after Bank

Amount to
be spent in

Fmael:;lal accs:ic:znce end to be 30 days from a period of 30 Account
y section transferred end of financial days from end u/s 135(6),
135(5) to special vyear (or till the of financial till the date
account date of audit year (till the of audit
u/s 135(6) report, if that is date of audit report
earlier) report)
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
2021- . .
2022 5.73 crores 1.16 crores 1.16 crores Nil Nil

(Also refer Note 31.2 to the financial statements)
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xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause
has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
UDIN: 22101119AIBGPL6621 UDIN: 22081075AIBWGM5043
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Note

# HeroFinCorp.

Zin Crore

As at March As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 774.03 880.34
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 144.52 116.13
Derivative financial instruments 6 1.92 -
Trade receivables 7 2.12 7.98
Loans 8 28,651.69 23,856.85
Investments 9 1,476.82 2,211.35
Other financial assets 10 90.66 110.71
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 11 114.25 41.89
Deferred tax assets (net) 12 433.46 340.82
Property, plant and equipment 13 42.42 47.64
Right-of-use assets 13.1 38.64 36.50
Intangible assets 13.2 14.23 16.60
Other non-financial assets 14 53.60 32.36
Total assets 31,838.36 27,699.17
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 15
- Total outstant_jing dues of micro enterprises and ) 0.12

small enterprises; and
Debt securities 16 5,471.49 4,080.85
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 20,000.22 17,142.27
Subordinated liabilities 18 593.51 593.31
Lease liabilities 19 43.60 40.40
Other financial liabilities 20 507.58 471.99
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 - 8.60
Provisions 22 42.38 37.44
Other non-financial liabilities 23 52.26 33.89
Total liabilities 27,000.41 22,657.63

141

{ Standalone Financial Statements



31t Annual Report 2021-22

# HeroFinCorp.

As at March As at March

Particulars Note 31, 2022 31, 2021
Equity
Equity share capital 24 127.31 127.31
Other equity 25 4,710.64 4,914.23
Total equity 4,837.95 5,041.54
Total liabilities and equity 31,838.36 27,699.17
Significant accounting policies 3
Notes to the standalone financial statements 1to 47

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal

Chairman Managing Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870)
New Delhi London

Date: April 29, 2022

Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia

Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
London New Delhi

Shivendra Suman
Company Secretary
(ACS : 018339)
New Delhi

Jayesh Jain
Chief Financial Officer
(FCA : 110412)
New Delhi

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
001035N/N500050

Sudhir Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number: 081075

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022
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# HeroFinCorp.

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

For the year

Zin Crore

For the year

Note ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Income
Revenue from operations 26
Interest income 3,969.85 3,653.43
Dividend income 0.74 0.74
Profit on sale of investments 38.78 19.98
Rental income 1.96 6.48
Net gain on fair value changes 19.72 21.39
Insurance commission 15.36 13.17
Others charges 394.17 330.74
Total revenue from operations 4,440.58 4,045.93
Other income 27 50.00 45.71
Total income 4,490.58 4,091.64
Expenses
Finance costs 28 1,508.88 1,550.49
Impairment on financial instruments 29 1,834.54 1,399.04
Employee benefits expenses 30 280.72 236.89
Depreciation and amortization 13 27.66 30.67
Other expenses 31 1,094.91 784.48
Total expenses 4,746.71 4,001.57
Profit/ (loss) before tax (256.13) 90.07
Tax expense: 12
(i) Current tax 27.03 105.98
(ii) Deferred tax (credit) (net) (89.16) (86.53)
Total tax expense (62.13) 19.45
Profit/ (loss) after tax (194.00) 70.62
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss:

I;emegsurement of gains/ (losses) on defined 34 (0.16) 0.15

enefit plans

Income_ _tax relating to items that will not be 12 0.04 (0.04)

reclassified to profit or loss
Sub-total (a) (0.12) 0.11
b) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:-

Cash flow hedge reserve (1.12) -

Income tax relating to items that may be 12 0.28 )

reclassified to profit or loss )
Sub-total (b) (0.84) -
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the (0.96) 0.11
year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the (194.96) 70.73

year, net of tax
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For the year For the year

Particulars Note ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Earnings per equity share 32
Basic (Rs.) (15.24) 5.78
Diluted (Rs.) (15.24) 5.77
Significant accounting policies 3

Notes to the standalone financial statements 1 to 47
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia
Chairman Managing Director Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870) (DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
New Delhi London London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(FCA : 110412) (ACS : 018339)
New Delhi New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022

This is the Standalone Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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# HeroFinCorp.

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Equity share capital

For the year ended March 31, 2022 T in Crore
Balance at the Changes in Restated Changes Balance at
P Equity Share balance at the in equity the end of
beginning of the . s h
. Capital due to beginning of share capital the current
current reporting - . - .
. prior period the current during the reporting
period . . .
errors reporting period current year period
127.31 - - - 127.31
For the year ended March 31, 2021 T in Crore
Changes in Restated Changes Balance at
Ba!ant_:e at the Equity Share balance at the in equity the end of
beginning of the . . ;
. Capital due to beginning of share capital the current
current reporting . . . .
. prior period the current during the reporting
period . . .
errors reporting period current year period
121.54 - - 5.77 127.31
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

31t Annual Report 2021-22

Zin Crore

For the year For the year

|

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax (256.13) 90.07
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 27.66 30.67
Impairment on financial instruments 1,834.54 1,399.04
Dividend income from investments (0.74) (0.74)
Discount on commercial paper 106.99 147.10
Employee share based payment expense 4.21 4.24
Net loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 1.99 3.67
Interest on fixed deposit and investments (35.00) (43.24)
Interest on lease liability 3.58 3.98
Net loss/ (gain) on fair value changes (19.72) (21.39)
Profit on sale of investments (38.78) (19.98)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,628.60 1,593.42
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 5.86 (0.11)
(Increase)/ decrease in loans (6,629.38) (2,773.19)
(Increase)/ d_ecrease in bank balance other than cash (28.39) (115.61)
and cash equivalents
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets 17.99 (80.44)
(Increase) in other non financial assets (26.20) (10.40)
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 35.60 96.45
Increase in trade payables 40.48 87.35
Increase/ (decrease) in other non financial liabilities 18.37 (2.20)
Increase in provisions 3.66 5.45
!\let cash flow (used in) operating activities before (4,933.41) (1,199.28)
income tax
Income tax paid (net of refund) (108.00) (159.15)
Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A) (5,041.41) (1,358.43)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purcha_se of property, plant and equipment and other (15.92) (12.35)
intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5.04 5.30
Dividend received 0.74 0.74
Interest on fixed deposit and investments 35.00 43.24
Purchase of investments (16,246.43) (25,919.56)
Sale of investments 17,039.46 24,301.41
Investment in subsidiary - (100.00)
Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) investin
activities (B) g ( ) g 817.89  (1,681.22)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from shares issue (including securities premium) - 470.10
Proceeds from debt securities 5,295.65 5,916.77
Repayment of debt securities (4,012.00) (7,215.00)
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 15,598.93 14,841.79
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (12,740.97) (12,309.64)
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# HeroFinCorp.

For the year For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities 0.20 44.96
Repayment of lease liability (11.87) (11.23)
Dividend paid (12.73) (30.99)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 4,117.21 1,706.76
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
D. equivalents (A+B+C) (106.31) (1,332.89)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 880.34 2,213.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 774.03 880.34
* Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks (current accounts) 63.29 55.14
Deposit with banks (original maturity less than three
months) 710.74 825.20
774.03 880.34

(i) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method’
as set out in Ind AS - 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows’, as notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder. The borrowing
from cash credit is revolving in nature and is disclosed on net basis under financing
activities.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal

Chairman Managing Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870)
New Delhi London

Date: April 29, 2022

Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia

Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
London New Delhi

Shivendra Suman
Company Secretary
(ACS : 018339)
New Delhi

Jayesh Jain
Chief Financial Officer
(FCA : 110412)
New Delhi

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022
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For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
001035N/N500050

Sudhir Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number: 081075

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the
vear ended March 31, 2022

Note 1: Corporate information

Hero FinCorp Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on December 16, 1991. The Company is
registered as a Non-Banking financial (Non deposit accepting) Company, engaged in the business
of financing, leasing, bill discounting and related financial services, with the Reserve Bank of India
(Registration No. 14.00266). The address of the Company’s registered office is 34, Community
Centre, Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi - 110057, India.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These Standalone financial statements (herein after referred to as ‘financial statements’)
have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act and Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) issued by RBI. Further, the Company has
complied with all the directions related to Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the RBI
notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated
March 13, 2020.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on April 29, 2022.

2.2 Basis of measurement and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value (refer to accounting
policies) such as Net defined (asset)/ liability present value of defined benefit obligations,
investments carried at fair value through profit or loss and share-based payments. The
method used to measured fair value are discussed further in notes to financial statements.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Profit and
Loss is presented in the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III of the Act,
as amended from time to time, for Non-Banking Financial Companies (‘"NBFCs”), that are
required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the
nearest crores and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

In the preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may not
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be in line with these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are under
ongoing consideration. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following estimates and judgments, which have a significant impact on the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date:

Business model assessment

Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest (*SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI
and the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level
that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured,
the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how
the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets
measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether
the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business
model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company establishes criteria for determining whether credit risk of the financial
assets has increased significantly since initial recognition, determines methodology for
incorporating forward looking information into the measurement of expected credit loss
(‘ECL") and selection of models used to measure ECL.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.,
an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is carried out in establishing fair values. Judgments and
estimates take into account liquidity and model inputs associated with such items as
credit risk (own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Impairment of financial instruments:

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based upon the Company’s
historical experience and credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognizes interest income/ expense using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognizes the effect of potentially different
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interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected
behavior and lifecycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate
and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

The measurement of obligations related to defined benefit plans requires to use several
statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events. These factors
include assumptions about the discount rate, the rate of future compensation increases,
withdrawal rate, mortality rates etc. The management has used the past trends and
future expectations in determining the assumptions which are used in measurements of
obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets: The Company has recognized deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) and concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the
estimated future taxable income based on the experience and future projections. The
Company is expected to generate adequate taxable income for liquidating these assets in
due course of time.

2.5 Measurement of fair value

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require/ may require fair value
measurement, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company
has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable
market data to the extent possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments, at fair value on each
reporting date. In addition, the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized
cost and FVTPL is disclosed in Note 42.

Note 3: Significant accounting policies

(a) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at the trading date, i.e., which is
the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
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profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets - Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either of:
° Amortized cost

° Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

° Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified after initial recognition, except if and during the
period in which the Company changes its financial asset management model.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost, only if both
of the following conditions are met and is not designated as at FVTPL:

° The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
for collecting contractual cash flows, and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following
criteria are met and is not designated as at FVTPL:

° The asset is held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI
(designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

° the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies
in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching
the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

° how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

° the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed; how managers
of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
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° the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the
Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information
when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate
features;

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
income in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery
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of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI
and are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is recognized at cost and are not adjusted to fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition
of the said investment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications
that the said investment may be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable
value/amount of the investment and provides for impairment, if any i.e. the deficit in the
recoverable value over cost.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Derecognition
Financial asset — derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the
terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes
a new loan, with the difference recognized as derecognition gain or loss, to the extent
that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognized loans are
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to
be POCI.

If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that
an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Financial asset — derecognition other than due to substantial modification
A financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, is derecognized only when:

o the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

o retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In
such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset
is not derecognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if
the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains
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control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Derecognition - Financial liability

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are amended and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its certain foreign currency
risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
at the end of each period. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives are directly recognized in the profit & loss.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost and financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments. At
each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is an “impaired
credit” where one or more events that adversely impact the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:
° significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; or
° breach of contract such as a default or being past due.

The Company applies the ECL model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for recognizing
impairment loss on financial assets. The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses
expected to arise from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
asset (‘lifetime ECL’), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the the 12-month ECL. The 12-month
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is calculated on a collective basis, considering the retail nature of the underlying
portfolio of financial assets.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk. When determining whether the risk of default on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on a provision
matrix which takes into account the Company’s historical credit loss experience, current
economic conditions, forward looking information and scenario analysis.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default ("EAD’), probability of default
(*PD’) and loss given default ("LGD’). Accordingly, the financial assets have been segmented
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into three stages based on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern
of credit deterioration of a financial asset. The Company categories financial assets at the
reporting date into stages based on the days past due (‘DPD’) status as under:

° Stage 1: Low credit risk, i.e. 0 to 30 days past due
° Stage 2: Significant increase in credit risk, i.e. 31 to 90 days past due
° Stage 3: Impaired assets, i.e. more than 90 days past due.

LGD is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. PD is defined as
the probability of whether the borrower will default on their obligation in the future. For
assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD
is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 100% PD. EAD represents the
expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of
the financial assets held by the Company.

The Company incorporates forward looking information into both assessments of whether
the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and
its measurement of ECL.

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances. The Company’s ECL calculations are
outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the
choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. The inputs and models used for
calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of
the financial statements. The Company regularly reviews its models in the context of
actual loss experience and make adjustments when such differences are significantly
material.

The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss,

After initial recognition, trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The Company
follows the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 for recognition of impairment
loss allowance on trade receivables, which requires lifetime ECL to be recognized at each
reporting date, right from initial recognition of the receivables.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and is recognized in OCI.

Write-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the standalone statement
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of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part
of the Company’s cash management.

(d) Trade receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value.

The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost, less loss allowance.

(e) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior
to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30 days of recognition. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only
if:

o it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and

o the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-
in-progress before such date. Cost of construction that relate directly to specific fixed
assets and that are attributable to construction activity in general and can be allocated to
specific fixed assets are included in capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method
as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act, and is generally recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Depreciation/ amortization is charged on a pro-rata basis for
assets acquired/sold during the year from/to the date of acquisition/sale.

Based on technical evaluation and assessment of useful lives, the management believes
that its estimate of useful lives represent the period over which management expects to
use these assets.
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Depreciation method, assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial
year end considering the physical condition of the assets for review and adjusted residual
life prospectively.

(9) Intangible assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of such assets includes purchase price,
licensee fee, import duties and other taxes and any directly attributable expenditure
to bring the assets to their working condition for intended use. The Company’s other
intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software.

Amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset,
are accounted for by changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate,
which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense of
intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of
profit and loss.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of
intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

. Computer software - 6 years

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the
assets are carried when it is probable that future economic benefit deriving from the cost
incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets that are
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts
of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable hat
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an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as finance cost.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the
amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow
of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a
present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do
not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the year in which the
change occurs.

Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income on a financial asset at amortized cost is recognized on a time proportion
bases taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR").
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset through the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The internal rate of return
on financial asset after netting off the fee received and cost incurred approximates the
effective interest rate method of return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are
estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial
assets (regarded as ‘Stage 3’) the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e the gross carrying amount less
the allowance for ECLs). If the financial asset is no longer credit impaired, the company
reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Other financial charges

Penal interest or other overdue charges which are not included in EIR are recognized on
receipt basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized at the time of establishment of the right to receive income.
Usually, this is the ex-dividend date of quoted equity securities. This is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend.

Lease rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in rental income in the statement of profit or loss,
unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease income
is recognized based on contractual terms.
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Other Income

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial
assets to which Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive
assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers. The
Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under
the contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance
obligations in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory completion of
performance obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

Net gain on fair value changes

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), as applicable. The Company
recognizes gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets measured as FVTPL and
realized gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.

(k) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. Benefits such as salaries, wages
and bonuses etc., are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the employee provides the related service.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts.

Provident Fund: Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The Company expenses
its contributions towards provident fund which are being deposited with the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner.

Superannuation Fund: Contributions are made to a scheme administered by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India to discharge superannuating liabilities to the employees, a
defined contribution plan, and the same is expensed to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has no liability other than its annual contribution.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity scheme is an unfunded defined benefit plan. The Company
pays gratuity to employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five years of
continuous service. The present value of obligations under such defined benefit plans are
based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, which recognize each period of service as giving rise to additional unit
of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
discount rate used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit
plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of related obligations.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service,
interest cost and re-measurements. Changes due to service cost and net interest cost /
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income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net defined
benefit liability / (asset) which comprise of actuarial gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income:

Other long term employee benefits

Benefits under compensated absences constitute other employee benefits. Employee
entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the eligible employees.
An accrual is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
provided by the eligible employees up to the Balance Sheet date. The obligation is
measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method.

Expenses are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Share based payments

The Company recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments
in net profit using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payment.
The estimated fair value of awards is charged to income on a straight-line basis over
the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the
award was in-substance, multiple awards with a corresponding increase to share options
outstanding amount.

The cost is recognized in employee benefits expenses together with a corresponding
increase in employee stock option outstanding account in other equity, over the period in
which the service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has not expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

Service conditions are not considered when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Non- market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions are not met.

()] Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116. At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement
is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains
a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are
separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their
relative fair values.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings.
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
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lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and
low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using incremental borrowing rates.
Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising from
operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in rental income in the statement of profit or loss, unless the increase is in
line with expected general inflation, in which case lease income is recognized based on
contractual terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

(m) Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income
for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax
payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
o has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

o intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
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apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in
case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only
to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and
are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

(n) Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences arising due to the differences in the exchange rate between the transaction
date and the date of settlement of any monetary items are taken to the statement of
profit and loss. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the Balance Sheet and
resultant gain/ loss is taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(o) Dividends on ordinary shares

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity
holders of the parent when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is
allowed when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized
directly in equity.

(p) Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

(q) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
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assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds (including exchange differences relating
to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs) and are recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR).

All other borrowing costs are charged to expenses in the period in which they arise.

(r) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held include foreign exchange
forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date of a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet
date. The resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship. The Company designates certain derivatives as hedges
of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). A derivative with a positive
fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value
is recognised as a financial liability.

Hedge accounting policy

The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest
rate and foreign currency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies
hedge accounting for transactions that meet specific criteria. At the inception of a hedge
relationship, the Company formally desighates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic
relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge
ratio and how the Company would assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair
value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on
an on-going basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash Flow Hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some
future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction
and could affect profit and loss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the
effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially
recognised directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in Finance Cost
in the statement of profit and loss.

When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income
or expense line of the statement of profit and loss. When a hedging instrument expires,
is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at that time
remains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCI is immediately
transferred to the statement of profit and loss.
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The Company’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedging relationships to be
considered as hedges as per the relevant Ind-AS. Hedge effectiveness is determined at
the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item
and hedging instrument. The Company enters into hedge relationships where the critical
terms of the hedging instrument match with the terms of the hedged item, and so a
qualitative and quantitative assessment of effectiveness is performed.

(s) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share
is computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares, expect where the results are anti-dilutive.

() Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Company is engaged in the business of
financing, leasing and related financial services. Accordingly, the Company’s activities/
business is reviewed regularly by the Jt. Managing Director assisted by an executive
committee from an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing its products/
services as individual standalone components. Based on the dominant source and nature
of Company’s risk and return, management has identified its business segment as its
primary reporting format.

(u) Statement of Cash flows

The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
Statement of Cash Flows.
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Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

T in Crore
. As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021

Balances with banks 63.29 55.14

Deposit with banks (original maturity less than three months) 710.74 825.20

Total 774.03 880.34
Note 5: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Zin Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Dividend accounts (earmarked accounts) 0.49 0.53
Deposit with banks (original maturity more than three months) 104.88 15.20
Deposit with banks (earmarked) 39.15 100.40
Total 144.52 116.13

Note 6: Derivative financial instruments

Zin Crore
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Notional Fair Value- Fair Value- Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-
amounts Assets Liablities amounts Assets Liablities
Currency derivatives
Currency swaps 910.75 1.92 - - - -
910.75 1.92 - - - -

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives held for risk
management purposes include hedges that either meet the hedge accounting requirements or
hedges that are economic hedges. The table above shows the fair values of derivative financial
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional
amounts indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of
either the market risk or credit risk.

Note 7: Trade receivables
Zin Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
(i) Receivables considered good - secured - -
(ii) Receivables considered good - unsecured 2.12 7.98
(iii) Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(iv) Receivables - credit impaired - -

2.12 7.98
Less : Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 2.12 7.98

Particulars

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or
jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Refer note 38 for receivables from related parties.
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As at March 31, 2022 Zin Crore
. Outstanding for
Particulars Less 6 More
- - Total
than 6 months- :a?-s za?-s than 3
months 1 year y y years
i. Undisputed trade receivables- 512 } } ) - 212
considered good
ii. Undisputed trade receivables- which
have significant increase in credit - - - - - -
risk
iii. Undisputed trade receivables- credit
impaired
iv. Disputed Trade Receivables- ) ) ) ) ) )
considered good
v. Disputed Trade Receivables-which
have significant increase in credit
risk
vi. Disputed trade receivables-credit ) ) } ) ) )
impaired
As at March 31, 2021 Zin Crore
i Outstanding for
Particulars
Less 6 1-2 2.3 More rgiq)
than 6 months- ears vears than 3
months 1 year y y years
i. Undisputed trade receivables- 2.08 ) ) ) _ 7.98

considered good

ii. Undisputed trade receivables- which
have significant increase in credit - - - - - -
risk
iii. Undisputed trade receivables- credit
impaired
iv. Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

v. Disputed Trade Receivables-which
have significant increase in credit - - - - - -
risk

vi. Disputed trade receivables-credit
impaired
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Note 8: Loans

Particulars

# HeroFinCorp.

Zin Crore

As at March As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021
A. Loans - Amortised cost
Bills purchased and bills discounted 751.48 581.37
Term loans 29,175.72 24,521.51
Triparty Repo System (TREPS) 300.03 -
Loans to employees 1.23 2.86
Total- Gross (A) 30,228.46 25,105.74
Less : Impairment loss allowance on loans (1,576.77) (1,248.89)
Total - Net (A) 28,651.69 23,856.85
B. Secured/ Unsecured
(a) Secured by tangible assets 17,909.36 17,106.45
(b) Secured by other assets 1,639.06 1,265.33
(c) Unsecured 10,680.04 6,733.96
Total - Gross (B) 30,228.46 25,105.74
Less : Impairment loss allowance on loans (1,576.77) (1,248.89)
Total - Net (B) 28,651.69 23,856.85
C. Loans in India
(a) Public sector - -
(b) Others 30,228.46 25,105.74
Total - Gross (C) 30,228.46 25,105.74
Less : Impairment loss allowance on loans (1,576.77) (1,248.89)
Total - Net (C) 28,651.69 23,856.85

Loansincludes¥422.57 crore (March 31, 2021: ¥ 362.30 crore) receivable from private companies
in which a director is a director or a member (also refer note 38).

No loans and advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMP’s and the
related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) that are repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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Note 9: Investments

# HeroFinCorp.

Zin Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

In India
At fair value through profit or loss account
In equity instruments (quoted) 0.31 0.40
In equity instruments (unquoted) 6.98 6.98
In preference instruments(quoted) 9.00 9.00
In alternative investment Fund (unquoted) 4.84 19.21
In commercial paper (quoted) - 497.07
In certificate of deposits (unquoted) 49.21 497.54
In treasury bills (quoted) 319.38 290.23
In government securities (quoted) 479.01 365.37
In corporate bonds (quoted) 105.04 25.55
In security receipts (unquoted) 2.79 -
In optional Convertible debenrures (unquoted) 0.26 -
Others (Refer note 9.1 below)
Investment in Subsidiary Company 500.00 500.00
Total- Gross 1,476.82 2,211.35
Less: Allowance for impairment - -
Total- Net 1,476.82 2,211.35

9.1 The Company has elected to account for investment in subsidiary at cost in accordance with

Ind AS 27.

9.2 The Company does not have any investment outside India.

Note 10: Other financial assets

T in Crore
. As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Security deposits (at amortised cost) 2.83 2.52
Receivable from collection agency 81.39 100.18
Other receivable 6.44 8.01
Total 90.66 110.71
Note 11: Current tax assets (net)
T in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Advance income tax [net of provision for tax ¥ 983.94 crore 114.25 41.89
(March 31, 2021: X 844.61 crore)]
Total 114.25 41.89
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13.1. Right-of-use assets

# HeroFinCorp.

% in Crore
Particulars Building

Cost
As at April 1, 2020 59.58
Additions during the year 6.04
Disposals during the year 12.79
As at March 31, 2021 52.83
Additions during the year 11.71
Disposals during the year 4.30
As at March 31, 2022 60.24
Accumulated amortization
As at April 1, 2020 9.60
Disposals during the year 3.07
Amortization charge for the year 9.80
As at March 31, 2021 16.33
Disposals during the year 4.30
Amortization charge for the year 9.57
As at March 31, 2022 21.60
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 36.50
As at March 31, 2022 38.64
13.2. Intangible assets

% in Crore

Particulars Computer
software

Cost
As at April 1, 2020 28.49
Additions during the year 7.57
Disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 36.06
Additions during the year 2.74
Disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 38.80
Accumulated amortization/ impairment
As at April 1, 2020 14.73
Disposals during the year -
Amortization charge for the year 4.73
As at March 31, 2021 19.46
Disposals during the year -
Amortization charge for the year 5.11
As at March 31, 2022 24.57
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 16.60
As at March 31, 2022 14.23

Note: The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use

assets) or intangible assets during the current or previous year.
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Note 14: Other non-financial assets

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Capital advances 0.41 2.75
Prepaid expenses 23.57 16.58
Others 29.62 13.03
Total 53.60 32.36
Note 15: Trade payables
g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small ) 0.12
enterprises; and ’
(ii) Total ou_tstandlng dues of creqwors other than micro 289.37 248.76
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 289.37 248.88
15.1 Disclosures relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are
as follows:
. As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at - 0.12
the end of the accounting year
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as - -
at the end of the accounting year
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at - -
the end of the accounting year
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in - -
the succeeding year, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid
Total - 0.12

15.2 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.

As at March 31, 2022 Zin Crore
Outstanding for
Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
i. MSME - - - - -
ii. Others 32.94 - - - 32.94
iii. Others- Unbilled 256.43 - - - 256.43

iv. Disputed Dues - MSME - -
v. Disputed Dues - Others - -
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# HeroFinCorp.

As at March 31, 2021 T in Crore
Outstanding for
Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
i. MSME 0.12 - - - 0.12
ii. Others 60.80 - - - 60.80
iii. Others- Unbilled 187.96 - - - 187.96
iv. Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
v. Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
Note 16: Debt securities
g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Debt securities (at amortised cost)

Secured

;Rﬁgefg?s)ble non-convertible debentures (refer note 16.1, 16.2 2.259.26 1,481.21
Unsecured

Commercial papers (refer note 16.4 and 16.5 below) 3,212.23 2,599.64
Total 5,471.49 4,080.85

Debt securities in India 5,471.49 4,080.85

Debt securities outside India - -
Total 5,471.49 4,080.85
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16.1 Terms of fully paid up privately placed secured redeemable non convertible debentures:

31t Annual Report 2021-22

Zin Crore
As at March As at March
ISIN of NCD Issue |Redemption|Interest 31, 2022 31, 2021
Date Date Rate | Number Amount Number Amount
of NCDs ount | of NcDs | MO
INE957N07468 Zgojfge 20 June 2022| 8.41% 1100 110.00 1,100 110.00
18 August| 18 August
INES57N07351 2017 2022 7.70% 850 85.00 850 85.00
20 20 December
INE957N07484 | December 7.75% 1000 100.00 1,000 100.00
2022
2019
27 April .
INES57N07492 2020 27 April 2023| 7.85% 3500 350.00 3,500 350.00
28 28 February
INE957N07666 | February 6.20% 1500 150.00 - -
2024
2022
19 March 15 March
INES57N07583 2021 2024 6.50% 1000 100.00 1,000 100.00
20 May 3m T-bill ) )
INE957N07609 2021 20 May 2024 + 2.00% 2000 200.00
Zero
03 Percent
INES957N07534 | November |21 May 2024 (XIRR 250 25.00 250 25.00
2020 6.38%)
20 July 3m T-bill ) )
INE957N07625 2021 19 July 2024 + 1.75% 2150 215.00
03 August| 02 August ) )
INES57N07633 2021 2024 6.25% 2000 200.00
Zero
11 August| 09 August | Percent _ _
INE957N07641 2021 2024 (XIRR 1500 150.00
6.25%)
10 10
INE957N07526 |September| September | 7.30% 1500 150.00 1,500 150.00
2020 2024
Zero
14 July , Percent ) }
INE957N07617 2021 15 April 2025 (XIRR 500 50.00
6.57%)
Zero
24 July Percent
INES57N07500 2020 24 July 2025 (XIRR 250 25.00 250 25.00
7.55%)
03 03 November
INE957N07542 | November 6.95% 1000 100.00 1,000 100.00
2025
2020
Zero
19 January| 19 January | Percent
INES57N07567 2021 2026 (XIRR 250 25.00 250 25.00
6.90%)
INE957N07591 Ozol\giy 07 May 2031 | 7.35% 250 25.00 - -

|
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As at March As at March
Issue |Redemption|Interest 31, 2022 31, 2021
ISIN of NCD Date Date Rate | Number A t Number A t
of NCDs | “™M%UM | of NCDs | MO
Zero
06 January Percent ) )
INE957N07146 2016 10 June 2021 (XIRR 120 12.00
8.76%)
Zero
08 January . Percent } )
INE9S7NO7369 |~ 545 |08 April 2021 (XIRR 1,150 115.00
8.10%)
21
INES57N07435 | December | 07 May 2021 | 9.25% - - 250 25.00
2018
INE957N07377 |°8 ;gqgary 08 July 2021 | 8.10% - - 800 80.00
03 January| 03 January ) )
INE957N07450 |~ 51 g 2022 9.23% 1,000 30.00
Sub total 20,600 | 2,060.00| 14,020 |1,332.00

16.2 Terms of partly paid up privately placed secured redeemable non convertible debentures

% in Crore
As at March As at March
ISIN of NCD Issue Redemption Interest 31, 2022 31, 2021
Date Date Rate Number Amount Number Amount
of NCDs “™MOUM of NCDs ou
27 27
INES57N07658* December December 9.55% 2,500 200.00 2,500.00 150.00
2018 2028
EIR adjustments (0.74) (0.79)

Grand Total 23,100 2,259.26 16,520 1,481.21

* ISIN for previous year was INE957NQ07559. Further, the debentures are secured by first pari-
passu charge by way of hypothecation of book debts and receivables.

16.3 The debentures are Secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of book
debts and receivables

16.4 Commercial papers are repayable within 12 months and issued at a discount rate ranging

from 4.30% p.a. to 5.37% p.a. (March 31, 2021: 3.80% p.a. to 4.93% p.a.)

16.5 Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2019/115 dated October 22,
2019, the Company has listed all the Commercial Papers on National Stock Exchange

(NSE) outstanding as on January 1, 2020, within the timelines as given in the circular.

16.6 No non-convertible debentures and commercial papers is guaranteed by directors and /

or others.

16.7 During the period presented there were no defaults in the repayment of principal and

interest.

|
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Note 17: Borrowings (other than debt securities)

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

At amortised cost

Term loan from banks and financial institutions (Secured)
(refer note 17.1 and 17.2)

Term loan from banks - Foreign Currency Loan (Secured) (refer

16,397.77  15,442.83

note 17.5) 51.32 )
External commercial borrowing (Secured) (refer note 17.4) 859.43 200.00
Loan repayable on demand from banks

- Cash credit (Secured) (refer note 17.3) 546.70 129.06
- Working capital demand loans (Secured) (refer note 17.3) 1,760.00 1,370.38
- Working capital demand loans (Unsecured) (refer note 17.3) 385.00 -
Total 20,000.22 17,142.27
Borrowing in India 19,140.79 16,942.27
Borrowing outside India 859.43 200.00
Total 20,000.22 17,142.27

17.1 Secured term loans from banks and financial institutions aggregating ¥ 16,237.92 crore
before eir adjustments (March 31, 2021: % 15,215.75 crore) carrying interest rate ranging
from 5.13% p.a. to 8.00% p.a (March 31, 2021: 6.05% p.a.to 9.00% p.a.) are secured
by a first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of book debts and receivables.

17.2 Secured term loans from banks and financial institutions aggregating ¥ 166.50 crore
before eir adjustments (March 31, 2021: ¥ 233.30 crore) carrying interest rate of 7.15%
p.a. (March 31, 2021: 7.15% p.a.) are secured by a first exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation of book debts and receivables.

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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17.6 No term loans, cash credit, working capital demand from banks and any other borrowing
is guaranteed by directors and / or others.

During the periods presented, there were no defaults in the repayment of principal and
interest.

The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific
purpose for which it was taken.

Quarterly returns or statements of receivable, current assets etc. filed by the Company
with banks, financial institutions or others are in agreement with the books of account
except the insignificant differences.

17.10 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

17.11 There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory period.

31t Annual Report 2021-22

17.7
17.8

17.9

Note 18: Subordinated liabilities

Zin Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
At amortised cost
Subordinated liabilities (unsecured)
Redeemable non-convertible debentures-Tier II (refer note 18.1 593.51 593.31
and 18.2 below)
Total 593.51 593.31
Subordinated liabilities in India 593.51 593.31
Subordinated liabilities outside India - -
Total 593.51 593.31
Terms of repyament of non-convertible debentures-Tier II:
As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Redemption | Interest . !
ISIN of NCD |Issue Date Date Rate | Number An;?:nt Number An;?:nt
of NCDs Crore of NCDs Crore
15 15
INE957N08011| September | September 9.35% 1,000| 100.00 1,000| 100.00
2015 2025
03 August 03 August
INES57N08029 2016 2026 8.98% 1,000 100.00 1,000 100.00
INE957N08037 zgoJf;‘e 18 June 2027| 8.52%| 1,000/ 100.00| 1,000/ 100.00
06 24 November
INES57N08045| December 9.81% 1,250 125.00 1,250 125.00
2028
2018
05 February| 05 February o
INE957N08052 2020 2030 8.85% 1,000 100.00 1,000 100.00
04 March 04 March
INES57N08060 2020 2030 8.49% 250 25.00 250 25.00
11 11 December
INE957N08078| December 7.65% 450 45.00 450 45.00
2030
2020
EIR adjustments (1.49) (1.69)
5,950| 593.00 5,950| 593.51

|
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18.1 No subordinated debts is guaranteed by directors and /or others.
18.2 During the period presented there were no defaults in the repayment of principal and

interest.

Note 19: Lease liabilities

# HeroFinCorp.

T in Crores
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Lease liabilities (Refer note 41) 43.60 40.40
Total 43.60 40.40
Note 20: Other financial liabilities
% in Crore
As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021
Interest accrued but not due on :
- Debt securities 98.59 100.13
- Borrowings 19.87 34.02
- Subordinated liabilities 24.09 24.09
Unclaimed dividend (refer note 20.1) 0.49 0.53
Book overdrafts 131.36 135.53
Other payables
Salaries and wages payable 23.54 10.89
Security deposits 0.17 0.27
Loans pending disbursement 126.31 65.91
Margin money from customers 27.88 22.08
Others 55.28 78.53
Total 507.58 471.99

20.1 Unclaimed dividend does not include any amount outstanding as on March 31, 2022
and March 31, 2021 which are required to be credited to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

Note 21: Current tax liabilities (net)

g in Crore
Particul As at March As at March
articulars 31, 2022 31, 2021
Provision for income tax [net of advance tax ¥ 87.54 crores - 8.60
(March 31, 2021 : ¥ 100.55 crores)
Total - 8.60

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 22: Provisions

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for gratuity (refer note 34.2) 24.32 20.63
- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 34.3) 18.06 16.81
Total 42.38 37.44

Note 23: Other non-financial liabilities

T in Crore
. As at March As at March

Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Unamortised interest on margin money deposits 11.52 7.34
Statutory dues payable 40.74 26.55
Total 52.26 33.89

Note 24: Equity share capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares Zin Crore shares Zin Crore
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥10 each 300,000,020 300.00 150,000,000 150.00

Class A Compulsorily convertible
preference shares of ¥ 550 each

Class B Compulsorily convertible
preference shares of ¥ 550 each

17,036,363 937.00 - -

19,327,273 1,063.00 - -

336,363,656 2,300.00 150,000,000 150.00

Issued

Equity shares of %10 each 127,306,674 127.31 127.306,674 127.31
127,306,674 127.31 127,306,674 127.31

Subscribed

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (fully 127,305,868  127.31 127,305,868  127.31

paid up)

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (partly 806 # 806 #

paid up: ¥ 5 each)
Total 127,306,674 127.31 127,306,674 127.31
# Below rounding off norms.

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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# HeroFinCorp.

24.1 Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the

end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Zin Crore Shares Z in Crore
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (Fully
Paid up)
Opening balance 127,305,868 127.31 114,195,126 114.20

Converted into fully paid up during the

year (fully paid up)

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (partly

paid up: T 5 each)

Opening balance 806
Converted into fully paid up share

during the year ¥ 10 each

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (partly

paid up: ¥ 5.60 each)

Opening balance -
Converted into fully paid up share

during the year ¥ 10 each

- - 13,110,742 13.11
# 1,795 #

- - (989)
- 13,109,753 7.34
- - (13,109,753) (7.34)
127.31 127,306,674 127.31

Outstanding at the end of the year 127,306,674

# Below rounding off norms.

24.2 During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has received first and
final call money of ¥ 360 per equity share on 13,109,753 shares and consequently the
Company has converted 13,109,753 partly paid equity shares into fully paid up equity

shares.

24.3 Terms/ rights, preference and restriction attached to equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(i) The Company has only one class of equity share having face value of ¥ 10 per share.
Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share held.

(ii) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors which is subject to approval of
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting shall be in the same proportion as the

capital paid upon such equity share.

(iii) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in
proportion to capital paid upon such equity share.

24.4 Detail of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
As at March

Name of Shareholder

Number of

31, 2022

% of

As at March
31, 2021
Number of % of

Shares held Holding Shares held Holding_

Equity shares

Hero MotoCorp Ltd. 52,431,893 41.19 52,431,893 41.19
Bahadur Chand Investment Pvt. Ltd. 25,896,764 20.34 25,896,764 20.34
Otter Limited 12,882,170 10.12 12,882,170 10.12
Mr. Pawan Munjal (refer note 24.5 below) 3,608,812 2.83 3,608,812 2.83
Ms. Renu Munjal (refer note 24.5 below) 4,094,737 3.22 4,094,737 3.22
Ms. Santosh Munjal (refer note 24.5 below) 3,23,600 0.25 3,23,600 0.25
E/Ier.IOSV\lIJ)man Kant Munjal (refer note 24.5 4,094,737 3.22 4,094,737 3.22
Total Brijmohan Lall Om Parkash 12,121,886 9.52 12,121,886 9.52

(Partnership firm)

24.5 Holding shares on behalf of Brijmohan Lall Om Prakash (partnership firm)

|
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24.6 Shareholding of Promoters

# HeroFinCorp.

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
S. Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage
Promoter Name No. of of change No. of of change
No. of total " of total -
shares during the | shares during the
shares shares
year year
Hero Motocorp ) }
1 Limited 52,431,893 41.19 52,431,893 41.19
Bahadur Chand
2 |Investments 25,896,764 20.34 -| 25,896,764 20.34 -
Private Limited
Brijmohan Lal
3 |Om Parkash 12,121,886 9.52 -1 12,121,886 9.52 -
(partnership Firm)
4 |Herolnvestcorp | 3 433 ggg 2.70 -| 34,33,008 2.70 .
Private Limited
Munjal Acme
5 |Packaging Systems| 1,921,968 1.51 -l 1,921,968 1.51 -
Private Limited
g |Pawan Munjal 790,394 0.62 - 790,394 0.62 -
Family Trust
RK Munjal and ) -
7 Sons Trust 790,394 0.62 790,394 0.62
8 |Renu Munijal 410,740 0.32 - 410,740 0.32 -
9 |Annuvrat Munjal 342,945 0.27 - 342,945 0.27 -
10 |[Santosh Munjal - 0.00 (0.25) 315,000 0.25 -
11 [Sunil Kant Munjal 314,502 0.25 - 314,502 0.25 -
12 |Abhimanyu Munjal 301,363 0.24 - 301,363 0.24 -
13 [Pawan Munjal 592,259 0.47 0.25 277,259 0.22 -
14 |Survam Trust 243,905 0.19 - 243,905 0.19 -
15 |Ujjwal Munjal 224,420 0.18 - 224,420 0.18 -
16 |Rahul Munjal 224,166 0.18 - 224,166 0.18 -
17 |Supria Munjal 190,978 0.15 - 190,978 0.15 -
18 |[Vasudha Dinodia 190,978 0.15 - 190,978 0.15 -
19 |Akshay Munjal 187,324 0.15 - 187,324 0.15 -
20 [>uman Kant 184,534 0.15 | 184,534 0.15 -
Munjal
21 |Radhika Uppal 104,805 0.08 - 104,805 0.08 -
22 |Vidur Munijal 99,531 0.08 - 99,531 0.08 -
23 |Geeta Anand 99,423 0.08 - 99,423 0.08 -
24 |Aniesha Munjal 91,704 0.07 - 91,704 0.07 -
25 |Shefali Munjal 45,675 0.04 - 45,675 0.04 -
26 |Renuka Munijal 16,373 0.01 - 16,373 0.01 -
27 |Mukta Munjal 4,500 0.00 - 4,500 0.00 -

24.7 There are no shares issued by way of bonus shares or issued for consideration other than
cash and no shares were bought back during the period of 5 years immediately preceding
the reporting date.

24.8

|

Employee stock options

Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in Note 45 regarding
share based payments.
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Note 25: Other equity

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore

Particulars Agf’t;l)azr;h A;f,t;‘l)azr:h
Securities premium
Opening balance as at reporting date 3,946.30 3,481.96
Add: Additions during the year - 466.22
Less: Share issue expenses - (1.88)
Closing balance as at reporting date 3,946.30 3,946.30
Statutory reserve
Opening balance as at reporting date 265.35 251.23
Add: Transferred from retained earnings - 14.12
Closing balance as at reporting date 265.35 265.35
Stock options outstanding account
Opening balance as at reporting date 23.23 19.01
Add: Charge during the year 4.10 4.22
Closing balance as at reporting date 27.33 23.23
General reserve
Opening balance as at reporting date 131.03 123.96
Add: Transfer from retained earning - 7.06
Closing balance as at reporting date 131.03 131.03
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Opening balance as at reporting date - -
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (0.12) 0.11
Less: Transferred to retained earnings 0.12 (0.11)
Closing balance as at reporting date - -
Cash flow hedge reserve
Opening balance as at reporting date - -
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (0.84) -
Closing balance as at reporting date (0.84) -
Retained earnings
Opening balance as at reporting date 548.33 529.77
Add: Profit / (loss) for the year (194.00) 70.62
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (0.12) 0.11
Less: Dividend paid on equity shares (12.73) (30.99)
Less: Transfers to general reserves - (7.06)
Less: Transfers to statutory reserve - (14.12)
Closing balance as at reporting date 341.48 548.33
Total 4,710.64 4,914.23
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Nature of other equity:

Securities premium:

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issuance of shares. Securities premium can
be utilised as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory reserve:

Statutory reserve is used to record reserve in accordance with section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. The statutory reserves can be utilised for the purpose as specified by the RBI
from time to time.

Stock options outstanding account:

Stock option outstanding account is created as required by Ind AS 102 ‘Share Based Payments’
on the Employee Stock Option Scheme operated by the company for employees of the group. The
reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees under Company’s
employee stock option plan. Refer note 45 for further detail of this plan.

General reserve:
Free reserve to be utilized as per provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cash flow hedge reserve:

It represents the cumulative gains/(losses) arising on revaluation of the derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges through OCI.

Retained earnings:

Retained earnings is used to record profit/ (loss) for the year. This amount is utilised as per the
provision of Companies Act, 2013.

Note 26: Revenue from operations

g in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Interest on:
- Loans (at amortised cost) 3,934.85 3,610.19
- Investments (FVTPL) 22.28 5.36
- Fixed deposits 12.72 37.88
Dividend income 0.74 0.74
Profit on sale of investments 38.78 19.98
Rental income 1.96 6.48
Net gain on fair value changes 19.72 21.39
Insurance commission 15.36 13.17
Others charges 394.17 330.74
Total 4,440.58 4,045.93

|
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Note 27: Other income

For the year

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore
For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Fees on value added services 45.62 45.71
Other income 4.38 -
Total 50.00 45.71
Note 28: Finance costs
T in Crore

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
- Interest on debt securities 246.30 290.03
- Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,204.71 1,202.46
- Interest on subordinated liabilities 53.73 50.96
- Interest on lease liabilities 3.58 3.98
- Others 0.56 3.06
Total 1,508.88 1,550.49
Note 29: Impairment on financial instruments
T in Crore

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Impairment allowance (on loans measured at amortised cost) 327.88 368.14
Settlement loss and bad debts written off * 1,506.66 1,030.90
Total 1,834.54 1,399.04

* Net off recoveries from bad debts written off cases ¥ 140.32 crore (March 31, 2021: ¥ 26.35

crore).

Note 30: Employee benefits expenses

For the year

T in Crore
For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Salaries and wages 253.12 212.78
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 34.1) 12.90 12.57
Employee share based payment expense (refer note 45) 4.21 4.24
Gratuity expense (refer note 34.2) 4.99 4.39
Staff welfare expenses 5.50 2.90
Total 280.72 236.89
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Note 31: Other expenses

For the year

# HeroFinCorp.

T in Crore
For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Rent 0.70 1.88
Rates and taxes 0.63 2.29
Insurance 9.22 7.33
Repairs and maintenance
-Building 1.23 2.30
-Vehicle 0.17 0.21
Contractual staff cost 184.68 126.64
Recruitment and training 9.31 3.33
Loan processing fee 7.72 5.02
Communication 10.44 10.69
Printing and stationery 5.71 7.26
Bank charges 34.20 39.15
Travelling and conveyance 18.11 8.00
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 2.72 3.67
Advertisement and marketing 6.75 5.71
Information technology 80.85 66.01
Loan collection charges 666.08 465.49
Ir_eelg‘\aL:nael';gtip)()rr(]);’essional (refer note 31.1 for auditor’s 32.73 13.30
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR)
(refer note 31.2) 2.69 0.06
Miscellaneous 20.97 16.14
Total 1,094.91 784.48
31.1: Auditor’s remuneration
g in Crore

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Audit fee 0.95 0.68
Limited review 0.33 0.14
Certification fees 0.28 0.19
Group reporting 0.07 0.14
Others 0.47 -
Out of pocket expenses 0.10 0.05
Total 2.20 1.20
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31.2: Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

g in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company
during the year 5.73 7.02
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the
year 5.73 7.02
(c) Amount spent during the year on:
i) Construction/acquisition of any assets - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above 1.53 0.06
(d) Shortfall at the end of the year 1.16 -
(e) Total of previous years shortfall - -
(f) Reason for shortfall - -
(g) Nature of CSR activities # -
(h) Amount carried forward from previous year for setting off
in the current year 3.04 10.00
(i) Excess amount spend during the year carried forward to
subsequent year - -
(j) The company has spent excess amount and details of the
same are as follows:-
T in Crore
. . . Amount required Amount Balance not Balance carried
F||;|{ae|;|al ngan.:zg to be spent spent during carried forward forward to next
during the year the year to next year year
2020-21%* 10.00 7.02 0.06 - 3.04
2021-22 3.04 5.73 1.53 - (1.16)

* The Company had set-off fund which was carried forward from previous year in the current
financial year, based on communication released by Ministry of Corporate affairs.

# Promoting education including skill development

Note 32: Earnings per equity share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to Equity
Shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of Equity
Shares and also the weighted average number of Equity Shares that could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares. The dilutive potential Equity Shares are
adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value.
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The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

As at March As at March

Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Net profit/ (loss) for the year (X in Crore) (A) (194.00) 70.62
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares
y:::ber of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the 127,306,674 127,306,674
Number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 127,306,674 127,306,674
Nominal value of equity share (in %) 10 10

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year (B) 127,306,271 122,185,562

Basic earnings per share of face value of ¥ 10 each (A) / (B) (15.24) 5.78
Weighted average number of potential dilutive equity shares (C) 127,448,798 122,337,771
(Délitg)e earnings per share of face value of ¥ 10 each (A) / (15.24) 5 77

Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 127.306.271 122.185.562
the year ! ! ! !

Add: Number of potential equity share in respect of employee 142,527 152,209
stock option scheme and partly paid up shares
Weighted average number of potential dilutive equity shares 127,448,798 122,337,771

Note 33: Operating segment

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is
available. The Company is engaged in the business of financing, leasing and related financial
services. Accordingly, the Company’s activities/ business is regularly reviewed by the Company’s
Jt. Managing Director assisted by an executive committee from an overall business perspective,
rather than reviewing its product/ services as individual standalone components. Thus, the
Company has only one operating segment, and no reportable segments in accordance with Ind
AS 108 Operating Segments.

a) The Entity wide disclosures as required by Ind AS 108 are as follows ;
Information about products and services:

The Company provides a wide portfolio of financial products including two-wheeler loan,
pre-owned car loan, loyalty personal loan, inventory funding, loan against property, loans
to small, medium and emerging corporates etc.

The break-up of revenue from interest income and other income is provided in note 26.
b) Revenue from external customers
The entire income of the Company is generated from customers who are domiciled in India.

c) Revenue from external customer

The Company does not derives revenues, from any single customer, amounting to ten per
cent or more of Company’s revenues.
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Note 34: Retirement benefit plan

34.1 Defined contribution plans

The Company makes periodic contribution towards provident fund, superannuation fund
and national pension scheme which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no
obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as expense
towards such contribution are as follows:

T in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 11.31 11.19
Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund 0.86 0.72
Employer’s contribution to national pension scheme 0.73 0.66
12.90 12.57

34.2 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to
the benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service.
The same is payable on termination of service, or retirement, or death, whichever is
earlier. The benefit vests after five year of continuous service. The benefit to employees
is as per the plan rules or as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whichever is earlier.

i) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances
for net defined benefit liability and its components:

T in Crore
As at March As at March

Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 20.63 17.00
Included in statement of profit and loss account :
Current service cost 3.72 3.37
Interest expense 1.27 1.02
Benefits paid (1.46) (0.61)
3.53 3.78
Remeasurementgains/(losses) inother comprehensive
income (OCI)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from :
- demographic assumptions - -
- financial assumptions 0.10 0.95
- experience adjustment 0.06 (1.10)
0.16 (0.15)
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - -
Balance at the end of the year 24.32 20.63

Since the liability is not funded. Therefore information with regards to the plan assets has
not been furnished.
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ii) Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss account :

g in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Current service cost 3.72 3.37
Net interest expense/ (income) 1.27 1.02
Total 4,99 4.39
ili) Expense recognised in Other comprehensive income/ (loss):
T in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
Actuarial loss (gain)/arising from :
- demographic assumptions - -
- financial assumptions 0.10 0.95
- experience adjustment 0.06 (1.10)
Total 0.16 (0.15)

iv) Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

Discount rate 6.15% 6.15%
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 24.00% 24.00%

31 - 44 years 22.00% 22.00%

Above 44 years 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality rate 100% of 100% of

IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Retirement age (years) 58 58

Future salary growth* 7-12% 7-12%

*  The estimate of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market etc.
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v) Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions

The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption,
holding other assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit obligation would
have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably
possible at the reporting date.

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (- / + 1%) 23.13 25.67 19.57 21.83
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 25.64 23.14 21.79 19.58
Attrition rate (- / + 50%) 23.69 25.12 19.63 21.96
Mortality rate (- / + 10%) 24.32 24.33 20.63 20.63

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under
the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

vi) Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period

Since the scheme is managed on unfunded basis, the next year contribution is taken as
Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil)

vii) Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years (valued
on undiscounted basis)

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Duration (years) 31, 2022 31, 2021

within the next 12 months 10.74 8.70
Between 2 to 5 years 6.20 5.35
Above 5 years 5.85 16.90

As at March 31, 2022, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 5
years (March 31, 2021: 5 years)

34.3 Other long term employee benefit plan

Other long term employee benefit plans comprises compensated absences. The Company
operates compensated absences plan (earned leaves), where in every employee is entitled
to the benefit equivalent to 13 days salary for every completed year of service which is
subject to maximum of 90 days accumulation of leaves. The same is payable during early
retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee.
The Company also recognises sick leave provision, where in every employee is entitled
to the benefit equivalent to 6 days salary for every completed year of service which is
subject to maximum of 20 days accumulation of leaves. The salary for calculation of
earned leave and sick leaves are last drawn basic salary. The amount of the provision is
¥ 18.06 crore (March 31, 2021: ¥ 16.81 crore) as per the actuarial report.
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Note 36: Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

g in Crore
. April 1, Cash March 31,

Particulars 2021 flows Others 2022
Debt securities* 4,080.85 1,283.65 106.99 5,471.49
Borrowings other than debt securities 17,142.27 2,857.95 - 20,000.22
Subordinated liabilities 593.31 0.20 - 593.51
Lease Liabilities 40.40 (11.87) 15.07 43.60
Total liabilities from financing activities 21,856.83 4,129.93 122.06 26,108.82
g in Crore
. April 1, Cash March 31,

Particulars 2020 flows Others 2021
Debt securities* 5,231.98 (1,298.24) 147.11 4,080.85
Borrowings other than debt securities 14,610.11 2,532.16 - 17,142.27
Subordinated liabilities 548.35 44.96 - 593.31
Lease Liabilities 51.99 (11.23) (0.36) 40.40

Total liabilities from financing activities 20,442.44 1,267.65 146.75 21,856.83

* Others debt securities represent discount on commercial paper amortised during the year.

Note 37: Contingent liabilities and commitments

T in Crore
As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

37.1 Capital commitment

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for (net

of advances paid amounting to ¥ 0.41 crore (March 31, 0.81 0.35
2021: % 2.75 crore)

(ii) Undrawn committed credit lines 552.23 240.28

Total 553.04 240.63

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

37.2 Contingent liability

VAT matters under appeal 0.53 0.32
Income tax matters

Appeals/ Writ by the company 298.62 211.99
Appeals by the Income tax department 0.33 0.33
Total 299.48 212.64

(a) The Company has provided bank guarantee amounting to ¥ 0.25 crore (March 31, 2021: %
0.25 crore) to National Stock Exchange for the purpose of meeting margin requirements.

(b) The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) which may impact
the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date
from which the Code and its provisions would be applicable is yet to be notified and the
rules which would provide the details based on which financial impact can be determined
are yet to be framed after which the financial impact can be ascertained. The Company
will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact, if any, in the financial result
following the Code becoming effective and the related rules being framed and notified.

37.3 The Company has made provisions as required under the applicable laws or accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses, if any, long term contracts.
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Note 38: Related party transactions

List of Related parties:

A Related party where control exists irrespective whether transactions have occurred
or not

(a) Subsidiary of the Company:

Hero Housing Finance Limited

# HeroFinCorp.

B Other related parties where transactions have occurred during the year

(a) Parties in respect of which the Company is an associate:

Hero MotoCorp Limited

Bahadur Chand Investment Private Limited - Core Investment Company

(b) Key managerial personnel (KMP):

Mr. Pawan Munjal — Chairman
Ms. Renu Munjal - Managing Director

Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal - Joint Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Pradeep Dinodia - Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Kukreja - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vivek Chand Sehgal - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Jayesh Jain - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Shivendra Suman - Company Secretary

(c) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able

201

to exercise significant influence:

Hero Future Energies Private Limited

Hero Investcorp Private Limited

Hero Solar Energy Private Limited

Brijmohan Lall Om Parkash (Partnership Firm)

Munjal Acme Packaging Systems Private Limited

Cosmic Kitchen Private Limited

A.G. Industries Private Limited

Ather Energy Private Limited

Tessolve Semiconductor Private Limited

Hero Wind Energy Private Limited

Clean Solar Power (Jaipur) Private Limited
Clean Wind Power (Anantapur) Private Limited
Clean Wind Power (Jaisalmer) Private Limited
Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited
SR Dinodia & Co. LLP

Hero Mind Mine Institute Private limited

BML Munjal University

Motherson Auto Limited

Motherson Lease Solution Limited

Spirited Auto Cars (I) Limited
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Transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Transaction with subsidiary

T in Crore

For the year For the year
ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Hero Housing Finance Limited
Investment in equity shares - 100.00
ESOP cross charge received 0.29 0.53
ESOP cross charge paid 0.02 0.15
Rental income 0.23 0.64
Other Income 4.38 -
Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.09 0.16
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.06 -

(b) Transaction with parties in respect of which the Company is an Associate
T in Crore
For the year For the year
ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Hero MotoCorp Limited

Dividend received 0.01 0.01

Dividend paid 5.24 12.76

Lease rental received 1.73 5.90

Recovery of Insurance expense - 0.40

Proceeds against share issued (including share premium) - 194.38

Subvention income 8.74 5.72

Reimbursement for sale of operating lease vehicles 0.75 3.85
Bahadur Chand Investment Private Limited

Dividend paid 2.59 6.30

Proceeds against share issued (including share premium) - 96.59

(c) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able
to exercise significant influence

g in Crore

For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Hero Future Energies Private Limited

Loan given - 55.00

Loan repaid - 55.00

Interest received/accrued - 3.38

Processing fees received - 0.41
Cosmic Kitchen Private Limited

Staff welfare expense and others 0.22 0.15
BrijMohan Lall Om Prakash (Partnership firm)

Loan given - 232.50

Loan repaid - 232.50

Interest received/accrued - 4,94

Processing fees received - 6.75

Dividend Paid 1.21 3.09
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T in Crore

For the year For the year
ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Hero Investcorp Private Limited

Proceeds against share issued (including share premium) - 5.27

Dividend paid 0.34 0.86
Munjal Acme Packaging Systems Private Limited

Dividend paid 0.19 0.49
Ather Energy Private Limited

Loan given (including interest capitalisation) 130.00 5.27

Loan repaid 44.47 20.30

Processing fees received 2.60 0.75

Interest received/accrued 24.97 16.23

Other charges 0.02 -
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited

Loan given 250.00 -

Loan repaid 25.00 -

Processing fees received 2.50 -

Interest received/accrued 16.38 -
Motherson Lease Solution Limited

Loan given 42.50 -

Interest received/accrued 0.03 -
Tessolve Semiconductor Private Limited

Loan given - -

Loan repaid - 15.00

Processing fees received - 0.15

Interest received/accrued - 0.44
Hero Wind Energy Private Limited

Loan given - 350.00

Loan repaid 250.77 100.58

Processing fees received - 1.47

Interest received/accrued 20.20 23.44
Clean Wind Power (Anantapur) Private Limited

Loan repaid - 150.00

Interest received/accrued - 7.27
Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited

Loan repaid - 50.00

Interest received/accrued - 3.20

Motherson Auto Limited
Loan repaid 71.65 7.92
Interest received/accrued -

Hero Mind Mine Institute Private limited
Employee’s training expense 0.48 0.21

SR Dinodia & Co. LLP

Professional Fee 0.02 -
BML Munjal University

Employee’s training expense 0.22 -
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(d) Transactions with key management personnel and their relatives:
g in Crore

For the year For the year
ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Short term employee benefits*# 22.38 32.93
Post-employment benefits# - -
Other long-term benefits# - -
Dividend paid 0.30 0.92
Director sitting fee/commission 0.34 0.62

* Includes variable pay/ commission on payment basis since accruals are made at the
Company level and are subject to requisite approvals.

# Does not include gratuity and compensated absences as these are provided based on the
Company as a whole.

Outstanding balances at the year end :

(a) Parties in respect of which the Company is an Associate
T in Crore
As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Hero MotoCorp Limited
Amount receivable as at year end 0.06 5.86

(b) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to
exercise significant influence

g in Crore

As at March As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Ather Energy Private Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) 196.82 111.53

Hero Solar Energy Pvt Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) 225.75 -

Motherson Lease Solution Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) 42.53 -

Motherson Auto Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) - 71.65

Hero Wind Energy Private Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) - 250.77

(c) Outstanding balance due to key management personnel and their relatives as at
year end:

% in Crore
As at March As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Salary and wages payable - -
Post-employment benefits# - -
Other long-term benefits# - -

# Does not include gratuity and compensated absences as these are provided based on the
Company as a whole.
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Note 39: Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the
business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
of India. The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures,
the regulations issued by RBI. The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed
capital requirements over the reported period.

39.1 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that
the Company complies with regulatory capital requirements. The Company ensures
adequate capital at all time and manages its business in a way in which capital is protected,
satisfactory business growth is ensured, cash flow are monitored, borrowing covenants
are honoured and ratings are maintained.

Regulatory capital- related information is presented as part of the RBI mandated
disclosures. The RBI norms require capital to be maintained at prescribed level. In
accordance with such norms, Tier I capital of the Company comprises of share capital,
share premium, retained earnings, general reserve, statutory reserve, employee stock
options outstanding account less deferred revenue expenditure, deferred tax assets and
other intangible assets (excluding right-of-use assets). The other component of regulatory
capital is Tier II Capital Instruments, which include subordinate debt and impairment
allowance on loans for stage 1 to the extent the same does not exceed 1.25 % of Risk
Weight Assets. There were no changes in capital management process during the period
presented.

39.2 Regulatory Capital

Refer note no 46.1 for regulatory capital.

Note 40: Events after balance sheet date

There have been no significant events after the reporting date that requires disclosure in these
financial statements.

Note 41: Leases

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 12.57 crore for the year ended March 31,
2022 (March 31, 2021:% 13.11 crore) including expense of ¥ 0.70 crore for the year ended March
31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: ¥ 1.88 crore) relating to short term leases. The Company does not
have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 35.

Note 42: Financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments by category and fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are:

(@) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measuredatamortised costandforwhichfairvaluesaredisclosedinthefinancial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
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(b) Changes in level 3 financial assets (Valued at FVTPL)
g in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Opening balance 523.74 42.61
Acquisitions during the year 428.32 492.80
Disposals during the year 888.71 24.58
Fair value gains/losses recognised in profit or loss 0.73 12.91
Gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Closing balance 64.08 523.74

(c) Valuation framework

The finance department of the Company includes personnel that performs the valuations of
financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO).

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market
data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities
in active markets, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument but do not
qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the
instrumentsisincludedinlevel 3. Thatis, Level 3 inputs incorporate market participants’
assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order
to bear that risk. The Company develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information
available in the circumstances.

The Company uses suitable valuation models to determine the fair value of common and simple
financial instruments, that use only observable market data and require little management
judgement and estimation.

Loans

The fair value of loan and advances are estimated by discounted cash flow models. For fixed
rate loans, the fair value represent the discounted value of the expected future cash flow. For
floating rate interest loans, the carrying amount of loans represent fair market value of loans.
Fair value is then reduced by the impairment loss allowance on loans which is already calculated
incorporating probability of default and loss given defaults.

Debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities

Fair value is estimated at portfolio level by a discounted cash flow model incorporating market
interest rates and the company’s own credit risk or based on market-observable data such as
secondary market prices for its traded debt. Further, for floating rate interest bearing borrowings,
the carrying amount of borrowings represent fair market value of borrowings.

Investments

Investment in alternate investment fund is recorded at fair value determined by third party using
discounted cash flow method. Investment in government securities, commercial paper, treasury
bills, certificate of deposits, corporate bonds etc. are fair valued at reporting date. For rest of the
investments, based on the information available from external sources, management believes
that the carrying value of the investments approximates the fair value.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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Note 43: Risk management framework
43.1 Risk profile and risk mitigation
(a) Risk management structure and Company'’s risk profile

The Company’s Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board of directors has
established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to
the board of directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

43.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash
and cash equivalents, investments and other financial assets. Credit risk is the risk of
financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s asset
on finance and trade receivables from customers; loans and investments. The carrying
amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

(a) Credit risk management
Financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Company splits its exposure into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on shared
credit risk characteristics, as described below in the following order:

- Secured/unsecured i.e. based on whether the loans are secured
- Nature of security i.e. the nature of the security if the loans are determined to be secured
- Nature of loan i.e. based on the nature of loan

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence
the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry.
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organization;

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the Company’s standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes
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external ratings, if they are available, background verification, financial statements,
income tax returns, credit agency information, industry information, etc. Portfolio review
is performed every quarter and is reviewed by the management on quarterly basis.

(b) Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-
impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due
on its contractual payments. Further in compliance with RBI circular dated November 12,
2021, Cases, where borrower had crossed 90 days past due, continued to be considered
as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations till the time all the due contractual
payments are paid by the borrower.

The Company considers probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been any significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Company compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. Following indicators are
incorporated:

- DPD analysis as on each reporting date

- significant changes in expected performance and behaviour of the borrower including
changes in payment status of borrowers.

(c) Probability of default (PD)

Day past dues (DPD) analysis is the preliminary inputs in the determination of the term
structure of PD for exposures. The Company collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures analysed by type of product and borrowers as well as by
DPD. The Company analyses the data collected and generates estimates of the PD of
exposures and how these are expected to change as result of passage of time.

The month-on-month outstanding balances in each DPD bucket are assessed to estimate
the historic probability of default for each bucket; this probability is then combined with
a macro-economic variables to compute the final PD estimate.

(d) Exposure at default

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount (in addition to
the interest to be earned during the next year) of the financial instruments subject to
the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure
while approaching default and potential early repayments too. To calculate the EAD for a
Stage 1 loan, the Company assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the
calculation of the 12 months ECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure
at default is considered for events over the lifetime of the instruments.

(e) Loss given default

Loss given default (LGD) represent estimated financial loss the Company is likely to
suffer in the event of default and it is used to calculate provision requirement on EAD
along with probability of default. LGD values are assessed, reviewed and approved by
the Company. These LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison to the
amount expected to be recovered or realized from any collateral held.

(f) Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitor all the assets subject to ECL in order to determine
whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 months ECL or life
time ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Company also applies a secondary qualitative methods
for triggering a significant increase in credit risk for an asset, such as moving customer/
facilities to the watch list, or the account becoming forborne. Regardless of the change in
credit grades, if contractual payments are more than one month overdue, the credit risk
is deemed to have increase significantly since initial recognition.
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(g) Expected credit loss on Loans

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly on collective basis. For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, date of
initial recognition, remaining term to maturity, collateral type, and other relevant factors.
For the assessment, each financial asset (after segmentation based on the nature), is
then clubbed into the following DPD cohorts:

- Current (0 DPD)
- 1-30 DPD

- 31-60 DPD

- 61-89 DPD

- =>90 DPD

The Company considers defaulted assets as those which are contractually past due 90
days, other than those assets where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. Financial
assets which are contractually past due 30 days but less than 90 days are classified
under Stage 2. An asset migrates down the ECL stage based on the change in the risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition. If in a subsequent period, credit quality
improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since
origination, then the loan loss provision stage reverses to 12-months ECL from lifetime
ECL.

The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current
observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of
default, loss given default and exposure at default. These parameters are derived from
the statistical models and other historical data.

43.2.1 Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used to determine expected

211

credit loss

The Company'’s loan loss provision are made on the basis of the Company’s historical loss
experience and future expected credit loss, after factoring in various macro-economic
parameters such as Consumer Prices (% change pa; av), Industrial Production (% change
pa), Real GDP, Unemployment Rate (%), Real Manufacturing, Lending Interest Rate (%)
etc. The selection of these variables was made basis statistical analysis and relevance to
the business.

The macro- economic variables were regressed using a regression model against the
log-odds of the weighted average PD’s to forecast the forward-looking PD’s with macro-
economic overlay incorporated.

Best, base and worst scenarios were created for all the variables and default rates were
estimated for all the scenarios. These default rates were then used with the same LGD
and EAD to arrive at the expected credit loss for all three cases. The three cases were
then assigned weights and a final probability-weighted expected credit loss estimate was
computed.
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Macro economic

L Scenario| 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
indicator
Base 4.90 5.00 4.50 4.00 4.20
Consumer Prices (% Best 4.41 4.50 4.05 3.60 3.78
change pa; av)
Worst 6.37 6.50 5.85 5.20 5.46
Base 6.50 6.20 6.80 5.50 6.70
. . o
Industrial Production (% Best 7.15 6.82 7.48 6.05 7.37
change pa)
Worst 4.55 4.34 4.76 3.85 4.69
Base 157,723 | 165,810 | 174,422 | 184,595 184,595
Real GDP Best 173,495 | 182,391 | 191,864 | 203,054 203,054
Worst 110,406 | 116,067 | 122,095 | 129,216 129,216
Base 9.20 9.10 8.60 8.10 7.70
Unemployment Rate (%) Best 8.28 8.19 7.74 7.29 6.93
Worst 11.96 11.83 11.18 10.53 10.01
Base 25,987 27,381 28,770 30,373 34,099
Real Manufacturing Best 28,585 30,119 31,647 33,410 37,509
Worst 18,191 19,166 20,139 21,261 23,869
Base 9.00 9.30 9.50 9.80 10.00
Lending Interest Rate (%) Best 8.10 8.37 8.55 8.82 9.00
Worst 11.70 12.09 12.35 12.74 13.00
Base (1.20) 5.10 5.20 5.50 13.80
i o,
Agriculture (% real Best | (1.08) | 5.61 5.72 6.05 15.18
change pa)
Worst (1.56) 3.57 3.64 3.85 9.66

43.2.2 Analysis of risk concentration

The Company’s concentrations of risk are managed by client/counterparty and industry sector.
The maximum credit exposure to any individual client or counterparty was ¥ 313.31 crore and ¥
288.56 crore as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively.

|
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43.2.5 Collateral and other credit enhancements

The loan portfolio of the Company has both secured and unsecured loans and they vary with
the type of funding. Products like loan against property, corporate loan, two wheeler loan and
pre owned car loan are all secured loans whereas products like business loan and personal loan
generally do not carry any collateral security.

For loan against property, properties (residential, commercial, industrial, mixed use, etc.) are
generally acceptable collateral. For corporate loan there is usually a collateral basket comprising
of properties, rated securities, current assets (including stock and book debts), plant and
machinery, and deposits. For two wheeler loan and pre owned car loan, the respective vehicle
against which the loan been offered is taken as a collateral security.

The Company has a pre-defined loan to value norms in the policy and the same is disbursed
to control the risk of the Company. For loan against property, the loan to value (‘'LTV’) is in the
range of 50% to 75%. For corporate loan, the funding is secured by way of a collateral basket
- the overall security cover is generally maintained in the range of 1.1 times to 3.0 times and
above. For loan against shares, a minimum cover of 2.0 times is maintained.

For pre-owned car and two wheeler loan, the Company maintains a loan to value range of 75%
to 90% depending upon tenure and model.

Valuation of the collateral, wherever applicable, is done by empanelled valuers who carry the
necessary experience and expertise in the area. The guidelines governing these valuation have
been clearly laid out for each collateral class. For two wheeler loan since the asset is hew no
valuation is has been carried out by the Company. Valuation of the collateral for pre-owned car
is done by empanelled valuers who carry the necessary experience and expertise in the area.
Credit impaired assets are revalued for assessment /provisioning purposes and distress value is
considered. The Company has an in-house team of technical managers who manage property
valuation activity.

43.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises as the Company has contractual financial liabilities that are required to be
serviced and redeemed as per committed timelines and in the business of lending where funds
are required for the disbursement and creation of financial assets to address the going concern
of Company. Liquidity risk management is imperative to the Company as this allows covering
the core expenses, market investment / creation of financial assets, timely repayment of debt
commitments and continuing with its operations. The Company uses various liquidity monitoring
tools to measure and gauge the liquidity risk as per necessary guidelines stipulated by the
RBI. The Company with the help of the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), ALM policy and
Liquidity Desk, monitors the Liquidity risk and uses structural, dynamic liquidity statements and
cash flow statements as a mechanism to address this. To effectively manage the fallout of the
COVID-19 pandemic related RBI measures on its funding and liquidity, the Company has been
continuously maintaining adequate level of liquidity buffers in terms of High Quality Liquid Assets
as a safeguard against any likely disruption in the funding and market liquidity.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash equivalents, un-utilized borrowing lines and
cash inflow at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities over the next
one year. At March 31, 2022, the net of expected cash inflows and outflows within 12 months are
3 2,818.54 crores (March 31, 2021: ¥ 4,235.20 crores).
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43.3.1 Contractual maturities of financial instruments

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities as at reporting date.

T in Crore
As at March 31, 2022 der?nra:nd Lelss‘;,:::n 1-5 years M;Te::-:n Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 63.29 710.74 - - 774.03
I e L wasm - s
Derivative financial instruments - (0.06) 1.98 - 1.92
Trade receivables - 2.12 - - 2.12
Loans* - 14,673.02 13,898.57 1,753.86 30,325.45
Investments - 954.42 1.26 521.14 1,476.82
Other financial assets - 88.48 1.33 1.88 91.69

Total undiscounted financial
assets

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and

- Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small
enterprises

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt
securities)

Subordinate liabilities

Lease liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

Net undiscounted financial
assets/ (liabilities)

Total Commitments

|

63.29 16,573.24

13,903.14 2,276.88 32,816.55

- 289.37 - - 289.37
- 3,507.56 1,740.00 225.00 5,472.56
- 8,995.09 11,022.73 - 20,017.82
- - 200.00 395.00 595.00
- 7.72 26.26 9.63 43.61
- 465.21 46.82 7.76 519.79
- 13,264.95 13,035.81 637.39 26,938.15

63.29 3,308.29

867.33 1,639.49 5,878.40

553.04 -

- - 553.04
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g in Crore
As at March 31, 2021 On Lessthan , o .., Morethan .
demand 1 year 5 years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 55.14 825.20 - - 880.34
Bank balance other than cash ) 116.13 ) ) 116.13
and cash equivalents
Trade receivables - 7.98 - - 7.98
Loans* - 11,752.71 11,416.31 2,020.15 25,189.17
Investments - 1,675.77 - 535.58 2,211.35
Other financial assets - 109.19 1.34 1.81 112.34
'ar‘s’::'t:“d'sw"“ted financial 55 14 14,486.98 11,417.65 2,557.54 28,517.31
Financial liabilities
Payables
- Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small - 0.12 - - 0.12
enterprises; and
- Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro ) 248.76 ) ) 248.76
enterprises and small
enterprises
Debt securities - 2,861.64 1,070.00 150.00 4,081.64
Borrowings (other than debt - 6,490.40 10,658.10 - 17,148.50
securities)
Subordinate liabilities - - 100.00 495.00 595.00
Lease liabilities - 7.90 23.70 8.80 40.40
Other financial liabilities - 457.47 15.95 6.52 479.94
Total undiscounted financial - 10,066.29 11,867.75 660.32 22,594.36
liabilities
Net undiscounted financial
assets/ (liabilities) 55.14 4,420.69 (450.10) 1,897.22 5,922.95
Total Commitments 240.63 - - - 240.63

* This represents contractual maturities of loans without expected credit loss and EIR
adjustments. For stage 3 assets, maturity pattern is as per RBI master directions.

43.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates etc. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within
acceptable parameters while maximising the return.

Interest rate risk

A major portion of The Company’s assets and liabilities are interest bearing - which could be
either at a fixed or a floating rate. Interest rate risk is managed by way of regular monitoring
of all interest rate bearing assets and liabilities. The same also forms part of the ALCO and ALM

policy.
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The exposure of Company’s financial assets and liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

T in Crore
Financial assets Floating rate instruments Fixed rate instruments
March 31, 2022 5,762.22 24,466.24
March 31, 2021 6,225.07 18,880.67
Financial liabilities
March 31, 2022 18,216.67 7,848.55
March 31, 2021 16,542.28 5,274.16

The table below illustrates the impact of a 1.00% movement in interest rates on interest income
and interest expense on floating loans and floating borrowings respectively for next one year,
assuming that the changes occur at the reporting date and has been calculated based on risk
exposure outstanding as of date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of
the average loans and borrowings outstanding during the year.

Impact on profit before tax ( ¥ in Crore)

Movement in interest rates For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1.00% (83.61) (79.94)
(1.00%) 83.61 79.94

43.5 Foreign currency risk management

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk for the Company arises majorly on account of
foreign currency borrowings. The Company manages this foreign currency risk by entering into
cross currency swaps and forward contract. When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of
being as hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match with the terms
of the hedge exposure. The Company’s policy is to fully hedge its foreign currency borrowings at
the time of drawdown and remain so till repayment.

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as cross currency interest rate swap
to mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in foreign currency and floating interest rate. The
counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. These derivative financial instruments are
valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that
are directly or indirectly observable in market place.

The Company exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in
% in Crore, are as follows:

. As at 31 As at 31
Foreign currency exposure Currency March 2022 March 2021
Hedged
Borrowings (other than debt securities) usbD 608.87 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) SGD 301.88 -
Impact of hedge on the Balance Sheet:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Foreign currency Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
exposure . amount amount . amount amount
Notional of hedging of hedging Notional of hedging of hedging
Amount . . Amount . .
instrument instrument instrument instrument
asset liability asset liability
External commercial 859.43 1.98 ) ) ) )
borrowing
Foreign Currency 51.32 _ 0.06 _ _ _
Loan
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on other comprehensive income arises from
foreign forward exchange contracts and foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash
flow hedges. Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the T against the relevant
foreign currencies. (+)(-)5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk.

T in Crore

i Impact on profit after tax Impact on ot_her
Foreign currency exposure comprehensive income

For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended March ended March ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021 31, 2022 31, 2021
Borrowings (other than debt ) ) )
securities) +5% (45.93)
Borro_w_lngs (other than debt ) ) 45.93 )
securities) -5%

43.6 Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The company has not given any loan or invested funds to any persons, entities (intermediaries)
with the understanding that intermediary shall :

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company.

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Company.

The Company has not received any fund from any person, entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party.

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Funding Party.

Note 44: Dividend paid and proposed

Zin Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Declared and paid during the year
Dividends on ordinary shares:

Finaldividendforthe yearended March 31,2021:31.00* pershare 12.73 30.99
(March 31, 2020: X 2.55 per share)

Dividend distribution tax on final dividend declared and paid - -
Total dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax) 12.73 30.99

After the reporting dates the following dividends were proposed by the Board of Directors subject
to the approval of the shareholders at Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the dividends have
not been recognised as liabilities.

Dividend on ordinary shares:

Proposed for approval at Annual General Meeting March 31, - 12.73
2022: % Nil per share (March 31, 2021: ¥ 1.00* per share)

- 12.73

* On April 29, 2021, the Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend on equity shares of %

1.00 per share for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the same was approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on September 14, 2021.
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Note 45: Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Employee Stock Options Scheme titled "ESOP Scheme 2017” or “the Scheme” was approved
by the shareholders of the Company through postal ballot on June 09, 2017. The Scheme covered
2,639,703 options. The Scheme allows the issue of options to employees of the Company which
are convertible to one equity share of the Company. As per the Scheme, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee grants the options to the employees deemed eligible. The options
granted vest over a period of 4 years from the date of the grant in proportions specified in the
ESOP Plan. Options may be exercised by the employees after vesting period within 4.5 years
from the date of grant. The fair value as on the date of the grant of the options, representing
Stock compensation charge, is expensed over the vesting period.

Vesting Weighted average

Number condition Exercise fair value of the
Plan of Options Grant date d . price .
Granted an vgstlng ) options at grant
period date (%)
9,62,590 July 1, 2017 10% on 495 240.60
completion of
25,000 DecsmDer i, first year, 495 329.09
017 20% on
49,000 December >,  completion of 495 329.21
2017 second year,
93,215 2018 ’ completion of 495 327.95
December 6, third year and
30,000 2019 40% on 780 345.68
_ completion of
6,78,600 July 1, 2020 10% on 780 306.80
completion of
first year,
17,400 OCi0er L, 25% on 780 306.80
completion of
January 1, second year,
ESOP 2017# 6,400 2021 30% on 780 306.80
completion of
45,000 Octzoobzelr 1, third year and 780 199.52
35% on
January 1,  completion of
6,000 el fourth year 780 199.52

# As amended vide shareholders’ special resolution dated June 28, 2020

Fair value of share options granted

The fair value of options granted is estimated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model after
applying the key assumption which are tabulated below:
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Particulars
Weighted Weighted Obti Dividend Risk-free
ESOP 2017 @average average Exercise Expected pion BIVICENC interest
fair value h R latility* * life yield
of option share  price (%) volatility (Years) (%) rate
@) price (%) (%)*
July 1, 2017 240.60  616.30 495.00 Nil 4.5 0.26 6.58
gg;gmber L 329.09  647.40  495.00 38.18 4.5 0.82 6.6
Sgﬁmber > 329.21  647.40  495.00 38.22 4.5 0.82 6.60
January 8, 327.95  647.40  495.00 378 45 0.82 6.60
ggfgmber © 345.68  820.70  780.00 38.55 4.5 1.75 6.28
April 1, 2020 345.68  820.70  780.00 38.55 4.5 1.75 6.28
July 1, 2020 306.80  740.90  780.00 43.40 4.5 0.32 5.20
Octoper L, 306.80  740.90  780.00 43.40 4.5 0.32 5.20
32%”2“1“’ L 306.80  740.90  780.00 43.40 4.5 0.32 5.20
gg;olber 1, 199.52  550.60  780.00 48.80 4.5 0.39 5.49
Jzaonzuzary L 199.52  550.60  780.00 48.80 4.5 0.39 5.49

* The risk free interest rate being considered for the calculation is interest rate applicable to
the implied yield of zero coupon government securities.

** Expected volatility calculation is based on volatility of similar listed enterprises.

Movement in share options during the year

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Weighted Weighted
average fair average fair
Particulars Numl_:er value of the Numl_)er of value of the
of options . options .
options at options at
grant date grant date
(Z per share) (X per share)
(i) Outstanding at the beginning 4 425 g9 282.79 1,011,198 256.06
of the year
(ii) Granted during the year 51,000 199.52 817,400 312.27
(|||)ylz)ar:e|ted/ cancelled during the 190,285 275.05 355,779 274.57
(iv) Exercised during the year - - - -
(V) se“;fta”d'”g atthe end of the 4 333 534 278.66 1,472,819 282.79
(vi) Exercisable at the end of the 751,611 263.40 447,251 258.05

year

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding as at year end is 8 months
(March 31, 2021: 14 months)

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company recorded an employee stock compensation
expense of ¥ 4.21 crore (March 31, 2021: ¥ 4.24 crore) in the statement of profit and loss (refer

note 30).
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Note 46:

With effectfrom April 1, 2018, as perthe roadmap issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for Non-
Banking Finance Companies vide notification no. G.S.R 365(E) dated March 30, 2016, for financial
reporting purposes, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards as specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS). Accordingly, the information given below is disclosed by the
Company based on Ind AS financial statements and other records maintained by the Company.
For the purpose of these disclosures "Non-performing assets (NPA) represents Stage 3 loans and
“Standard assets” represents “Stage 1” and “Stage 2" as defined in Ind AS financial statements .

Following information is disclosed in terms of the Master Direction-Non Banking Financial
Company-Systematically Important, Non deposit taking and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions’ 2016 dated September 1, 2016 as amended time to time.

46.1 Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)

As at March As at March

Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Tier I Capital (R in Crore) (a) 3,783.01 4153.37
Tier II Capital (R in Crore) (b) 720.38 689.96
Risk weighted assets (% in Crore ) (c) 28,859.22 24,538.26
CRAR - Tier I capital (%) (d) =(a)/ (c) 13.10 16.93
CRAR - Tier II capital (%) (e) = (b) / (c) 2.50 2.81
CRAR % (f) = (d) + (e) 15.60 19.74
Amount of subordinated debts raised as Tier-1I Capital (% in 593.51 593.31
Crore)
Amount raised by issue of perpetual instruments - -
46.2 Investments
T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

Value of investments
Gross value of investments

(@) InIndia 1,476.82 2,211.35
(b) Outside India - -

Provisions for depreciation
(a) In India - -
(b) Outside India - -

Net value of investments
(a) In India 1,476.82 2,211.35
(b) Outside India - -

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(a) Opening balance - -
(b) Add : Provisions made during the year - -

(c) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the
year

(d) Closing balance - -

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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46.3 Disclosure on Derivatives

(i) Forward rate agreement/interest rate swap Zin Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements 910.75 -

Particulars

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to

fulfill their obligations under 1.92 )
(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering ) )
into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - -
(v) The fair value of the swap book 1.92 -

(ii) Exchange traded interest rate derivatives

The Company has not traded in exchange traded interest rate derivative during the current and
previous year

(iii) Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives

Qualitative disclosure

Details for qualitative disclosure are part of accounting policy as per financial statements. (refer
note no. 3)

Quantitative disclosure % in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021
(i) Derivatives (notional principal amount) for hedging 910.75 -
(ii) Marked to market positions -
(@) Asset 1.92 -

(b) Liability - -
(iii) Credit exposure - -
(iv) Unhedged exposure - -

46.4 Securitization/ assignment

(i) Outstanding amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs

The Company has not entered into securitisation transactions during the current and previous
year.

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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(ii) Details of financial assets sold to reconstruction company
For the year For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Number of accounts 55.00 -
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred (X in 139.13 )
Crore) )
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred (in 4.79 )
years) )
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) 95.86 )
(X in Crore) )
Aggregate consideration (Z in Crore) 29.22 -

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts
transferred in earlier years (X in Crore)

In addition to above the Company has transferred 46 additional loans which have been written
off, having an amount outstanding of ¥ 139.68 crores for a sale consideration of ¥ 29.19 crores

(iii) Details in respect of loans not in default acquired through assignment
For the year For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Count of loan accounts acquired 4,444 -
Amount of loan accounts acquired (X in Crore) 96.77 -
Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR %) 10% -
Weighted average maturity (residual maturity in years) 3.07 -
Weighted average holding period (in years) 1.83 -
Coverage of tangible security coverage 15% -
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Not applicable

(iv) The company has not transferred any Special Mention Account (SMA) and loan not in
default.

(v) The Company has not acquired any stressed loan during the year.

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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46.6 Exposure to real estate sector

g in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

(i) Residential mortgages 844.85 790.84

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property

Direct exposure

that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented 844.85 730.84
(ii) Commercial real estate 1,260.31 779.39

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates

(office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial

premises, multi-family, residential buildings, multi-tenanted 1,260.31 279.39

commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based limits

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures
a) Residential - -
b) Commercial Real Estate - -
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 2,105.16 1,570.23

Classification of exposures as commercial real estate exposure (cre) is based on circular no
DBOD. No. BP. 11021/08.12.015/208-09

46.7 Exposure to capital market
% in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;

(ii) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment
in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, - -
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds;

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 1,639.06 1,265.33
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured
by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market - -
makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares
/ bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis
for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /
issues;

(viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered 4.84 19.21
and unregistered) ) )

Total Exposure to Capital Market 2,151.19 1,791.91

507.29 507.38
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46.8 Since there is no parent company, hence reporting on financing of parent company

products is not applicable.

46.8.1 The Company has not made advances against intangible collaterals of the borrowers,

which are classified as “Unsecured” in its financial statements.
46.8.2 Registration obtained from other financial regulators.

The Company is not registered under any other regulator other than Reserve Bank of
India and Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI).

46.8.3 No penalty were levied by any authority during the current year and previous year.

46.9 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the

year
rs Standard & ’
Facility CRISIL ICRA CARE Poor’s Moody’s
Secured non-convertible AA+/ AA+/ ) ; )
debentures Stable Stable
Unsecured sub-ordinated Tier-II AA+/ AA+/ ) ) )
non-convertible debentures Stable Stable
Bank facilities - -
. ees AA+/ AA+/ AA+/ )
Long term banking facilities Stable Stable Stable
Short term banking facilities - Al+ - - -
Commercial papers Al+ Al+ Al+ - -
(BB+) Long
Entity Level ) ) (AI‘?)-; term stable Bal/
(B) Short term  Stable
Stable
stable
Refer
Migration during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil note
46.9A

46.9.1 Moody’'s has revised the outlook of long term rating of the Company from “Bal/

Negative” to “Bal/Stable”.

46.10 Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under For the year

the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
(i) Provision for depreciation on investments - -
(ii) Provision towards NPA* 304.83 158.32
(iii) Provision made towards income tax (including deferred (62.45) 19.49
tax assets)
(iv) Provision for leave encashment 3.92 2.82
(v) Provision for gratuity (including OCI) 5.15 4.24
(vi) Other provision and contingencies - -
(vii) Provision for standard assets ** 23.06 209.82

* Represents impairment loss allowance on stage 3 assets
** Represents impairment loss allowance on stage 1 and stage 2 assets
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46.10.1 The Company has made no draw down from existing reserves.

46.11 Concentration of advances

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

(i) Total advances to twenty largest borrowers/ customers (% in

4,164.56 3,110.14
Crore)

(ii) Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers/

(o) (o)
customers to total advances 13.78% 12.39%

46.12 Concentration of exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

4,169.56 3,177.90

Particulars

(i) Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers (% in
Crore)

(ii) Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers/

13.55% 12.54%
customers to total exposure

46.13 Concentration of NPAs

T in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 313.59 330.10

Particulars

46.14 Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of Stage 3 assets to
total advances in that sector

Sector
As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
(i) Agriculture & allied activities - -
(ii) MSME - -
(iii) Corporate borrowers * 5.75% 8.12%
(iv) Services - -
(v) Unsecured personal loans 7.41% 4.13%
(vi) Auto loans 11.43% 7.93%

(vii) Other personal loans - -
* Includes MSME
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46.15 Movement of NPAs

Zin Crore
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 4.63% 4.61%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(@) Opening balance 1,867.90 1,523.90
(b) Additions during the year 2,181.15 1,599.84
(c) Reductions during the year 1,648.02 1,255.84
(d) Closing balance 2,401.03 1,867.90
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 1,122.11 936.43
(b) Additions during the year 1,252.91 929.02
(c) Reductions during the year 1,024.61 743.34
(d) Closing balance 1,350.42 1,122.11
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance 745.79 587.47
(b) Provisions made during the year 928.24 670.81
(c) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions 623.41 512.50
(d) Closing balance 1,050.62 745.79

46.16 Customer Complaints

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(@) No. of complaints pending at the beginning 943 214
of the year
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 9,321 8,067
(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 10,020 7,338
(d) yeoérof complaints pending at the end of the 244 943

46.17 The disclosures as required by the Master Direction -Monitoring of frauds in
NBFCs issued by RBI dated September 29, 2016

There were 3 cases (Previous year Nil) amounting to ¥ 48.45 crore (Previous year Nil)
reported as fraud during the year.

46.18 Details of Single Borrower Limits (SBL)/ Group Borrower Limits (GBL)
exceeded

The Company has not exceeded the single borrower limits/ group borrower limits as set
by Reserve Bank of India.

46.19 Overseas Assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
There are no overseas assets owned by the Company.
46.20 Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored
The are no off balance sheet SPVs sponsored Company.
46.21 Prior period items
There are no prior period items.
46.22 Revenue recoghnition
Refer note 3(h) under summary of significant accounting policies.
46.22.1 Revenue recognition
There were no circumstances resulting in postponement of revenue

46.23 Consolidated financial statements
The company prepares consolidated financial statements.
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46.25 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

As per the RBI guidelines DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. N0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04,
2019 and Master Directions for NBFCs vide RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 dated February 17, 2020, the
LCR requirement shall be binding on all non-deposit taking systemically important NBFCs with
asset size of ¥ 10,000 crore and above and all deposit taking NBFCs irrespective of the asset
size from December 1, 2020, with the minimum LCR to be 50%, progressively increasing, till it
reaches the required level of 100%, by December 1, 2024, as per the timeline given below:

December 1, December 1, December 1, December 1, December 1,
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Minimum LCR 50% 60% 70% 85% 100%

Particulars

(i) Main LCR drivers and evolution of the contribution of inputs in LCR calculation
over time

The numerator of LCR is driven by the quantum and composition of High Quality Liquid
Assets (HQLA). The denominator of LCR is driven by various components of the stressed
cash flows.

(a) Composition of HQLA

The Company has made sufficient investments in the securities which are regarded as
High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) in the form of Government securities (G Sec), Treasury
Bills (T-Bills) and Commercial papers of AAA rated entities. The components of HQLA for
the quarters is as under:

Zin Crore
For the year ended For the quarter ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(weighted average) (weighted average)
T-Bills 319.38 381.84
G Sec 479.01 250.14
AAA rated securities 105.04 206.59
Cash & cash equivalent 63.29 74.86
Total 966.71 913.43

(b) Unsecured and secured wholesale funding

Borrowing Maturities falling due in the next 30 days form a major component of Cash
Outflows. Commercial Papers form the major portion of unsecured funding. Bank Term
loans and NCDs form the majority of secured wholesale funding maturities.

(c) Outflows related to derivative exposures and other collateral requirements

During the reporting period, the Company has entered into derivative transactions to
hedge its balancesheet liability exposure. Accordingly, the net positive MTM and/or the
net negative MTM have been considered as inflow and outflow in next 30 days respectively
for the computation.

(d) Oother contractual funding obligations

Other contractual funding obligations are taken from Trade Payable, Other financial
liabilities, Current tax liabilities (net) and Other non-financial liabilities shown in the
Balance Sheet which are expected to be paid in the next 30 days. Interest accrued on
borrowings but not due, Trade payables, Book Overdrafts and Loans pending disbursement
form a major portion of other contractual funding obligations.

(e) Other contingent funding obligations
Undrawn committed credit lines loans form a part of other contingent funding obligations.
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(f) Secured lending

There is no secured lending transaction backed by HQLA during the reporting period and
margin lending backed by all other collateral is included in the fully performing exposures.

(g) Inflows from fully performing exposures

Principal inflows and interest accrued from advances with no overdues due in the next 30
days are taken.

(h) Other inflows
For the LCR calculation, under other inflows, the major components are sanctioned but
undrawn lines, non-HQLA investments maturing in next 30 days and receivables from
collection agencies.

(ii) Intra period changes and changes over time

The Company endeavors to maintain a healthy level of LCR at all points of time. The LCR
table shows the movement of changes in each component over the reporting period.

(iii) Concentration of funding sources

The Company has a diversified funding profile in the form of Bank term loans, Non-
convertible debentures and External Commercial Borrowings which are long-term in
nature and Commercial papers which are short term in nature. Also, the Company has
availed Working Capital Demand loan (WCDL) and Cash credit (CC) lines from various
Banks. The Company is a hon-deposit taking NBFC and hence, reporting nil deposits. The
Company has a wide array of investors / bankers who have funded the Company through
various funding instruments.

(iv) Derivative exposures and collateral calls

The Company did not indulge in derivative trading activities. However, the company has
entered into derivative transactions to hedge its balancesheet liability exposure and has
accordingly considered in its computation purposes.
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46.26 Public disclosure on liquidity risk in accordance with Liquidity Risk Management

Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies as per RBI Circular dated RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.
No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019.

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and

(M borrowings)
Sr Number of As at March 31, 2022
No. Significant Amount % of Total % of Total
Counterparties (Z in Crore) deposits Liabilities
1 19 20,875.10 Not Applicable 77.31%

Note: Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.
NBFC (PD) CC.No0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies.

(ii) Top 20 large deposits
Particulars As at March
31, 2022
Total deposits to twenty largest deposit holders Not Applicable
Percer_mtage of deposits to twenty largest deposit holders to Total Not Applicable
deposits
(iii) Top 10 borrowings
Particulars As at March
31, 2022
Amount of top ten borrowings (% in Crore) 17,184.69
Percentage of top ten borrowings to total borrowings 65.93%
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/ product
Sr. . As at March 31, 2022
No. Name of the instrument/product I-}mount °/<3 of_ 'I_'qtal
(X in Crore) Liabilities
1 Bank/FI Borrowing 19,140.79 70.89%
2 External Commercial borrowing 859.43 3.18%
3 Non-Convertible Debentures 2,259.26 8.37%
4  Tier II NCD 593.51 2.20%
5 Commercial Paper 3,212.23 11.90%
Total 26,065.22 96.54%

|

Note: Significant instrument/product is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.
NBFC (PD) CC.No0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies.
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(v) Stock Ratios

Sr. Particulars Total Public Total Liabilities Total Assets
No. Funds
(a) S%Z“?ferc'a' papers as 12.32% 11.90% 10.09%

(b) Non-convertible
debentures (original

maturity of less than Nil Nil Nil
one year) as a % of
(c) Other short-term 38.80% 37 45% .

liabilities as a % of
Note:

1. Other Short-term Liabilities is computed as current maturities of long-term debt,
short-term bank borrowings including outstanding CC/WCDL and other short-term
liabilities has been considered, but excludes commercial paper and Non-convertible
debentures (original maturity of less than one year).

2. Public funds are as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016.

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Board through the Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) shall have the
overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The ALCO shall decide the strategy,
policies and procedures to manage liquidity risk in accordance with the liquidity risk
tolerance/limits decided by it from time to time.

Further, the Company has constituted Asset Liability sub-Committee ("ALsCO"). The
ALsCO is headed by Jt. Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and consisting of
the top management of the Company. It shall be responsible for framing, implementing
and monitoring the risk management framework including the ALM framework. It is also
responsible for ensuring adherence to the limits set by the RBI / Board as well as for
deciding the business strategies of the Company.

46.27 i) Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification RBI/2020-21/16 DOR No.BP.
BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 06, 2020 pertaining to Resolution related

stress:
g in Crore
Exposure of (A), Of (A) Exposure
to accounts Oof (A)
g aggregate amount to accounts
classified amount . g
debt that R paid by the classified
as Standard . . written
slipped into . borrowers as Standard
Type of consequent to . off during .
. . NPA during during the consequent to
Borrower implementation the half- . .
. the half- half-year implementation
of resolution year ended .
L. year ended ended of resolution plan
plan - Position h March 31, h oo
as at September Ma2rc2231, 2022 Ma2rc2231, - POShItIOI‘I SS;;
30, 2021 0 0 March 31, 20
Personal 279.60 97.38 0.85 62.31 119.06
loans
Corporate 525.96 37.08 - 3.55 485.33
persons
Of which, )
MSMEs 373.84 37.08 7.28 329.48
Others 152.11 - - (3.73) 155.85
Total 805.56 134.46 0.85 65.86 604.39
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46.29 Disclosure as per RBI Circular Number RBI/2021-22/17/DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-

22 dated April 7, 2021.

The Honourable Supreme Court of India vide order dated March 23, 2021 has stated that
interim relief granted vide an interim order dated September 3, 2020 stands vacated.
Accordingly, the Company has classified and recognised provision as at March 31, 2021
in accordance with the Company’s Expected Credit Loss Policy.

RBI circular dated April 7, 2021 advised all lending institutions to immediately put in
place a Board-approved policy to refund/ adjust the ‘interest on interest’ charged to
the borrowers during the moratorium period, i.e. March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020 in
conformity with the above judgement. Further, the circular stated that in order to ensure
that the Supreme Court judgement dated March 23, 2021 is implemented uniformly in
letter and spirit by all lending institutions, methodology for calculation of the amount to be
refunded/ adjusted for different facilities shall be finalised by the Indian Bank Association
(IBA) in consultation with other industry participants/ bodies, which shall be adopted by
all lending institutions and also advised all lending institutions to disclose the aggregate
amount to be refunded/adjusted in respect of their borrowers based on the above reliefs
in their financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. The Company had made
a provision in the financial statements as at March 31, 2021 basis proforma calculation
based on the eligibility criteria laid down by the IBA via its advisory dated April 19, 2021.

Scheme of Grant of Ex-gratia payment

The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notification dated October 23,
2020, had announced a scheme for COVID-19 Relief for grant of ex-gratia payment of
difference between compound interest and simple interest for six months (during the
moratorium period, i.e. March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020) to borrowers in specified loan
accounts. The Company had implemented the ex-gratia scheme and credited the ex-
gratia amount to all eligible borrower’s statement of account.

46.30 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial company

(as required in terms of Annex II as amended from time to time of Systemically Important
Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

g in Crore
NS(; Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
e i , Amount Amount Amount Amount
Liabilities side: . .
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue
Loans and advances availed
1 by the non- banking financials

company inclusive of interest
accrued there on but not paid

(a) Debentures:

Secured 2,357.85 - 1,581.34
Unsecured 617.61 - 617.41
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred credits - - -
(c) Term loans 16,417.64 - 15,476.86
(d) Inter-corporate loans and _ ) _
borrowing
(e) Commercial paper 3,212.23 - 2,599.64

|
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Nsc;. Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Liabilities side: Amoun_t Amount Amoun_t Amount
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue
(f) Public deposits E - - -
(g) Others:
External commercial borrowing 859.43 - 200.00 -
e o o en s - asos -
Other loan from banks- FCNR 51.32 - - -
ﬁ;cnured- working capital demand 1,760.00 ) 1,370.38 )
demand loan and cash cred 385.00 : : -
T in Crore
S. Assets side: As at March As at March
No. 31, 2022 31, 2021
2 Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other than those
included in (4) below] (Net off provision on NPA)
(a) Secured 18,861.35 17,715.68
(b) Unsecured 10,316.49 6,644.27
3 Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loans counting
towards Asset Finance Company (AFC) activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors :
(a) Financial lease - -
(b) Operating lease 0.06 0.77
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors:
(a) Assets on hire - -
(b) Repossessed Assets - -
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(@) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than (a) above - -
g in Crore
4 Break-up of Investments: A;:’t ;(I)azr;h A;:’t ;(I)azr;-:h
Current Investments :
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares :
(a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 105.04 25.55
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities* 798.39 655.59
(v) Others: Commercial paper - 497.07
241 |
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As at March As at March

Break-up of Investments: 31, 2022 31, 2021

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares :
(@) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -

(v) Others: Certificate of deposits 49.21 497.55
Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares :
(a) Equity 0.31 0.40
(b) Preference 9.00 9.00

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -
2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares :
(a) Equity 506.98 506.98
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others 7.89 19.21
* Includes treasury bills

T in Crore

5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above
(net of provisions):
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Category Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

5.1 Related Parties
(@) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
(b) Companies
in the same
group - - - - - -
(c) Other related 34 35 225.75 465.10 183.17 250.77 433.94
parties
5.2 Other than . 18,622.00 10,090.74 28,712.74 17,532.51 6,393.50 23,926.01
related parties

Total* 18,861.35 10,316.49 29,177.84 17,715.68 6,644.27 24,359.95
*Net of provision on NPA assets

} { Standalone Financial Statements
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T in Crore

6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)
in shares and securities both (quoted and unquoted):

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Market value Market value
Category / breakup  POCIYANE T/ break up  BOPKALE
or fair value rovisions) or fair value rovisions)
or NAV P orNAV P

6.1 Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
(b) Companies in the

same Group 0.31 0.31 0.40 0.40

(c) Other related parties
6.2 Other than related parties 976.51 976.51 1,710.95 1,710.95
Total 1,476.82 1,476.82 2,211.35 2,211.35
T in Crore

Other Information
7 Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

7.1 Gross non-performing assets

(a) Related parties - -

(b) Other than related parties 2,401.03 1,867.90
7.2 Net non-performing assets

(@) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties 1,350.42 1,122.11
7.3 Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

Note 47: There are no loan against gold portfolio as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia
Chairman Managing Director Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870) (DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
New Delhi London London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(FCA : 110412) (ACS : 018339)
New Delhi New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022
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Signature to notes 1 to 47 forming part of the financial statements

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HERO FINCORP LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hero FinCorp Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and
its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), (refer Note 2 to the attached consolidated
financial statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,
and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31 , 2022, of consolidated total comprehensive
income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to
in sub-paragraph 14 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw attention to Note 44.2.4 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes
the Management’s assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19)
on the business operations of the Holding Company. In view of the uncertain economic
environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed and the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 14
below), we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

9.

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, designh and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

13. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021,
were audited by another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report
dated April 29, 2021, expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

14. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary company whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 3,060.69 crore and net assets of Rs. 432.03 crore
as at March 31, 2022, total revenue of Rs. 311.67 crore, total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs 1.36 crore and net cash
outflows amounting to Rs 126.06 crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO
2020"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section
143 of the Act, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included by
the auditor of Hero Housing Finance Limited, a subsidiary of the Holding Company, in their
CARO 2020 report issued in respect of the financial statements of the subsidiary company
which is included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 38.2 to
the consolidated financial statements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2022- Refer
(a) Note 6, 8, 44.2.3 to the consolidated financial statements in respect of such
items as it relates to the Group.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. Based on the
report of the other auditor submitted to us by the management of the Company,
the subsidiary company is not required to transfer any amounts to the investor
education and protection fund.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
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V.

company respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“"Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are

(©)

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts , no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiary from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiary which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to
our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement.

The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Holding Company is in

compliance with Section 123 of the Act. Based on the report of the other auditor
submitted to us by the management of the Company, since the subsidiary has
neither paid or declared any dividend during the year nor proposed any dividend
for the year, hence, reporting requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the subsidiary Company.

17. The Group have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant

Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner
Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
UDIN: 22101119AIBHBD1959 UDIN: 22081075AIBWVT3834

Place: New Delhi

Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 16(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even
date to the members of Hero FinCorp Limited on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of Hero FinCorp Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated
in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, to
whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
is applicable, which is company incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed
to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAIL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements
6. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which is a company
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAI. (Also refer paragraph 4 of the main audit report.)

Other Matters

9.

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such company incorporated
in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
UDIN: 22101119AIBHBD1959 UDIN: 22081075AIBWVT3834
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

T in Crore
Particulars Note As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 874.49 1,106.87
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 164.52 116.13
Derivative financial instruments 6 2.14 -
Trade receivables 7 2.12 7.98
Loans 8 31,341.04 26,194.69
Investments 9 1,172.98 1,917.24
Other financial assets 10 109.87 113.11
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 11 116.65 42.43
Deferred tax assets (net) 12 433.68 341.04
Property, plant and equipment 13 49.52 53.05
Right-of-use assets 13.1 43.07 40.15
Intangible assets 13.2 21.41 22.54
Intangible assets under development 13.2 0.79 0.62
Other non-financial assets 14 66.77 40.18
Total assets 34,399.05 29,996.03
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 15
;’g::lllc;unttsetrapnr(i:lslgg;dauneds of micro enterprises and .84 0.88
micro enterprises and smail enterprises. 301.97 256.79
Debt securities 16 5,867.31 4,235.94
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 22,008.69 19,156.51
Subordinated liabilities 18 643.16 642.91
Lease liabilities 19 48.48 44.37
Other financial liabilities 20 643.21 595.58
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 - 8.60
Provisions 22 48.06 41.69
Other non-financial liabilities 23 65.35 45.00
Total liabilities 29,629.07 25,028.27
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Zin Crore
Particulars Note As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Equity
Equity share capital 24 127.31 127.31
Other equity 25 4,640.21 4,840.45
Non-controlling interests 2.46 -
Total equity 4,769.98 4,967.76
Total liabilities and equity 34,399.05 29,996.03
Significant accounting policies 3

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 1 to 46

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal

Chairman Managing Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870)
New Delhi London

Date: April 29, 2022

Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia

Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman

Chief Financial Officer
(FCA : 110412)
New Delhi

Company Secretary
(ACS : 018339)
New Delhi

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
001035N/N500050

Sudhir Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number: 081075

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2022

31t Annual Report 2021-22

T in Crore
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note  ~ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income
Revenue from operations 26
Interest income 4,241.87 3,877.79
Dividend income 0.74 0.74
Profit on sale of investments 43.44 23.94
Rental income 1.73 5.84
Gain on derecognition of financial
instruments under amortised cost 15.84 -
category
Net gain on fair value changes 21.05 22.66
Insurance commission 15.36 13.17
Others charges 398.63 333.94
Total revenue from operations 4,738.66 4,278.08
Other income 27 59.00 55.44
Total income 4,797.66 4,333.52
Expenses
Finance costs 28 1,678.53 1,710.31
Impairment on financial instruments 29 1,840.81 1,417.74
Employee benefits expenses 30 356.45 285.61
Depreciation and amortization 13 33.19 35.21
Other expenses 31 1,142.71 813.58
Total expenses 5,051.69 4,262.45
Profit before tax (254.03) 71.07
Tax expense: 12
(i) Current tax 27.03 105.98
(ii) Deferred tax (credit) (net) (89.16) (86.53)
Total tax expense (62.13) 19.45
Profit after tax (191.90) 51.62
Other comprehensive income/
(loss)
a) Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of gains/ (losses)
on defined benefit plans 0.01 (0.12)
Income tax relating to items that
will not be reclassified to profit or 0.04 (0.04)
loss
Sub-total (a) 0.05 (0.16)
b) Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Cash flow hedge reserve (2.02) -
Income tax relating to items that 0.28 )
may be reclassified to profit or loss '
Sub-total (b) (1.74) -
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year, net of tax (1.69) (0.16)
Total comprehensive income/ (193.59) 51.46

(loss) for the year, net of tax

|
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Zin Crore
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit/ (loss) for the year
attributable to
Owners of the Company (191.91) 51.62
Non-controlling interest 0.01 -
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for
the year, net of tax, attributable to
Owners of the Company (1.68) (0.16)
Non-controlling interest (0.01) -
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for
the year, net of tax, attributable to
Owners of the Company (193.60) 51.46
Non-controlling interest 0.01 -
Earning per equity share 32
Equity shareholder of parent for the
year:
Basic (%) (15.07) 4.23
Diluted (%) (15.07) 4.22
Significant accounting policies 3

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 1 to 46
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia
Chairman Managing Director Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870) (DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
New Delhi London London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(FCA : 110412) (ACS : 018339)
New Delhi New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended
March 31, 2022

A. Equity share capital

For the year ended March 31, 2022 T in Crore
Balance at the Changes in Restated Changes in Balance at
beginning of Equity Share balance at the | equity share the end of
the current Capital due to beginning of | capital during the current
reporting prior period the current the current reporting period
period errors reporting period year P ap
127.31 - - - 127.31
For the year ended March 31, 2021 Zin Crore
Balance at the Changes in Restated Changes in Balance at
beginning of Equity Share balance at the | equity share the end of
the current Capital due to beginning of | capital during the current
reporting prior period the current the current reporting period
period errors reporting period year P ap
121.54 - - 5.77 127.31
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
March 31, 2022

31t Annual Report 2021-22

Zin Crore

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

A. Cash flow from operating activities

|

Profit/ (loss) before tax (254.03) 71.07
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 33.19 35.21
Impairment on financial instruments 1,840.81 1,417.74
Dividend income from investments (0.74) (0.74)
Discount on commercial paper 110.09 147.19
Employee share based payment expense 6.21 5.86
Net_Ioss on sale of property, plant and 215 3.5
equipment

Interest on fixed deposit and investments (39.58) (47.80)
Interest on lease liability 3.98 4.51
Gain on derecognition of financial (15.84) )
instruments under amortised cost category )

Net loss/ (gain) on fair value changes (21.05) (22.66)
Profit on sale of investments (43.44) (23.94)
Operating profit before working capital 1,621.75 1,589.96
changes

Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 5.86 (0.11)
(Increase)/ decrease in loans (6,987.16) (3,349.34)
(Increase)/ decrease in bank balance other

than cash and cash equivalents (48.39) (115.61)
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets 16.98 (80.30)
(Increase) in other non financial assets (31.54) (15.50)
I_ncr_e_a_se/ (decrease) in other financial 48.05 191.03
liabilities

Increase in trade payables 47.13 89.02
I_ncr_e_a_se/ (decrease) in other non financial 20.36 572
liabilities

Increase in provisions 5.27 7.25
Net cash flow (used in) operating

activities before income tax (5,301.69) (1,680.88)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (109.86) (159.12)
Net cash flow (used in) operating

activities (A) (5,411.55) (1,840.00)
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

and other intangible assets (23.93) (15.82)
Progeeds from sale of property, plant and 557 530
equipment

Dividend received 0.74 0.74
Interest on investments 39.58 47.79
Purchase of investments (18,773.49) (27,527.13)
Sale of investments 19,582.24 25,735.35
!\let ca_sh ﬂom{ gqnerated from/ (used in) 830.41 (1,753.77)
investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proce_ef:ls from s_hares issue (including 2.46 470.10
securities premium)

Proceeds from debt securities 5,533.29 6,049.80
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For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Repayment of debt securities (4,012.00) (7,215.00)
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt 15 598.93 15 335.38
securities) ! ) ! )
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt (12,747.88) (12,309.62)
securities) ! ) ! '
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities 0.25 69.85
Repayment of lease liability (13.56) (12.82)
Dividend paid (12.73) (30.99)
Net cash flow generated from financing 4.348.76 2 356.70
activities (C) e e

D. Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (A+B+C) (232.38) (1,237.07)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 1106.87 2 343.94
of the year ! ) ! )
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 874.49 1.106.87
the year* ’ ! ’
*Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks (current accounts) 63.49 61.92
Deposit with banks (original maturity less 811.00 1.044.95
than three months) ) ! )
874.49 1,106.87

(i) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method’ as
set out in Ind AS - 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows’, as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder. The borrowing from cash credit
is revolving in nature and is disclosed on net basis under financing activities.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia

Chairman Managing Director Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director

(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870) (DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)

New Delhi London London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman

Chief Financial Officer
(FCA : 110412)
New Delhi

Company Secretary
(ACS : 018339)

New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022
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For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number:
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Sudhir Maheshwari
Partner
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the
year ended March 31, 2022

Note 1: Corporate information

Hero FinCorp Limited (“the Holding Company” or “the Company”) is a public company domiciled
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on December 16,
1991. The Holding Company is registered as a Non-Banking financial (Non deposit accepting)
Company, engaged in the business of financing, leasing, bill discounting and related financial
services, with the Reserve Bank of India (Registration No. 14.00266). The address of the Holding
Company’s registered office is 34, Community Centre, Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi -
110057, India.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements (herein after referred to as “consolidated financial
statements” or “financial statements”) of Hero FinCorp Limited and its subsidiary (“the
Group”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other
relevant provisions of the Act and Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company
- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) issued by RBI.-

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board
of Directors on April 29, 2022.

2.2 Basis of measurement and presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value (refer
to accounting policies) such as Net defined (asset)/ liability present value of defined
benefit obligations, investments carried at fair value through profit or loss and share-
based payments. The method used to measured fair value are discussed further in notes
to consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss is presented in the format prescribed under
Division III of Schedule III of the Act, as amended from time to time, for Non-Banking
Financial Companies (‘NBFCs”) that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7,
Statement of Cash Flows.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The Company is able to exercise control over the operating decisions of the investee
company, resulting in variable returns to the Company, and accordingly, the same has
been classified as investment in subsidiary and line by line by consolidation has been
carried under the principles of consolidation. The Consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the subsidiary used in the consolidation are drawn up to
the same reporting date as that of the Holding Company i.e. March 31, 2022.

b) The Financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of asset, liabilities,
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income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions
and resulting unrealized profit or losses, unless cost cannot be recovered.

c) Non-controlling interest (NCI) in the net assets of the subsidiary consist of the
amount of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the date on which
investment in the subsidiary were made and further movement in their share in
the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments. Net profit/ loss for the year of
subsidiary attributable to NCI is identified and adjusted against the profit after tax
of the Group to arrive at the profit attributable to shareholders of the Group.

d) Following subsidiary company has been considered in the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Name of the . . Country of | Ownership % of
entity Relationship incorporation held by shareholding
99.47%
Hero Housing - . (w.e.f. February
Finance Limited Subsidiary India Company 09, 2022, earlier
it was 100%)

e) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
prepared to the extent possible, for all significant matters in the same manner as
the Company’s separate financial statements.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Group functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to
the nearest crores and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgments

In the preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may not
be in line with these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are under
ongoing consideration. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following estimates and judgments, which have a significant impact on the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date:

Business model assessment

Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest (*'SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and
the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects
how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including
how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Group monitors financial assets measured
at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate
whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the
classification of those assets.
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Impairment of financial assets: The Group establishes criteria for determining whether
credit risk of the financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determines methodology for incorporating forward looking information into the
measurement of expected credit loss (‘ECL") and selection of models used to measure
ECL.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.,
an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is carried out in establishing fair values. Judgments and
estimates take into account liquidity and model inputs associated with such items as
credit risk (own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Impairment of financial instruments

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based upon the Group’s historical
experience (to the extent available) and credit assessment and including forward looking
information.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Group EIR methodology, recognizes interest income/ expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral
life of loans given / taken and recognizes the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments
and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected
behavior and lifecycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate
and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions

The measurement of obligations related to defined benefit plans requires to use several
statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events. These factors
include assumptions about the discount rate, the rate of future compensation increases,
withdrawal rate, mortality rates etc. The management has used the past trends and
future expectations in determining the assumptions which are used in measurements of
obligations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets: The Holding Company has recognized deferred tax
assets/ (liabilities) and concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using
the estimated future taxable income based on the experience and future projections. The
Company is expected to generate adequate taxable income for liquidating these assets in
due course of time.

The Subsidiary Company while determining whether deferred tax assets should be
recognized the Company do the assessment based on the taxable projections whether
future taxable income will be available against which unused tax losses and tax credits will
be used. Considering existence of unused tax losses / credits, the Subsidiary Company
has done the assessment and recognized deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) only to the
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extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be made available against unused tax
losses and credits can be used.

2.6 Measurement of fair value
The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require/ may require fair value
measurement, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has
an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable
market data to the extent possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, investments, at fair value on each
reporting date. In addition, the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized
cost and FVTPL is disclosed in Note 43.

Note 3: Significant accounting policies
(a) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at the trading date, i.e., which is the
date on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets - Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either of:
e Amortized cost

e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified after initial recognition, except if and during the period
in which the Group changes its financial asset management model.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost, only if both of
the following conditions are met and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.
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A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following
criteria are met and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI
(designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of
the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows
or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed; how managers of
the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the original
expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets
held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition
of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
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whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate
features;

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Group claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse
features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income
in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not
reclassified to the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in Statement
of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Derecognition

Financial asset — Derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms
and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new
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loan, with the difference recognized as derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognized loans are classified
as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be POCI.

If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Group records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Financial asset — Derecognition other than due to substantial modification
A financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, is derecognized only when:

o the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

o retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognized. Where the Group has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the
Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

Derecognition - Financial liability

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
amended and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this
case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its certain foreign currency risks.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of
each period. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are
directly recognized in the consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortized cost and financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments. At each
reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is an “impaired credit” where
one or more events that adversely impact the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; or
® breach of contract such as a default or being past due.

The Group applies the ECL model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for recognizing impairment
loss on financial assets. The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise
from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset (‘lifetime ECL’),
unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case,
the allowance is based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECL is calculated on a collective basis, considering the retail nature of the underlying portfolio
of financial assets.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk. When determining whether the risk of default on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on a provision
matrix which takes into account the Group historical credit loss experience, current economic
conditions, forward looking information and scenario analysis.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default ("EAD"), probability of default
(*PD") and loss given default ('\LGD’). Accordingly, the financial assets have been segmented
into three stages based on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern
of credit deterioration of a financial asset. The Group categories financial assets at the
reporting date into stages based on the days past due (‘DPD’) status as under:

e Stage 1: Low credit risk, i.e. 0 to 30 days past due
e Stage 2: Significant increase in credit risk, i.e. 31 to 90 days past due
e Stage 3: Impaired assets, i.e. more than 90 days past due

LGD is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. PD is defined as
the probability of whether the borrower will default on their obligation in the future. For
assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD
is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 100% PD. EAD represents the
expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of the
financial assets held by the Group.

The Group incorporates forward looking information into both assessments of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its
measurement of ECL.

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances. The Group ECL calculations are outputs of
complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies. The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may
not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements.
The Group regularly reviews its models in the context of actual loss experience and make
adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss,
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After initial recognition, trade receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The Group follows the
simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables, which requires lifetime ECL to be recognized at each reporting date, right
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and is recognized in OCI.

Write-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and
on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part
of the cash management.

(d) Trade receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value.

The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost, less loss allowance.

(e) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30 days of recognition. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only
if:

e it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and

o the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.
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(9)

(h)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and recognized as income or expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-
progress before such date. Cost of construction that relate directly to specific fixed assets
and that are attributable to construction activity in general and can be allocated to specific
fixed assets are included in capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method
as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act, and is generally recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Depreciation/ amortization is charged on a pro-rata basis for
assets acquired/sold during the year from/to the date of acquisition/sale.

Based on technical evaluation and assessment of useful lives, the management believes
that its estimate of useful lives represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets.

Depreciation method, assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial
year end considering the physical condition of the assets for review and adjusted residual
life prospectively.

Intangible assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of such assets includes purchase price,
licensee fee, import duties and other taxes and any directly attributable expenditure to
bring the assets to their working condition for intended use. The Group other intangible
assets mainly include the value of computer software.

Amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted
for by changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense of intangible assets
with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

e Computer software — 6 years

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the assets
are carried when it is probable that future economic benefit deriving from the cost incurred
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
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indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced
from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as finance cost.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the
amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of
resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant
provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the year in
which the change occurs.

(i) Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income on a financial asset at amortized cost is recognized on a time proportion
bases taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR’).
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
through the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The internal rate of return on financial
asset after netting off the fee received and cost incurred approximates the effective interest
rate method of return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated taking into
account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset
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before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial
assets (regarded as ‘Stage 3’) the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
the allowance for ECLs). If the financial asset is no longer credit impaired, the company
reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Other financial charges

Penal interest or other overdue charges which are not included in EIR are recognized on
receipt basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized at the time of establishment of the right to receive income.
Usually, this is the ex-dividend date of quoted equity securities. This is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend.

Lease rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in rental income in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease
income is recognized based on contractual terms.

Other Income

The Group recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets
to which Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive
assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers. The
Group identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the
contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations
in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance
obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Net gain on fair value changes

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), as applicable. The Group recognizes
gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets measured as FVTPL and realised gains/
losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.

(k) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonuses etc., are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee provides
the related service.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays

fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts.

Provident Fund: Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The Group expenses its
contributions towards provident fund which are being deposited with the Regional Provident
Fund Commissioner.

Superannuation Fund: Contributions are made to a scheme administered by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India to discharge superannuating liabilities to the employees, a
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defined contribution plan, and the same is expensed to the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss. The Group has no liability other than its annual contribution.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s gratuity scheme is an unfunded defined benefit plan. The Group pays gratuity
to employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five years of continuous
service. The present value of obligations under such defined benefit plans are based on
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, which recognize each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rate used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having
maturity period approximating to the terms of related obligations.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service,
interest cost and re-measurements. Changes due to service cost and net interest cost /
income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net defined
benefit liability/ (asset) which comprise of actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income:

Other long term employee benefits

Benefits under compensated absences constitute other employee benefits. Employee
entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the eligible employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services provided
by the eligible employees up to the Balance Sheet date. The obligation is measured on the
basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Expenses are recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Share based payments

The Group recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments in net profit
using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payment. The estimated fair
value of awards is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance,
multiple awards with a corresponding increase to share options outstanding amount.

The cost is recognized in employee benefits expenses together with a corresponding
increase in employee stock option outstanding account in other equity, over the period in
which the service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has not expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

Service conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Non- market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions are not met.
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(I) Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or
contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease,
the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into
those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset
("ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using incremental borrowing rates.
Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising from operating leases
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in rental
income in the Consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the increase is in line with
expected general inflation, in which case lease income is recognized based on contractual
terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognize over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(m) Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted,
by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.
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Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income
for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax
payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in
respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Minimum alternative tax (*MAT’) under the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax in the statement of profit and loss.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:
o has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

o intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section IISBAA of the
income-tax Act, 1961,as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019.
Accordingly, the Group has recognized provision for income tax for the year and re-measured
its deferred tax assets basis the rate prescribed in the said section. The impact of change in
tax rate is spread over the year via an adjustment to the estimated annual effective income
tax rate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability
is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses
is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available.

Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Holding Company and its subsidiary has
recognized deferred tax asset only to the extent that they have sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and
are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized

(n) Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Group at
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising
due to the differences in the exchange rate between the transaction date and the date of
settlement of any monetary items are taken to the statement of profit and loss. Monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of the Balance Sheet and resultant gain/ loss is taken
to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

| J Consolidated Financial Statements




31st Annual Report 2021-22 PF HeroFinCorp.

(o) Dividends on ordinary shares

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders
of the parent when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is allowed when it
is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

(p) Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

(q) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds (including exchange differences relating
to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs) and are recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR).

All other borrowing costs are charged to expenses in the period in which they arise.

(r) Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held include foreign exchange forward
contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date of a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The
resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship. The Company designates certain derivatives as hedges of highly
probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). A derivative with a positive fair value is
recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised
as a financial liability.

Hedge accounting policy

The Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and
foreign currency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies hedge accounting
for transactions that meet specific criteria. At the inception of a hedge relationship, the
Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Group’s risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item
or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the Group would
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged
risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair
value or cash flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.
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Cash Flow Hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future
interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could
affect profit and loss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion
of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in
OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in Finance Cost in the statement of profit
and loss.

When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or
expense line of the statement of profit and loss. When a hedging instrument expires, is sold,
terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at that time remains in OCI
and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCI is immediately transferred to the
statement of profit and loss.

The Group’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedging relationships to be considered as
hedges as per the relevant Ind-AS. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the
hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure
that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The
Group enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument
match with the terms of the hedged item, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment
of effectiveness is performed.

(s) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share
is computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares, expect where the results are anti-dilutive.

(t) Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Group other components, and for which discrete
financial information is available. The Group is engaged in the business of financing, leasing
and related financial services. Based on the dominant source and nature of Group’s risk and
return, management has identified its business segment as its primary reporting format.

(u) Statement of Cash flows

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of
Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
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Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

g in Crore
. As at March As at March

Particulars 31,2022 31,2021
Balances with banks (current accounts) 63.49 61.92
Deposit with banks (original maturity less than three months) 811.00 1,044.95
Total 874.49 1,106.87

Note 5: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

% in Crore
. As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021
Dividend accounts (earmarked accounts) 0.49 0.53
Deposit with banks (original maturity more than three months) 124.88 15.20
Deposit with banks (earmarked) 39.15 100.40
Total 164.52 116.13
Note 6: Derivative financial instruments
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Notional Fair Value- Fair Value- Notional Fair Value- Fair Value-

amounts Assets Liablities amounts Assets Liablities
Currency derivatives:

Currency swaps 910.75 1.92 - - - -
Forwards 51.12 0.22 - - - -
Total 961.87 2.14 - - - -

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives held for risk
management purposes include hedges that either meet the hedge accounting requirements or
hedges that are economic hedges. The table above shows the fair values of derivative financial
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional
amounts indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of
either the market risk or credit risk.

Note 7: Trade receivables
T in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

(i) Receivables considered good - secured - -
(ii) Receivables considered good - unsecured 2.12 7.98
(iii) Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(iv) Receivables - credit impaired - -

2.12 7.98
Less : Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 2.12 7.98

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or
jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Refer note 39 for receivables from related parties.

Particulars
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As

at March 31, 2022

# HeroFinCorp.

4

in Crore

Particulars

Outstanding for

Less than
6 months

6
months-
1 year

1-2
years

2-3
years

More
than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables-
considered good

2.12

2.12

ii. Undisputed trade receivables-

which have significant increase
in credit risk

iii. Undisputed trade receivables-

credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant increase
in credit risk

Vi.

Disputed trade receivables-
credit impaired

As

at March 31, 2021

3

in Crore

Particulars

Outstanding for

Less than
6 months

6
months-
1 year

1-2
years

2-3
years

More
than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables-
considered good

7.98

7.98

Undisputed trade receivables-
which have significant increase
in credit risk

iii. Undisputed trade receivables-

credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant increase
in credit risk

vi.

Disputed trade receivables-
credit impaired
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Note 8: Loans

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

A. Loans - Amortised cost
Bills purchased and bills discounted 751.48 581.37
Term loans 31,898.07 26,890.70
Triparty Repo System (TREPS) 300.03 -
Loans to employees 1.23 2.86
Total- Gross (A) 32,950.81 27,474.93
Less: Impairment loss allowance on loans (1,609.77) (1,280.24)
Total - Net (A) 31,341.04 26,194.69
B. Secured/ Unsecured
(@) Secured by tangible assets 20,601.03 19,450.87
(b) Secured by other assets 1,639.06 1,265.33
(c) Unsecured 10,710.72 6,758.73
Total - Gross (B) 32,950.81 27,474.93
Less: Impairment loss allowance on loans (1,609.77) (1,280.24)
Total - Net (B) 31,341.04 26,194.69
C. Loans in India
(@) Public sector - -
(b) Others 32,950.81 27,474.93
Total - Gross (C) 32,950.81 27,474.93
Less: Impairment loss allowance on loans (1,609.77) (1,280.24)
Total - Net (C) 31,341.04 26,194.69

Loansincludes¥422.57 crore (March 31, 2021: % 375.44 crore) receivable from private companies
in which a director is a director or a member (also refer note 39).

No loans and advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMP’s and the
related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) that are repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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Note 9: Investments

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
A) In India
At fair value through profit and loss account
In equity instruments (quoted) 0.31 0.40
In equity instruments (unquoted) 6.98 6.98
In preference instruments (quoted) 9.00 9.00
In alternative investment fund (unquoted) 4.84 19.21
In commercial paper (quoted) - 646.48
In certificate of deposits (unquoted) 123.98 497.55
In treasury bills (quoted) 334.05 290.22
In government securities (quoted) 499.62 365.37
In corporate bonds (quoted) 105.04 25.55
In security receipts (unquoted) 2.79 -
In optional convertible debenrures (unquoted) 0.26 -
In mutual funds (unquoted) 86.11 56.48
Total- Gross 1,172.98 1,917.24
Less: Allowance for impairment - -
Total- Net 1,172.98 1,917.24
9.1 The Company does not have any investment outside india.
Note 10: Other financial assets
T in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Security deposits (at amortised cost) 3.98 3.10
Receivable from collection agency 82.76 101.77
Excess interest spread receivable 15.84 -
Other receivable 7.29 8.24
Total 109.87 113.11

|
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Note 11: Current tax assets (net)

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

Advance income tax [net of provision for tax ¥ 983.94 crore

(March 31, 2021: % 844.61 crore)] 116.65 42.43
Total 116.65 42.43
Note 12: Deferred tax assets (net)
A. Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss Zin Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Current tax (a)

Current year 27.03 105.98
Deferred tax (b)

Attributable to-

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (89.16) (86.53)
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and (62.13) 19.45
loss ’ ’

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the
books of account.
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13.1. Right-of-use assets

# HeroFinCorp.

T in Crore
Particulars Building
Cost
As at April 1, 2020 67.40
Additions during the year 6.22
Disposals during the year 15.30
As at March 31, 2021 58.32
Additions during the year 13.95
Disposals during the year 4.30
As at March 31, 2022 67.97
Accumulated amortization/ impairment
As at April 1, 2020 10.50
Disposals during the year 3.50
Amortization charge for the year 11.17
As at March 31, 2021 18.17
Disposals during the year 4.30
Amortization charge for the year 11.03
As at March 31, 2022 24.90
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 40.15
As at March 31, 2022 43.07
13.2. Other intangible assets and intangible assets under development

T in Crore

Intangible assets under
. Computer
Particulars software development
(Computer Software)

Cost
As at April 1, 2020 35.43 0.61
Additions during the year 9.27 0.01
Disposals during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 44.70 0.62
Additions during the year 5.68 0.18
Disposals during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 50.38 0.79
Accumulated amortization/ impairment
As at April 1, 2020 16.11 -
Disposals during the year - -
Amortization charge for the year 6.05 -
As at March 31, 2021 22.16 -
Disposals during the year - -
Amortization charge for the year 6.81 -
As at March 31, 2022 28.97 -
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 22.54 0.62
As at March 31, 2022 21.41 0.79

Note: The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the current or previous year.
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Note 14: Other non-financial assets

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Capital advances 0.41 2.75
Prepaid expenses 25.64 17.51
Balance with government authorities 10.40 5.64
Advance to vendor 0.59 -
Others 29.73 14.28
Total 66.77 40.18
Note 15: Trade payables
T in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Trade payables
(i) Total ou_tstaf\dlng dues of micro enterprises and small 2.84 0.88
enterprises; and
(ii) Total ou_tstandlng dues of crec_lltors other than micro 301.97 256.79
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 304.81 257.67
15.1 Disclosures relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are
as follows:
% in Crore
. As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
. 2.84 0.88
the end of the accounting year
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as ) )
at the end of the accounting year
(iiil) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the ) )
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at ) )
the end of the accounting year
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as - -
above are actually paid
Total 2.84 0.88

|
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# HeroFinCorp.

15.2 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information collected by the management.

As at March 31, 2022 % in Crore
Outstanding for
Particulars Lelsi::::n 1-2 years | 2-3 years M;,.;ge:::n Total
i. MSME 2.84 - - - 2.84
ii. Others 45.54 - - - 45.54
iii. Others-Unbilled 256.43 - - - 256.43
iv. Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
v. Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 T in Crore
Outstanding for
Particulars Less than More than Total
1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years
i. MSME 0.88 - - - 0.88
ii. Others 68.83 - - - 68.83
iii. Others-Unbilled 187.96 - - - 187.96
iv. Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
v. Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
Note 16: Debt securities
g in Crore

Particulars A:sg f’t ;(I)azr;h A; :’t ;(I)azr{:h
Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Secured
g{ﬁgeleg;)ble non-convertible debentures (refer note 16.1, 16.2 2,605.75 1,602.82
Unsecured
Commercial papers (refer note 16.4 and 16.5) 3,261.56 2,633.12
Total 5,867.31 4,235.94

{ Consolidated Financial Statements

|



# HeroFinCorp.

31t Annual Report 2021-22

00°'vSt'T ovZ'sTt 00°Z0v'C 0£0'vT |ejo} qns
00°0€ 000'T - - %ET'6 Zz0z ‘€0 AMenuer 610C ‘€0 Adenuer 0S¥Z/0N/S63NI
00°SC 0S¢ - - %SZ'6 1202 ‘20 Aen 8T0¢C ‘Tz leqwe2ad  SEHZONZS63INI
00°08 008 - - %0T'8 120T ‘80 AInt 8T0¢ ‘80 Aenuer LLE/0NLS63NI
00°'STT 0ST'T - - (%0T'8 YYIX) JuadJ3d 0437 120z ‘80 [H4dy 8T0¢ ‘80 Adenuer 69E€/0NZS63NI
00°CT 0zt - - (%978 ¥YIX) Iuadiad 0497 TZ0zZ ‘0T aung 910Z ‘90 Adenuer 9t T/ON/S63NI
- - 00°SC 0S¢ %SE"L 1€02 ‘20 Aen 1202 ‘20 Aen T16G/0NZS63NI
00°SC 0S¢ 00°SC 0S¢ (%06°9 YYIX) JUadiad 0197 920Z ‘6T Adenuer 1202 ‘6T Adenuer £9S/0N/S63NI
00°00T 000°T 00°00T 000T %S6'9 G20C ‘€0 1oqWiBAON  0Z0Z ‘€0 JoqWBAON  ZHS/ZONZS63NI
00°SC 0S¢ 00°SC 0S¢ (%SS"Z ¥YIX) JuUadiad 0497 G20z ‘vz Aing 0202 ‘vz AInt 00SZ0NZS63NI
- - 00°0S 00S (%459 YYIX) Jud43d 0437 G20z ‘ST [udy 1202 ‘¢T AInC LT9/0NZS63NI
- - 00°0ST 00ST %02°C + 1119L WE G20z ‘20 Aeniged Z20¢ ‘60 Aeniged 8%0/0X0083NI
- - 00°'SZ 0SL %05'9 $20Z ‘vz Jeqwimdas  T1Z0z ‘ze 4equisdaq 0£0£0X0083NI
00°0ST 00S'T 00°0ST 00ST %0€°L 20z ‘0T Jeqwisides  0z0z ‘0T Joquieidss  9ZS/0NZS63NI
- - 00°0ST 00ST (%SZ°9 YYIX) Uad4ad 0497 $20Z ‘60 3snbny 1202 ‘1T 3snbny T$9/0NZS63NI
- - 00°00¢C 0002 %SZ'9 $20Z ‘20 3snbny 120z ‘€0 3snbny £€9/0N/ZS63NI
- - 00'STC 0ST¢ %SZ'T + I1I9-1 Wg tz0oz ‘6T AInt Tz0z ‘0z AInc GZ9/0N/S63NI
00°SC 0S¢ 00°SC 0S¢ (%8E£°9 YYIX) IUddJdd 0197 v2oz ‘12 Ae 0202 ‘€0 JaqwanoN YEG/0NLS6INI
- - 00°00C 0002 %00°Z + I1!9-1 W¢g v20Z ‘0T Ael 120Z ‘0z Aew 609/0N/S63NI
00°00T 000'T 00°00T 000T %059 $20¢ ‘ST Yoden 1202 ‘6T Yoiep xE8G/0NZS63INI
- - 00°0ST 00ST %029 v20z ‘8z Aenuged  zzoz ‘8z Aenugad 999/0N/S63NI
00°00T 000'T 00°00T 000T %SLL €£20¢ ‘sz aung 020z ‘Sz aung 220/0X0083NI
00°0S€ 00S°¢ 00°0S€ 00S€ %G8, €20¢ ‘27 1udy 0202 ‘£z |udy Z6%/0N/S63NI
00°00T 000'T 00°00T 000T %SLL 20T ‘0z Jleqwieda@  6T0T ‘OC 4Joqwiaded  $8+/0N/ZS63NI
00°S8 0S8 00°S8 0S8 %0L"L 220z ‘8T 1snbny £102C ‘8T 1snbny TSEZ0NZS63NI
00°0TT 00T'T 00°'0TT 00TT %Tt'8 Zc0z ‘0z sung 6102 ‘0z aun( 89v/0N/S63NI
00°¢¢ (044 00°2¢ 0ce (%0T'6 YYIX) U3d43d 0197 2202 ‘0T Aey 6702 ‘SO Yolen $T0/0X0083NI
n SAJDN n SADN j0
Hinoty 30 12quInN Hinotty 19quInN 91ey 1saJ4dur 9jeq uondwapay 91e(q 9nssI ddDN JO NISI
T20C ‘1€ ¢eoe ‘1€ ;
yoiep je sy yolep je sy
aJoJD ul 2

1S24NjUdgap 9|qI3ISAUO0D UOU d|gewaapad patndas paoe|d Ajoiealud dn pied Ajnj Jo swJial 19T

Consolidated Financial Statements

|
\

290



# HeroFinCorp.

31t Annual Report 2021-22

1saJ23ul pue |edpulid Jo JuswAedad syl ul SjNejap ou adam aday) pajuasald pouad ayy buung £ 9T

*S19430 40 / pue s103dalip AQ paaiuelenb si siaded |eIDJWIWOD pue S94njuagap 9|qI9AU0D-UOU ON 9°9T
1e|N2JID 9Y3 Ul UdAIb se sauljpwil ay3 ulyaim ‘gozoe ‘1 Adenuer uo se buipuejsino (ISN) 2b6ueyodx3g »¥003S |euonen uo siaded

[e12JaWWo) 3y} || pa3si| sey dnodo a3 ‘6T0T ‘22 4990320 Pa3ep STT/6T102/d/d1D/SHAA/SHAA/OH/193S "ou JeindJi) 193S 03juensind  §'9T

("erd 9%€6't 01 "e'd 9%08°€ :120C

‘1€ yodey) "e'd op/€°G 03 "ed 90€ H wody Buibues 934 JUNOISIP B 1B PANSS| pue syjuow T uiylim sjqeAedad ale siaded [eipJawwo) 9T

'S9|qeAIDDa puk S1gap Y00q Jo uoniredaylodAy jo Aem Ag abuaeyd nssed-lied 3siy AQ paindas ade sadnjuagap syl €£'9T

"S3|(eAl@Ddal pue S3gep

3004 Jo uonedayjodAy jo Aem Ag abieyd nssed-ied 3siy AQ padndas ade sainjuagap 9yl UayMnd ‘6G5/0NZS6INI Sem JedA snoiaald 10) NISIx

T8'C09'T OVL'LT S/£°S09'C 045'9C |ejol puean
(81°1) (sz'1) sjuswisnipe Y13
00'0ST 00°00S‘C 00°00¢ 00S‘C %SGS'6 820t JeqwiadaQ /T 810t JeqwsdaQ /¢ «8S9/0N/S63INI
SADN SADN jo
junotly Jo 1aquinN junowy JaquinN
9jey 3sa49aul 93eq uondwopay 9jeq anss1 ddN Jo NISI

TZOT ‘T€ Yyoiew

je sy

TT0T ‘1€ Yoien
je sy

2loJd ul 2

:$24NjUagap 9|qIIIDAUOD UOU d|gewaapad padndas paoe|d Ajojealld dn pied Ajjued Jo swuaal 29T

Consolidated Financial Statements

|
\

291



31t Annual Report 2021-22 # HeroFinCorp.

Note 17: Borrowings (other than debt securities)

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

At amortised cost

Term loan from banks and financial institutions (Secured) (refer
note 17.1 and 17.2)

Term loan from banks - Foreign currency loan (Secured) (refer

18,355.17 17,431.08

note 17.6) 102.39 )
External commercial borrowing (Secured) (refer note 17.5) 859.43 200.00
Loan repayable on demand from banks (refer note 17.3)

- Cash credit (Secured) (refer note 17.3) 546.70 129.06
- Working capital demand loans (Secured) (refer note 17.3) 1,760.00 1,370.37
- Working capital demand loans (Unsecured) (refer note 17.3) 385.00 -
Additional special refinance facility from National Housing Bank

(refer note 17.4) ) 26.00
Total 22,008.69 19,156.51
Borrowing in India 21,149.26 18,956.51
Borrowing outside India 859.43 200.00
Total 22,008.69 19,156.51

17.1 Secured term loans from banks and financial institutions aggregating ¥ 18,197.43 crore
before EIR adjustment (March 31, 2021:% 17,206.47 crore) carrying interest rate ranging
from 5.13% p.a. to 8.00% p.a (March 31, 2021: 6.05% p.a.to 9.00% p.a.) are secured
by a first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of book debts and receivables.

17.2 Secured term loans from banks and financial institutions aggregating ¥ 166.50 crore
before EIR adjustment (March 31, 2021: ¥ 233.30 crore) carrying interest rate of 7.15%
p.a. (March 31, 2021: 7.15% p.a.) are secured by a first exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation of book debts and receivables.

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 18: Subordinated liabilities

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

At amortised cost
Subordinated liabilities (unsecured) in India
Redeemable non-convertible debentures-Tier II (refer note 18.1

below) 643.16 642.91
Total 643.16 642.91
Subordinated liabilities in India 643.16 642.91
Subordinated liabilities outside India - -
Total 643.16 642.91
18.1 Terms of repyament of non-convertible debentures-Tier II:
As at As at
Redemption March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ISIN of NCD Issue Date ROI
Date Number Amc_>unt Number Am(_)unt
of NCDs ™M  ofNCDs M
Crore Crore

September September

INE957N08011 15, 2015 15, 2025 9.35% 1,000 100.00 1000 100.00
August 03, August 03,
INE957N08029 5016 2026 8.98% 1,000 100.00 1000 100.00

INE957N08037 June 20, 2017 June 18, 2027 8.52% 1,000 100.00 1000 100.00
December 06, November 24,

INE957N08045 o1z 08 9.81% 1,250 125.00 1250  125.00
INESOOX08012 DOCelber 26, December28, g 500, 250 2500 250  25.00
INE957N08052 Feb"zuoazrg 05, Feb"zuggg 05 8.85% 1,000 100.00 1000  100.00
INE957N08060 Mazrgg(?“' Mazrggé”' 8.49% 250 25.00 250 25.00
INE957NOg078 December tl, December il 7 650, 450  45.00 450 45.00
INEgOOX0g020  MACh D3 Mareh 05 7850 250 2500 250 25.00
EIR adjustments (1.84) (2.09)

6,450 643.16 6,450 64291

18.2 No subordinated debts is guaranteed by directors and /or others.

18.3 During the period presented there were no defaults in the repayment of principal and
interest.

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 19: Lease liabilities

% in Crore
. As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
Lease liabilities (refer note 42) 48.48 44.37
Total 48.48 44.37

Note 20: Other financial liabilities

T in Crore

As at March As at March

Particulars 31, 2022 31, 2021

Interest accrued but not due on:

- Debt securities 113.88 110.66
- Borrowings 21.84 35.95
- Subordinated liabilities 24.86 24.86
Unclaimed dividend (refer note 20.1) 0.49 0.53
Book overdrafts 233.89 236.44

Other payables
Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment and other

. . 0.26 0.68
intangible assets

Salaries and wages payable 36.44 18.98
Security deposits 0.17 0.27
Loans pending disbursement 126.30 65.91
Margin money from customers 27.88 22.08
Others 57.20 79.22
Total 643.21 595.58

20.1 Unclaimed dividend does not include any amount outstanding as on March 31, 2022
and March 31, 2021 which are required to be credited to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

Note 21: Current tax liabilities (net)

T in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Provision for income tax - 8.60
Total - 8.60
Note 22: Provisions
g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
-Provision for gratuity (refer note 35.2) 26.94 22.34
-Provision for compensated absences (refer note 35.3) 21.12 19.35
Total 48.06 41.69

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 23: Other non-financial liabilities

T in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Unamortised interest on margin money deposits 11.52 7.34
Statutory dues payable 45.22 29.46
Advance received from customers 8.61 8.20
Total 65.35 45.00

Note 24: Equity share capital

As at As at
) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares Zin Crore shares Zin Crore
Authorised

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 30,00,00,020 300.00 15,00,00,000 150.00

Class A Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares of ¥ 550 each

Class B Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares of ¥ 550 each

1,70,36,363 937.00 - -

1,93,27,273 1,063.00 - -

33,63,63,656 2,300.00 15,00,00,000 150.00

Issued

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 12,73,06,674 127.31 12,73,06,674 127.31
12,73,06,674 127.31 12,73,06,674 127.31

Subscribed

Egi“d'tzpihares of 10 each (fully 4573 05,868  127.31  12,73,05,868 127.31

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each (partly 806 # 806 #

paid up: ¥ 5 each)
Total 12,73,06,674 127.31 12,73,06,674 127.31
# Below rounding off norms.

24.1 Reconciliation of humber of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning
and at the end of the reporting year

As at As at
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares T in Crore Shares T in Crore

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(Fully Paid up)

Opening balance 12,73,05,868 127.31 11,41,95,126 114.20
Converted into fully paid up

during the year (fully paid up) ) ) 1,31,10,742 13.11
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(partly paid up: ¥ 5 each)
Opening balance 806 # 1,795 #

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at As at
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares % in Crore Shares Zin Crore
Converted into fully paid up share ) ) (989) #

during the year ¥ 10 each

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
(partly paid up: ¥ 5.60 each)

Opening balance - - 1,31,09,753 7.34

Converted into fully paid up share
during the year ¥ 10 each

Outstanding at the end of the
year

# Below rounding off norms.

(1,31,09,753) (7.34)

127,306,674 127.31 127,306,674 127.31

24.2 During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the Holding Company has received first
and final call money of ¥ 360 per equity share on 13,109,753 shares and consequently
the Holding Company has converted 13,109,753 partly paid equity shares into fully paid
up equity shares.

24.3 Terms/ rights, preference and restriction attached to equity shares of ¥ 10 each

(i) The Holding Company has only one class of equity share having face value of ¥ 10
per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share held.

(ii) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors which is subject to approval of
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting shall be in the same proportion as the
capital paid upon such equity share.

(iii) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Holding Company after distribution of all preferential amount,
in proportion to capital paid upon such equity share.

24.4 Detail of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Name of Shareholder Number of % of Number of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding_

Equity shares

Hero MotoCorp Ltd. 5,24,31,893 41.19 5,24,31,893 41.19
Bahadur Chand Investment Pvt. Ltd. 2,58,96,764 20.34  2,58,96,764 20.34
Otter Limited 1,28,82,170 10.12 1,28,82,170 10.12
Mr. Pawan Munjal (refer note 24.5 36,08,812 2.83 36,08,812 2.83
below)

Ms. Renu Munjal (refer note 24.5 below) 40,94,737 3.22 40,94,737 3.22
Ms. Santosh Munjal (refer note 24.5 3,23,600 0.25 3,23,600 0.25
below)

Mr. Suman Kant Munjal (refer note 24.5 40,94,737 3.2 40,94,737 3.2
below)

Total Brijmohan Lall Om Parkash 1,21,21,886 9.52 1,21,21,886 9.52

(Partnership firm)

24.5 Holding shares on behalf of Brijmohan Lall Om Prakash (partnership firm).

| Nl Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 25: Other equity

# HeroFinCorp.

% in Crore
Particulars As at arch As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Securities premium
Opening balance as at reporting date 3,946.30 3,481.96
Add: Additions during the year 1.34 466.22
Less: Share issue expenses - (1.88)
Closing balance as at reporting date 3,947.64 3,946.30
Statutory reserve
Opening balance as at reporting date 265.35 251.23
Add: Transferred from retained earnings 0.42 14.12
Closing balance as at reporting date 265.77 265.35
Stock options outstanding account
Opening balance as at reporting date 26.70 20.86
Add: Charge during the year 6.09 5.84
Less: Transferred to security premium (1.34) -
Closing balance as at reporting date 31.45 26.70
General reserve
Opening balance as at reporting date 131.02 123.96
Add: Transfer from retained earning - 7.06
Closing balance as at reporting date 131.02 131.02
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Opening balance as at reporting date - -
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 0.05 (0.16)
Less: Transferred to retained earnings (0.05) 0.16
Closing balance as at reporting date - -
Cash flow hedge reserve
Opening balance as at reporting date - -
Add: Changes in fair value of FVTOCI hedge instrunments (1.74) -
Closing balance as at reporting date (1.74) -
Retained earnings
Opening balance as at reporting date 471.08 471.79
Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year (191.91) 51.62
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 0.05 (0.16)
Less: Dividend paid on equity shares (12.73) (30.99)
Less: Transfers to general reserves - (7.06)
Less: Transfers to statutory reserve (0.42) (14.12)
Closing balance as at reporting date 266.07 471.08
Total 4,640.21 4,840.45

} { Consolidated Financial Statements
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Nature of other equity:

Securities premium:

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issuance of shares. The securities premium
can be utilised as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory reserve:

Statutory reserve is used to record reserve in accordance with section 45-IC of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and in accordance with section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987. The statutory
reserves can be utilised for the purpose as specified by the RBI and NHB from time to time.

Stock options outstanding account:

Stock option outstanding account is created as required by Ind AS 102 ‘Share Based Payments’
on the Employee Stock Option Scheme operated by the company for employees of the group.
The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees under Group's
employee stock option plan. Refer note 45 for further detail of this plan.

General reserve:
Free reserve to be utilized as per provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cash flow hedge reserve

It represents the cumulative gains/ (losses) arising on revaluation of the derivative instrunments
designated as cash flow hedges through OCI.

Retained earnings:

Retained earnings is used to record profit/ (loss) for the year. This amount is utilised as per the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 26: Revenue from operations

T in Crore

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Interest on:
- Loans (at amortised cost) 4,202.29 3,829.99
- Investments (FVTPL) 24.39 5.55
- Fixed deposits 15.19 42.25
Dividend income 0.74 0.74
Profit on sale of investments 43.44 23.94
Rental income 1.73 5.84
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments under
amortised cost category 15.84 )
Net gain on fair value changes 21.05 22.66
Insurance commission 15.36 13.17
Others charges 398.63 333.94
Total 4,738.66 4,278.08
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Note 27: Other income

For the year

# HeroFinCorp.

g in Crore
For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Fees on value added services 58.64 55.34
Other income 0.36 0.10
Total 59.00 55.44
Note 28: Finance costs
g in Crore

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

- Interest on debt securities 262.13 298.41

- Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,351.83 1,350.81

- Interest on subordinated liabilities 58.12 53.52

- Interest on lease liability 3.98 4.51

- Others 2.47 3.06
Total 1,678.53 1,710.31
Note 29: Impairment on financial instruments

g in Crore

For the year

Particulars ended March

For the year

ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Impairment allowance (on loans measured at amortised
cost) 329.53 386.83
Settlement loss and bad debts written off * 1,511.28 1,030.91
Total 1,840.81 1,417.74

*Net off recoveries from bad debts written off ¥ 140.32 crore (March 31, 2021: % 26.35 crore).

Note 30: Employee benefits expenses

For the year

g in Crore
For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Salaries and wages 319.11 255.31
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 35.1) 15.84 14.74
Employee share based payment expense (refer note 45) 6.50 6.24
Gratuity expense (refer note 35.2) 6.10 5.14
Staff welfare expenses 8.90 4.18
Total 356.45 285.61

|

{ Consolidated Financial Statements



31t Annual Report 2021-22

Note 31: Other expenses

Particulars

For the year
ended March

# HeroFinCorp.

T in Crore

For the year
ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021

Rent 2.42 2.54
Rates and taxes 0.79 2.49
Insurance 9.29 7.40
Repairs and maintenance

-Building 1.97 2.63

-Vehicle 0.17 0.21
Contractual staff cost 201.30 138.70
Recruitment and training 10.98 3.39
Loan processing fee 14.56 9.23
Communication 11.08 11.03
Printing and stationery 8.16 8.87
Bank charges 34.31 39.21
Travelling and conveyance 20.37 8.90
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 2.88 3.52
Advertisement and marketing 7.17 6.80
Information technology 85.75 69.53
Loan collection charges 666.08 465.49
Ir_eergnaulnaer;gtg)orrc]))fesaonal (refer note 31.1 for auditor’s 39.95 17.01
Membership subscription - 0.05
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) 2.69 0.06
(refer note 31.2)
Miscellaneous 22.79 16.52
Total 1,142.71 813.58
31.1: Auditor’s remuneration

T in Crore

Particulars

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Audit fee 0.95 0.68
Limited review 0.33 0.14
Certification fees 0.28 0.19
Group reporting 0.07 0.14
Others 0.47 -
Out of pocket expenses 0.10 0.05
Total 2.20 1.20

|
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31.2: Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

% in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during
the year 5.73 7.02
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the
year 5.73 7.02
(c) Amount spent during the year on:
i) Construction/acquisition of any assets - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above 1.53 0.06
(d) Shortfall at the end of the year 1.16 -
(e) Total of previous years shortfall - -
(f) Reason for shortfall - -
(g) Nature of CSR activities # -
(h) Amount carried forward from previous year for setting off
in the current year 3.04 -
(i) Excess amount spend during the year carried forward to
subsequent year - 10.00
(j) The Group has spent excess amount and details of the same are as follows:
Amount Balance
. . . . Amount Balance not .
Financial Opening required to be . . carried
. spent during carried forward
Year Balance spent during forward to
the year to next year
the year next year
2020-21%* 10.00 7.02 0.06 - 3.04
2021-22~ 3.04 5.73 1.53 - (1.16)

* The Holding Company had set-off fund which was carried forward from previous year in the
current financial year, based on communication released by Ministry of Corporate affairs.

A The shortfall amounting to ¥ 1.16 crore relates to the Holding Company.
# Promoting education including skill development.

Note 32: Earning per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity
shares and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are
adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value.
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The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Net profit/ (loss) for the year ( in Crore) (A) (191.90) 51.62

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Number of equity shares issued during the year

12,73,06,674

12,73,06,674

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 12,73,06,674 12,73,06,674
Nominal value of equity share (in %) 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 12,73,06,271 12,21,85,562
the year (B)

Basic earnings per share of face value of ¥ 10 each (A)/(B) (15.07) 4.23
Weighted average number of potential dilutive equity shares (C) 12,74,48,798 12,23,37,771
Dilutive earnings per share of face value of ¥ 10 each (A)/(B+C) (15.07) 4.22
Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 12,73,06,271 12,21,85,562
the year

Add: Nurr_1ber of potential equity sI'_lare in respect of employee 1,42,527 1,52,209
stock option scheme and partly paid up shares

Weighted average number of potential dilutive equity shares 12,74,48,798 12,23,37,771

Note 33: Operating segments

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Group is engaged in the business of financing, leasing and related financial services. The Group's
activities/ business is reviewed from an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing its
product/ services as individual standalone components. Thus, the Group has only one operating
segment, and no reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments.

a) The Group wide disclosures as required by Ind AS 108 are as follows;
Information about products and services:
The Group provides a wide portfolio of other financial products including two-
wheeler loans, pre-owned car loans, loyalty personal loan, inventory funding,
loan against property, housing loan, loans to SMEs and emerging corporates etc.
The break-up of revenue from interest income and other income is provided in note 26.

b) Revenue from external customers
The entire income of the Group is generated from customers who are domiciled in India.

c) Revenue from external customer
The Group does not derives revenues, from any single customer, amounting to ten per
cent or more of Group’s revenues.
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Note 34: Investment in subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Holding Company and
its subsidiary. Group does not have any joint ventures or associates.

Net assets, i.e. total asset minus total liability

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
As % of As % of
Qmount consolidated Amount consolidated
in Crore in Crore
net assets net assets
Parent
Hero FinCorp Limited 4,837.95 101.42%  5,041.54 101.48%
Subsidiary
Hero Housing Finance Limited 432.03 9.06% 426.22 8.58%
Inter Company (500.00) (10.48%) (500.00) (10.06%)
Total 4,769.98 100.00% 4,967.76 100.00%
Share in profit and loss
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As % of As % of
;?:'g:'::e cons_olidated ?I?ng:::e cons_olidated
profit & loss profit & loss
Parent
Hero FinCorp Limited (193.99) 101.09% 70.62 136.80%
Subsidiary
Hero Housing Finance Limited 2.09 (1.09%) (19.00) (36.80%)
Total (191.90) 100.00% 51.62 100.00%

Share in other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As % of As % of
Amount ~ consolidated 5, consolidated
Xin Crore comprehensive Xin Crore comprehensive
income income
Parent
Hero FinCorp Limited (0.96) 56.96% 0.11 (68.53%)
Subsidiary
Hero Housing Finance Limited (0.73) 43.04% (0.27) 168.53%
Total (1.69) 100.00% (0.16) 100.00%

Share in total comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As % of As % of
Amount consolidated Amount consolidated
Zin Crore other . Zin Crore other .
comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent
Hero FinCorp Limited (194.95) 100.71% 70.73 137.44%
Subsidiary
Hero Housing Finance Limited 1.37 (0.71%) (19.27) (37.44%)
Total (193.59) 100.00% 51.46 100.00%

|
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Note 35: Retirement benefit plan

35.1 Defined contribution plan

The Group makes periodic contribution towards provident fund, superannuation fund
and national pension scheme which are defined contribution plans. The Group has no
obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognized
as expense towards such contributions are as follows:

Tin Crore
As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 14.24 13.36
Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund 0.86 0.72
Employer’s contribution to national pension scheme 0.74 0.66
Total 15.84 14.74

35.2 Defined benefit plan

The Group operates an unfunded gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the
benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The
same is payable on termination of service, or retirement, or death, whichever is earlier.
The benefit vests after five year of continuous service. The benefit to employees is as
per the plan rules or as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whichever is earlier.

i) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
balances for net defined benefit liability and its components:

g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 22.34 17.68
Included in statement of profit and loss account :

Current service cost 4.72 3.98

Interest expense 1.38 1.06

Acquisition Adjustment - 0.10

Benefits paid (1.49) (0.61)

4.61 4.54

Remeasurement gains/ (losses) in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from :

- demographic assumptions (0.01) (0.09)

- financial assumptions (0.01) 1.43

- experience adjustment 0.01 (1.22)
(0.01) 0.12

Other

Contributions paid by the employer - -

Balance at the end of the year 26.94 22.34

Since the liability is not funded, therefore information with regards to the plan assets
has not been furnished.
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ii) Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss:

g in Crore
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Current service cost 4.72 3.98
Net interest expense/(income) 1.38 1.06
Acquisition Adjustment - 0.10
Total 6.10 5.14
ifi) Expense recognised in other comprehensive income/ (loss):
% in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
Actuarial loss (gain)/arising from :
- demographic assumptions (0.01) (0.09)
- financial assumptions (0.01) 1.43
- experience adjustment 0.01 (1.22)
Total (0.01) 0.12

iv) Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages)
of Holding Company:

g in Crore
As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Discount rate 6.15% 6.15%
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 24.00% 24.00%

31 - 44 years 22.00% 22.00%

Above 44 years 2.00% 2.00%

. 100% of 100% of

Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Retirement age (years) 58 58

Future salary growth* 7-12% 7-12%

*The estimate of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market
etc.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages) of
Subsidiary Company:

As at March As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Discount rate 6.90% 6.45%
Withdrawal rate
Upto 30 years 10.00% 10.00%
31 to 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
Above 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
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Mortality rate 100% of 100% of
Y IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Retirement age (years) 58 years 58 years
Future salary growth* 10.00% 10.00%

* The estimate of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take account
of inflation, seniority, promotion and relevant factors such as supply and demand in
the employment market etc.

Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions

The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial
assumption, holding other assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit
obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions
that were reasonably possible at the reporting date.

T in Crore
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

vi)

vii)

Discount rate (- / + 1%) 25.53 28.54 21.12 23.72
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 28.47 25.57 23.67 21.13
Attrition rate (- / + 50%) 26.03 28.13 21.07 24.07
Mortality rate (- / + 10%) 26.94 26.95 22.34 22.34

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected
under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions
shown.

Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period

Since the scheme is managed on unfunded basis, the next year contribution is taken as
Nil (March 31, 2021 : Nil)

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years (valued
on undiscounted basis)
% in Crore

. As at March As at March
Duration (years) 31, 2022 31, 2021

35.3

311

within the next 12 months 10.81 8.71
Between 2 to 5 years 7.20 5.84
Above 5 years 10.20 20.01

As at March 31, 2022, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation
was 5 years (March 31, 2021: 5 years) for the Holding Company, 9 years (March 31,
2021: 10 years) for the Subsidiary Company.

Other long term employee benefit plan

Other long term employee benefit plans comprises compensated absences. The Group
operates compensated absences plan (earned leaves), where in every employee is
entitled to the benefit equivalent to certain leaves for every completed year of service
subject to maximum as prescribed in the policies. The same is payable during early
retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee.
The Holding Company also recognises sick leave provision, where in every employee is
entitled to the benefit equivalent to 6 days salary for every completed year of service
which is subject to maximum of 20 days accumulation of leaves. The salary for calculation
of earned leave and sick leaves are last drawn basic salary. The amount of the provision
is ¥ 21.12 crore (March 31, 2021: % 19.35 crore) as per the actuarial report.
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Note 37: Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

% in Crore
Particulars As at March Cash Others As at March

31, 2021 flows 31, 2022
Debt securities* 4,235.94 1,521.41 109.96 5,867.31
Borrowings other than debt securities 19,156.51 2,850.76 1.42 22,008.69
Subordinated liabilities 642.91 0.20 0.05 643.16
Lease Liabilities 44.37 (13.56) 17.67 48.48
Total liabilities from financing activities 24,079.73 4,358.81 129.10 28,567.64
T in Crore
Particulars As at March Cash Others As at March

31, 2020 flows 31, 2021

S

Debt securities 5,253.94 (1,163.63) 145.63 4,235.94
Borrowings other than debt securities 16,130.76 3,026.01 (0.26) 19,156.51
Subordinated liabilities 573.06 69.21 0.64 642.91
Lease Liabilities 59.02 (12.82) (1.83) 44.37

Total liabilities from financing activities 22,016.78 1,918.77 144.18 24,079.73
*Others debt securities represent discount on commercial paper amortised during the year.

Note 38: Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements

38.1 Capital commitment g in Crore
) As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2022 31, 2021
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 3.03 1.31
executed on capital account and not provided for
(net of advances paid amounting to ¥ 0.41 crore
(previous year % 2.75 crore)
(ii) Undrawn committed credit lines 772.04 332.96
Total 775.07 334.27
38.2 Contingent liability g in Crore
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
VAT matters under appeal 0.53 0.32
Income tax matters
Appeals/ Writ by the Group 298.63 211.99
Appeals by the Income tax department 0.33 0.33
Total 299.49 212.64
(a) The Group has provided bank guarantee amounting to ¥ 0.50 crore (March 31, 2021: %
0.50 crore) to National Stock Exchange for the purpose of meeting margin requirements.
(b) The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) which may
impact the contribution by the Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective
date from which the Code and its provisions would be applicable is yet to be notified
and the rules which would provide the details based on which financial impact can be
determined are yet to be framed after which the financial impact can be ascertained.
The Group will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact, if any, in the
financial result following the Code becoming effective and the related rules being framed
and notified.
38.3 The Group has made provisions as required under the applicable laws or accounting

|

standards for material foreseeable losses, if any, long term contracts.
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Note 39: Related party transactions
List of Related parties where transactions have occurred during the year:

(a) Parties in respect of which the Holding Company is an associate
Hero MotoCorp Limited
Bahadur Chand Investment Private Limited - Core Investment Company

(b) Key managerial personnel (KMP):

Mr. Pawan Munjal - Chairman

Ms. Renu Munjal - Managing Director

Mr. Abhimanyu Munjal - Joint Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Pradeep Dinodia - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sanjay Kukreja - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vivek Chand Sehgal - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shivendra Suman - Company Secretary

Mr. Jayesh Jain - Chief Financial Officer

(c) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to
exercise significant influence:-

Hero Future Energies Private Limited

Hero Investcorp Private Limited

Hero Solar Energy Private Limited

Brijmohan Lall Om Parkash (Partnership Firm)
Munjal Acme Packaging Systems Private Limited
Cosmic Kitchen Private Limited

Ather Energy Private Limited

Tessolve Semiconductor Private Limited

Hero Wind Energy Private Limited

Clean Wind Power (Anantapur) Private Limited
Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited
SR Dinodia & Co. LLP

Hero Mind Mine Institute Private limited

BML Munjal University

Motherson Auto Limited

Motherson Lease Solution Limited

Transactions with related parties during the year :

g in Crore

(a) Transaction with parties in respect of which the Holding Company is an Associate
For the year For the year
ended ended

Hero MotoCorp Limited March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Dividend received 0.01 0.01
Dividend paid 5.24 12.76
Lease rental received 1.73 5.90
Recovery of Insurance expense - 0.40
Proceeds against share issued (including share premium) - 194.38
Subvention income 8.74 5.72
Reimbursement for sale of operating lease vehicles 0.75 3.85
Bahadur Chand Investment Private Limited - Core Investment Company
Dividend paid 2.59 6.30
Proceeds against share issued (including share premium) - 96.59
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(b) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to

exercise significant influence

Hero Future Energies Private Limited
Loan given
Loan repaid

Interest received/accrued
Processing fees received

Cosmic Kitchen Private Limited
Staff welfare expense and others

Brijmohan Lall Om Prakash (Partnership firm)
Loan given

Loan repaid

Interest received/accrued

Processing fees received

Dividend paid

Hero Investcorp Private Limited

Proceeds against share issued (including share premium)
Dividend paid

Munjal Acme Packaging Systems Private Limited
Dividend paid

Ather Energy Private Limited

Loan given (including interest capitalisation)
Loan repaid

Processing fees received

Interest received/accrued

Other charges

Hero Solar Energy Private Limited

Loan given (including interest capitalisation)
Loan repaid

Processing fees received

Interest received/accrued

Motherson Lease Solution Limited
Loan given
Interest received/accrued

Tessolve Semiconductor Private Limited
Loan given

Loan repaid

Processing fees received

Interest received/accrued

|

For the year
ended

T in Crore

For the year
ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

0.19

130.00
44.47
2.60
24.97
0.02

250.00
25.00
2.50
16.38

42.50
0.03

55.00
55.00

3.38
0.41

0.15

232.50
232.50
4.94
6.75
3.09

5.27
0.86

0.49

5.27
20.30
0.75
16.23

15.00
0.15
0.44
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Hero Wind Energy Private Limited
Loan given

Loan repaid

Processing fees received

Interest received/accrued

Clean Wind Power (Anantapur) Private Limited
Loan repaid
Interest received/accrued

Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited
Loan repaid
Interest received/accrued

Motherson Auto Limited
Loan repaid
Interest received/accrued

Hero Mind Mine Institute Private limited
Employee’s training expense

SR Dinodia & Co. LLP
Professional Fee

BML Munjal University
Employee’s training expense

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

# HeroFinCorp.

T in Crore

For the year
ended
March 31, 2021

250.77

20.20

71.65

0.48

0.02

0.22

350.00
100.58
1.47
23.44

150.00
7.27

50.00
3.20

7.92
5.56

0.21

(c) Transactions with key management personnel and their relatives:

Short term employee benefits#
Post-employment benefits#
Other long-term benefits#
Dividend paid

Director sitting fee/commission
Loan given

Loan repaid

Processing fees received
Interest received/accrued

For the year

For the year

ended ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
22.38 32.93

0.30 0.92

0.34 0.62

3.83 4.95

16.89 -

0.80 1.11

# Does not include gratuity and compensated absences as these are provided based on the

Group as a whole.

|
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Outstanding balances at the year end:

(a) Parties in respect of which the Holding Company is an Associate
g in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Hero MotoCorp Limited
Amount receivable as at year end 0.06 5.86

(b) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to
exercise significant influence
g in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Ather Energy Private Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) 196.82 111.53

Hero Solar Energy Pvt Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) 225.75 -

Motherson Lease Solution Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) 42.53 -

Motherson Auto Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) - 71.65

Hero Wind Energy Private Limited
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) - 250.77

(c) Outstanding balance due to key management personnel and their relatives as at
year end:

T in Crore

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Salary and wages payable - -
Post-employment benefits# - -
Other long-term benefits# - -
Loan outstanding at the year end (receivable) - 13.14

# Does not include gratuity and compensated absences as these are provided based on the
Group as a whole.

Note 40: Capital

The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business
and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The
adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations
issued by RBI. The Group has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements
over the reported period.
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40.1 Capital management

The primary objectives of Group’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Group
complies with regulatory capital requirements as prescribed by RBI for Holding Company
i.e. 15.00% (March 31, 2021: 15.00%) and NHB for subsidiary company i.e. 15.00%
(March 31, 2021: 14.00%). The Group ensures adequate capital at all time and manages
its business in a way in which capital is protected, satisfactory business growth is ensured,
cash flow are monitored, borrowing covenants are honoured and ratings are maintained.
Regulatory capital- related information is presented as part of the RBI mandated
disclosures. The RBI norms require capital to be maintained at prescribed level. In
accordance with such norms, Tier I capital of the Group comprises of share capital, share
premium, retained earnings, general reserve, statutory reserve, employee stock options
outstanding account less deferred revenue expenditure, deferred tax assets and other
intangible assets (excluding right-of-use assets). The other component of regulatory
capital is Tier II Capital Instruments, which include subordinate debt and impairment
allowance on loans for stage 1 to the extent the same does not exceed 1.25 % of Risk
Weight Assets. There were no changes in capital management process during the period
presented.

Note 41: Events after balance sheet date

There have been no significant events after the reporting date that requires disclosure in these
consolidated financial statements.

Note 42: Leases

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 15.97 crore for the year ended March 31, 2022
(March 31, 2021: ¥ 15.36 crore) including expense of T 2.41 crore for the year ended March 31,
2022 (for year ended March 31, 2021: % 2.54 crore) relating to short tem leases. The Group
does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 36.

Note 43: Financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments by category and fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are:

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
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(b) Changes in level 3 financial assets (Valued at FVTPL)

As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Opening balance 523.74 42.61
Acquisitions during the year 428.32 492.80
Disposals during the year 888.71 24.58
Fair value gains/losses recognised in profit or loss 0.73 12.91
Gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Closing balance 64.08 523.74

(c) Valuation framework

The finance department of the Group includes personnel that performs the valuations of financial
assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO).

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market
data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities
in active markets, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument but do not
qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the
instrumentsisincludedinlevel 3. Thatis, Level 3 inputs incorporate market participants’
assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order
to bear that risk. The Group develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information
available in the circumstances.

The Group uses suitable valuation models to determine the fair value of common and simple
financial instruments, that use only observable market data and require little management
judgement and estimation.

Loans

The fair value of loan and advances are estimated by discounted cash flow models. For fixed
rate loans, the fair value represent the discounted value of the expected future cash flow. For
floating rate interest loans, the carrying amount of loans represent fair market value of loans.
Fair value is then reduced by the impairment loss allowance on loans which is already calculated
incorporating probability of default and loss given defaults.

Debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities

Fair value is estimated at portfolio level by a discounted cash flow model incorporating market
interest rates and the group’s own credit risk or based on market-observable data such as
secondary market prices for its traded debt. Further, for floating rate interest bearing borrowings,
the carrying amount of borrowings represent fair market value of borrowings.

Investments

Investment in alternate investment fund is recorded at fair value determined by third party using
discounted cash flow method. Investment in government securities, commercial paper, treasury
bills, certificate of deposits, corporate bonds etc. are fair valued at reporting date. For rest of the
investments, based on the information available from external sources, management believes
that the carrying value of the investments approximates the fair value.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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Note 44: Risk management framework
44.1 Risk profile and risk mitigation

(a) Risk management structure and Group'’s risk profile

The respective Company’s Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the risk management framework. The respective Board of directors has established
the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk
management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee of respective Companies oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the respective Companies.

44.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents, investments and other financial assets. Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s asset on finance and trade receivables from
customers; loans and investments. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the
maximum credit risk exposure.

a) Credit risk management
Financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Group splits its exposure into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on shared credit risk
characteristics, as described below in the following order:

- Secured/unsecured i.e. based on whether the loans are secured
- Nature of security i.e. the nature of the security if the loans are determined to be secured
- Nature of loan i.e. based on the nature of loan

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk
of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry. A financial asset
is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e therestructuring of a loan by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organization;

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for credit worthiness before the Group standard payment and delivery terms
and conditions are offered. The Group’s review includes external ratings, if they are available,
background verification, financial statements, income tax returns, credit agency information,
industry information, etc. Portfolio review is performed every quarter and is reviewed by the
management on quarterly basis.
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(b) Definition of default

The Group considers a financial instrument as defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired)
for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual
payments. Further in compliance with RBI circular dated November 12, 2021, financial instrument
is continued to be considered as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations till the time all the
due contractual payments are paid by the borrower.

The Group considers probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been any significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. Following indicators are incorporated:

- DPD analysis as on each reporting date

- significant changes in expected performance and behavior of the borrower including changes
in payment status of borrowers.

(c) Probability of default (PD)

Day past dues (DPD) analysis is the preliminary inputs in the determination of the term
structure of PD for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures analysed by type of product and borrowers as well as
by DPD. The Group analyses the data collected and generates estimates of the PD
of exposures and how these are expected to change as result of passage of time.
The month-on-month outstanding balances in each DPD bucket are assessed to estimate the
historic probability of default for each bucket; this probability is then combined with a macro-
economic variable to compute the final PD estimate.

(d) Exposure at default

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount (in addition to the interest
to be earned during the next year) of the financial instruments subject to the impairment
calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default
and potential early repayments too. To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Group assesses
the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation of the 12 months ECL. For Stage
2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime
of the instruments.

(e) Loss given default

Loss given default (LGD) represent estimated financial loss the Holding Company is likely to
suffer in the event of default and it is used to calculate provision requirement on EAD along with
probability of default. LGD values are assessed, reviewed and approved by the Holding Company.
These LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison to the amount expected to
be recovered or realized from any collateral held.

(f) Significant increase in credit risk

The Group continuously monitor all the assets subject to ECL in order to determine whether an
instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 months ECL or life time ECL, the Group
assesses whether there has been significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group also applies a secondary qualitative methods for triggering a significant increase in credit
risk for an asset, such as moving customer/ facilities to the watch list, or the account becoming
forborne. Regardless of the change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than one
month overdue, the credit risk is deemed to have increase significantly since initial recognition.
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g) Expected credit loss on loans

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
on collective basis. For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, date of initial
recognition, remaining term to maturity, collateral type, and other relevant factors.
For the assessment, each financial asset (after segmentation based on the nature), is then
clubbed into the following DPD cohorts:

- Current (0 DPD)
- 1-30 DPD

- 31-60 DPD

- 61-89 DPD

- >=89 DPD

The Group considers defaulted assets as those which are contractually past due 90 days, other
than those assets where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. Financial assets which are
contractually past due 30 days but less than 90 days are classified under Stage 2. An asset
migrates down the ECL stage based on the change in the risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition. If in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the loan loss provision stage
reverses to 12-months ECL from lifetime ECL.

The Group considers its historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable
data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given
default and exposure at default. These parameters are derived from the statistical models and
other historical data.

44.2.1 Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used to determine expected
credit loss

The Holding Company’s loan loss provision are made on the basis of the Holding Company’s
historical loss experience and future expected credit loss, after factoring in various macro-
economic parameters such as Consumer Prices (% change pa; av), Industrial Production (%
change pa), Real GDP, Unemployment Rate (%), Real Manufacturing, Lending Interest Rate (%)
etc. The selection of these variables was made basis statistical analysis and relevance to the
business.

The macro- economic variables were regressed using a regression model against the log-odds
of the weighted average PD’s to forecast the forward-looking PD’s with macro-economic overlay
incorporated.

Best, base and worst scenarios were created for all the variables and default rates were estimated
for all the scenarios. These default rates were then used with the same LGD and EAD to arrive
at the expected credit loss for all three cases. The three cases were then assigned weights and
a final probability-weighted expected credit loss estimate was computed.
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Macro economic indicator Scenario 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Base 4.90 5.00 4.50 4.00 4.20
SS?ZL\LTer Prices (% change Best 4.41 4.50 4.05 3.60 3.78
Worst 6.37 6.50 5.85 5.20 5.46
Base 6.50 6.20 6.80 5.50 6.70
i’;\‘;‘;‘lzt:;g)')md“‘:tion (% Best 7.15|  6.82|  7.48 6.05| 7.37
Worst 4.55 4.34 4.76 3.85 4.69
Base 1,57,723|1,65,810|1,74,422| 1,84,595|1,84,595
Real GDP Best 1,73,495/1,82,391|1,91,864| 2,03,054|2,03,054
Worst |1,10,406(1,16,067|1,22,095| 1,29,216|1,29,216
Base 9.20 9.10 8.60 8.10 7.70
Unemployment Rate (%) Best 8.28 8.19 7.74 7.29 6.93
Worst 11.96 11.83 11.18 10.53 10.01
Base 25,987 27,381| 28,770| 30,373| 34,099
Real Manufacturing Best 28,585 30,119| 31,647| 33,410| 37,509
Worst 18,191| 19,166| 20,139| 21,261| 23,869
Base 9.00 9.30 9.50 9.80 10.00
Lending Interest Rate (%) Best 8.10 8.37 8.55 8.82 9.00
Worst 11.70 12.09 12.35 12.74 13.00
Base (1.20) 5.10 5.20 5.50 13.80
Agriculture (% real change pa) Best (1.08) 5.61 5.72 6.05 15.18
Worst (1.56) 3.57 3.64 3.85 9.66
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Assets amounting to ¥ 470.43 crore (March 31, 2021: ¥ 489.32 crore) , wherein Group has
offered one time resolution plan to borrowers as per RBI Circular dated August 06, 2020 and
May 05, 2021 has a days past due (DPD) bucket of upto 30. Considering the significant increase
in credit risk, these have been included and disclosed under Stage 2 assets. The corresponding
provision on these assets, including additional provisions amounting to ¥ 71.84 crore (March 31,
2021: % 80.59 crore) have been disclosed under Stage 2 provision.

An analysis of Expected credit loss rate:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Stage 1|Stage 2|Stage 3| Total |Stage 1|Stage 2 |Stage 3| Total

Expected credit loss

ratex 0.67% |18.64% | 43.16% (4.89% | 0.50% | 16.21% | 39.92% |4.66%

* Expected credit loss rate is computed ECL divided by EAD

Note 1: New assets originated represents fresh disbursals made during the year. Classification
of new assets originated in stage 1, stage 2, and stage 3 is based on year end staging.

Note 2 : Assets originated and repaid during the year have not been disclosed in the movement
of gross carrying amount. However the loss incurred on settled cases is included in
assets repaid during the year.

Note 3: The contractual amount of financial assets that has been written off by the Group
during the year ended March 31, 2022 and that were still subject to enforcement
activity was ¥ 1,464.33 crore (March 31, 2021 % 945.94 crore)

Note 4 : The Group recognize expected credit loss (ECL) on collective basis that takes into
account comprehensive credit risk information.

Expected credit loss (ECL) has increased from X 893.41 crore to ¥ 1,280.24 crore as at March 31,
2020. Further, the same has been increased to ¥ 1,609.77 crore by March 31, 2022. Primarily
reason for increase is increase in Exposure at Default. EAD has been increased by 9.22% by the
year ended March 31, 2021 as compared to year ended March 31, 2020 and the same has been
increased by 19.93% by the year ended March 31, 2022 as compared to year ended March 31,
2021.

In addition to EAD, ECL has also increased due to increase in stage 3 assets as compared to
previous year and change in mix of stage 1 and 2 assets. Other changes which have contributed
increase in ECL is increase in the % of probability of default in current as compared to previous
year because of significant change in macro-economic overlays due to COVID-19, increase
in Loss given default on account of increase in losses determined based on historical trend,
collateral valuation etc.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, expected credit loss rate in stage 3 is increased from
39.92% to 43.16% and overall expected credit loss rate is increased from 4.66% to 4.89% as
compared to year ended March 31, 2021.

44.2.4 Impact of COVID-19

The Group has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of its assets
based on relevant internal and external factors/ information available, upto the date of approval
of these financial results. Given the dynamic and evolving nature of COVID-19, the impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process and uncertainties associated with its nature and
duration. The Group will continue to monitor any material changes of future economic conditions.

44.2.5 Collateral and other credit enhancements

The loan portfolio of the Holding Company has both secured and unsecured loans and they vary
with the type of funding. Products like loan against property, corporate loan, two wheeler loan
and pre owned car loan are all secured loans whereas products like business loan and personal
loan generally do not carry any collateral security.
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For loan against property, properties (residential, commercial, industrial, mixed use, etc.) are
generally acceptable collateral. For corporate loan there is usually a collateral basket comprising
of properties, rated securities, current assets (including stock and book debts), plant and
machinery, and deposits. For two wheeler loan and pre owned car loan, the respective vehicle
against which the loan been offered is taken as a collateral security.

The Holding Company has a pre-defined loan to value norms in the policy and the same is
disbursed to control the risk of the Holding Company. For loan against property, the loan to value
('LTV") is in the range of 50% to 75%. For corporate loan, the funding is secured by way of a
collateral basket — the overall security cover is generally maintained in the range of 1.1 times
to 3.0 times and above. For loan against shares, a minimum cover of 2.0 times is maintained.

For pre-owned car and two wheeler loan, the Holding Company maintains a loan to value range
of 75% to 90% depending upon tenure and model.

Valuation of the collateral, wherever applicable, is done by empanelled valuers who carry the
necessary experience and expertise in the area. The guidelines governing these valuation have
been clearly laid out for each collateral class. For two wheeler loan since the asset is new no
valuation is has been carried out by the Holding Company. Valuation of the collateral for pre-
owned car is done by empanelled valuers who carry the necessary experience and expertise in
the area. Credit impaired assets are revalued for assessment /provisioning purposes and distress
value is considered. The Holding Company has an in-house team of technical managers who
manage property valuation activity.

The loan portfolio of the subsidiary company generally comprises housing loan and non-housing
loan which are generally secured by land and building such as residential building, commercial
building, industrial building, etc. The Subsidiary Company is regulated by National Housing Bank
Directions (NHB Directions) and Reserve Bank of India Master Directions (RBI Master Directions)
, the LTV ratios are in line with the NHB Directions and RBI Master Directions and the internal
credit policy framework of the Subsidiary company.

44.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises as the Group has contractual financial liabilities that are required to be
serviced and redeemed as per committed timelines and in the business of lending where funds
are required for the disbursement and creation of financial assets to address the going concern
of the Group. Liquidity risk management is imperative to the Group as this allows covering
the core expenses, market investment / creation of financial assets, timely repayment of debt
commitments and continuing with its operations. The Group uses various liquidity monitoring
tools to measure and gauge the liquidity risk as per necessary guidelines stipulated by the
RBI. The Group with the help of the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), ALM policy and
Liquidity Desk, monitors the Liquidity risk and uses structural, dynamic liquidity statements
and cash flow statements as a mechanism to address this.To effectively manage the fallout of
the COVID-19 pandemic related RBI measures on its funding and liquidity, the Group has been
continuously maintaining adequate level of liquidity buffers in terms of High Quality Liquid Assets
as a safeguard against any likely disruption in the funding and market liquidity.

The Companies in the group aim to maintain the level of its cash equivalents, un-utilized borrowing
lines and cash inflow at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities over
the next one year. At March 31, 2022, the net of expected cash inflows and outflows within 12
months are ¥ 2,868.28 crore (March 31, 2021: ¥ 4,287.85 crore).
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44.3.1 Maturities of financial instruments

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities as at reporting date.

g in Crore
Oon Less than 1-5 years More than Total
demand 1 year 5 years

As at March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 63.29 811.20 - - 874.49
Sank blence ter the cosh S
Derivative financial instruments - 0.16 1.98 - 2.14
Trade receivables - 2.12 - - 2.12
Loans* - 15,285.92 15,335.77 2,412.40 33,034.09
Investments - 1,150.58 1.26 21.14 1,172.98
Other financial assets - 95.55 10.51 4,95 111.01
::::'ts““dism"“ted financial 63.29 17,510.05 15,349.52 2,438.49 35,361.35

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small - 2.84 - - 2.84
enterprises; and

- Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small
enterprises

301.97 -

301.97

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt
securities)

3,557.56 1,762.00 550.00 5,869.56

9,458.53 12,295.95 272.85 22,027.33

Subordinate liabilities - - 200.00 445.00 645.00
Lease liabilities - 9.58 29.89 9.91 49,38
Other financial liabilities - 599.50 48.15 7.76 655.41

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

13,929.98 14,335.99 1,285.52 29,551.49

Net undiscounted financial
assets/ (liabilities)

Total Commitments 775.07 - - - 775.07

63.29 3,580.07 1,013.53 1,152.97 5,809.86
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g in Crore

As at March 31, 2021 d On Less than , g years More than Total
emand 1 year 5 years

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 55.14 1,051.72 - - 1,106.87
e o ren €2 - aes - - uen
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
Trade receivables - 7.98 - - 7.98
Loans* - 12,083.99 12,418.43 3,047.89 27,550.30
Investments - 1,881.65 - 35.59 1,917.24
Other financial assets - 111.29 1.66 1.89 114.84

Total undiscounted financial

55.14 15,252.76 12,420.09 3,085.37 30,813.36
assets

T in Crore

On Less than More than

demand 1 year 1-Syears g years Total

As at March 31, 2021

Financial liabilities
Payables

- Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small - 0.88 - - 0.88
enterprises; and

- Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small
enterprises

256.79 - 256.79

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt
securities)

2,896.64 1,192.00 150.00 4,238.64
- 6,945.66 12,041.94 177.61 19,165.21

Subordinate liabilities - - 100.00 545.00 645.00
Lease liabilities - 9.29 26.94 9.09 45.32
Other financial liabilities - 576.49 20.53 6.52 603.53

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

10,685.76 13,381.41 888.22 24,955.38

Net undiscounted financial
assets/ (liabilities)

Total Commitments 334.27 - - - 334.27

* This represents contractual maturities of loans without expected credit loss and EIR
adjustments. For stage 3 assets, maturity pattern is as per RBI master directions.

55.14 4,567.00 (961.32) 2,197.15 5,857.98

44.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates etc. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within
acceptable parameters while maximising the return.

Interest rate risk

A major portion of the Group’s assets and liabilities are interest bearing - which could be either
at a fixed or a floating rate. Interest rate risk is managed by way of regular monitoring of all
interest rate bearing assets and liabilities. The same also forms part of the ALCO and ALM policy.
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The exposure of Group’s financial assets and liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

T in Crore
. . Floating rate Fixed rate
Financial assets . .
instruments instruments

March 31, 2022 7,671.63 25,279.18
March 31, 2021 8,514.46 18,960.48
Financial liabilities
March 31, 2022 20,375.10 8,144.06
March 31, 2021 18,530.52 5,504.84

The table below illustrates the impact of a 1.00% movement in interest rates on interest income
and interest expense on floating loans and floating borrowings respectively for next one year,
assuming that the changes occur at the reporting date and has been calculated based on risk
exposure outstanding as of date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the
average loans and borrowings outstanding during the year.

Impact on profit before tax ( T in Crore)

Movement in interest rates For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1.00% (105.36) (75.61)
(1.00%) 105.36 75.61

44.5 Foreign currency risk management

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk for the Group arises majorly on account of
foreign currency borrowings. The Group manages this foreign currency risk by entering into
cross currency swaps and forward contract. When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of
being as hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match with the terms of
the hedge exposure. The Group’s policy is to fully hedge its foreign currency borrowings at the
time of drawdown and remain so till repayment.

The Group holds derivative financial instruments such as cross currency interest rate swap to
mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in foreign currency and floating interest rate. The
counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. These derivative financial instruments are
valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that
are directly or indirectly observable in market place.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in X
in Crore, are as follows:

Currency As at March As at March

Foreign currency exposure 31, 2022 31, 2021
14 14

Borrowings (other than debt securities) usD 659.94 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) SGD 301.88 -
Trade Payables usD 0.42 -
Impact of hedge on the Balance Sheet:
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Foreign currency Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
exposure . amount amount . amount amount
Notional of hedging of hedging Notional of hedging of hedging
Amount . . Amount . .
instrument instrument instrument instrument
asset liability asset liability
External commercial 859 .43 1.98 _ _ _ ~
borrowing
|F°re'9” currency 102.39 0.22 0.06 - - -
oan
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on other comprehensive income arises from
foreign forward exchange contracts and foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash
flow hedges. Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the ¥ against the relevant
foreign currencies. (+)(-)5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk.

Impact on profit Impact on other
after tax comprehnsive income
For the For the For the For the

Foreign currency exposure
9 y exp vear ended year ended year ended year ended

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Borrowings (other than debt
securities) +5% - - (48.49) -
Borrowings (other than debt
securities) -5% - - 48.49 -
Trade payables +5% (0.02) - - -
Trade payables -5% 0.02 - - -

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year/ in future years.

44.6 Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Group has not given any loan or invested funds to any persons, entities (intermediaries)
with the understanding that intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group.

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Group.

The Group has not received any fund from any person, entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Group shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party.

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Funding Party.

Note 45: Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Employee Stock Options Scheme titled "ESOP Scheme 2017” in respect of holding company
and “"ESOP Scheme 2018” in respect of subsidiary company or “the Scheme” was approved
by the shareholders of the holding Company and subsidiary company through postal ballot on
June 09, 2017 and September 21, 2018 respectively. The Scheme covered 2,639,703 options of
Holding Company and 22,900,000 options of subsidiary company. The Scheme allows the issue
of options to employees of the respective companies which are convertible to one equity share
of the respective companies. As per the Scheme, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
grants the options to the employees deemed eligible. The options granted vest over a period of
4 years from the date of the grant in proportions specified in the ESOP Plan. Options may be
exercised by the employees after vesting period within 4.5 years from the date of grant in respect
of holding company and in respect of subsidiary company on each anniversary as and when the
options get vested or thereafter or occurrence of any liquidity event, whichever is earlier, subject
to maximum exercise period of 5 years from the date of vesting of such option. The fair value as
on the date of the grant of the options, representing Stock compensation charge, is expensed
over the vesting period.
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Weighted
average
Number Vesting condition |Exercise | fair value
Plan of Options| Grant date and vesting price of the
Granted period (Rs.) |options at
grant date
(Rs.)
9,62,590 July 1, 2017 495 240.60
December 1, 10% on completion
25,000 2017 of first year, 495 329.09
December 5 20% on completion
49,000 ! f d 495 329.21
/ 2017 OT seconda year,
ESOP 2017 30% on completion
93,215 |January 8, 2018 | ¢ third year and 495 327.95
December 6, | 40% on completion
30,000 2019 of fourth year 780 345.68
1,15,000 April 1, 2020 780 345.68
6,78,600 July 1, 2020 10% on completion 780 306.80
17,400 | October 1, 2020 of first year, 780 306.80
25% on completion
ESOP 20174 6,400 January 1, 2021 of second year, 780 306.80
45,000 |October 1, 2021 | 30% on completion | g4 199.52
of third year and
o .
6,000 |January 1, 2022 | 3°7 on completion | g4, 199.52
of fourth year
ESOP September 24, )
2018-Tranche 1# | +200,000 2018 10°/°0f°fri‘r§§?elfgft'°” 10 4.69
ESOP September 24 o -
30,00,000 1 | 25% on completion 10 5.34
2018-Tranche 2# 2018 of second year,
ESOP September 24, | 30% on completion
2018-Tranche 3# | >°/00,000 2018 of third year and 10 >-87
35% on completion
ESOP September 24, f fourth
2018-Tranche 4# | #2:00,000 2018 of Tourth year 10 6.33
Eg?g-Tranche e 8,50,000 July 01, 2020 10 4.84
10% on completion
ESOP of first year,
2018-Tranche 2## 21,25,000 JuIy 01, 2020 25% on completion 10 5.33
of second year,
ESOP 30% on completion
25,50,000 | July 01, 2020 | of third year and 10 5.81
2018-Tranche 3## 35% on completion
of fourth year
gg?g_Tranche wis| 2975,000 | July 01, 2020 10 6.22
ESOP December 01, o .
2018-Tranche 1A A 2,16,000 2021 10% fo;l'_] completion 10 5.45
ESOP December 01 250/0 t yealr,t_
’ © on completion
2018-Tranche 2~™ 5’40’000 2021 of second year, 10 5.95
ESOP December 01, | 30% on completion
2018-Tranche 3/~ | 648,000 2021 of third year and | 10 6.49
35% on completion
ESOP December 01,
2018-Tranche 4AA 7,56,000 5021 of fourth year 10 6.97
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June 28, 2020

# HeroFinCorp.

~ As amended by shareholders of Holding Company vide shareholders’ special resolution dated

# Approved by shareholders of Subsidiary Company dated September 21, 2018

## Amended and approved by shareholders of Subsidiary Company dated June 30, 2020

AN Amended and approved by shareholders of Subsidiary Company dated January 31, 2022

Fair value of share options granted

The fair value of options granted is estimated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model
after applying the key assumption which are tabulated below:

Inputs in to the pricing model of Holding Company

Particulars
Weighted |Weighted
ESOP 2017 | @verage | average Exercise Expected Option |Dividend| Risk-free
fair value| share price volaptilit wx| life yield interest
of option price (Rs.) y (Years) (%) |rate (%)*
(Rs.) (Rs.)
July 1, 2017 240.60 616.30| 495.00 Nil 4.5 0.26 6.58
gg;gmber L 329.09|  647.40| 495.00 38.18 4.5 0.82 6.6
Sgﬁmber > 329.21|  647.40| 495.00 38.22 4.5 0.82 6.60
JZ%”IUBary 8 327.95  647.40| 495.00 37.8 4.5 0.82 6.60
gg;gmber 6 345.68| 820.70| 780.00 38.55 4.5 1.75 6.28
April 1, 2020 345.68 820.70| 780.00 38.55 4.5 1.75 6.28
July 1, 2020 306.80 740.90| 780.00 43.40 4.5 0.32 5.20
gg;%ber L 306.80|  740.90| 780.00 43.40 4.5 0.32 5.20
Jz?)”zulary 1, 306.80|  740.90| 780.00 43.40 4.5 0.32 5.20
gg;"lber L 199.52|  550.60| 780.00 48.80 4.5 0.39 5.49
JZ%r‘zuzary 1 199.52|  550.60| 780.00 48.80 4.5 0.39 5.49
Inputs in to the pricing model of Subsidiary Company
ESOP 2017 Particulars
(For grant Weighted |Weighted
g average | average |Exercise Option |Dividend| Risk-free
date . . Expected . . .
fair value| share price o life yield interest
September f . - R volatility ** Y o, %) *
24, 2018) of option price (Rs.) (Years) (%) |rate (%)
’ (Rs.) (Rs.)
Tranche 1 4.69 11.24 10.00 35.61 3.5 Nil 7.94
Tranche 2 5.34 11.24 10.00 36.29 4.5 Nil 8.03
Tranche 3 5.87 11.24 10.00 36.09 5.5 Nil 8.09
Tranche 4 6.33 11.24 10.00 35.69 6.5 Nil 8.13
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ESOP 2017 Particulars
Weighted | Weighted
(For grant average | average |Exercise Expected Option |Dividend| Risk-free
date July 1, |fair value| share price volaptilit " life yield interest
2020) of option price (Rs.) y (Years) (%) |rate (%)*
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Tranche 1 4.84 11.46 10.00 43.4 3.5 Nil 4.81
Tranche 2 5.33 11.46 10.00 41.5 4.5 Nil 5.20
Tranche 3 5.81 11.46 10.00 40.5 5.5 Nil 5.51
Tranche 4 6.22 11.46 10.00 39.4 6.5 Nil 5.76
ESOP 2017 Particulars
(For grant Weighted | Weighted
g average | average [Exercise Option |Dividend| Risk-free
date fai I h . Expected lif ield .
December 1 air value| share price volatility** ife yie interest
2021) 7 | of option price (Rs.) (Years) (%) |rate (%)*
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Tranche 1 5.45 12.76 12.00 47.92 3.5 Nil 5.18
Tranche 2 5.95 12.76 12.00 44,95 4.5 Nil 5.53
Tranche 3 6.49 12.76 12.00 43.7 5.5 Nil 5.83
Tranche 4 6.97 12.76 12.00 42.51 6.5 Nil 6.08

*

The risk free interest rate being considered for the calculation is interest rate applicable to
the implied yield of zero coupon government securities.

** Expected volatility calculation is based on volatility of similar listed enterprises.

Movement in share options during the year of Holding Company

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Weighted Weighted
Numtl_:er of average fair Number of | 3Verage fair
Particulars options value of the options value of the
options at P options at
grant date grant date
(Rs. per (Rs. per
share) share)
(i) Outstanding at the beginning | 4, 75 519 282.79| 10,11,198 256.06
of the year
(ii) Granted during the year 51,000 199.52 8,17,400 312.27
(iii) Forfeited/ cancelled during 1,90,285 275.05 3,55,779 274.57
the year
(iv) Exercised during the year - - - -
(v) ge“;fta”d'”g atthe end of the | 3 33 534 282.79| 14,72,819 282.79
(V')y'iﬁrc'sab'e at the end of the 7,51,611 263.40|  4,47,251 258.05

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding as at year end is 8 months
(March 31, 2021: 14 months) of Holding Company.
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Movement in share options during the year of Subsidiary Company

# HeroFinCorp.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Weighted Weighted
. Number of . .
Particulars . average fair average fair
options value of the Numl_:er of value of the
. options .
options at options at
grant date grant date
(Rs. per (Rs. per
share) share)
(i) Outstanding at the beginning 1,28,15,000 5 75 57,50,000 578
of the year
(ii) Granted during the year 21,60,000 6.42 85,00,000 5.74
(iii) Forfeited/ cancelled during 4,50,000 ) 14,35,000 )
the year
(iv) Exercised during the year 24,55,000 - - -
(v) se”;fta”ding atthe end of the | 4 54 70 000 5.93 | 1,28,15,000 5.75
(V|)yEe>;errC|sabIe at the end of the 11,32,500 5.09 15,20,000 515

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding as at year end is 6.3 years
(March 31, 2021: 6.6 years) of subsidiary company.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Group has recorded an employee stock compensation

expense of ¥ 6.50 crore (March 31, 2021: % 6.24 crore in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss (refer note 30).

Note 46: Dividend paid and proposed

T in Crore
As at March As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021

Declared and paid during the year
Dividends on ordinary shares:
FinaldividendfortheyearendedMarch31,2021:31.00* pershare 12.73 30.99
(March 31, 2020: X 2.55 per share)
Dividend distribution tax on final dividend declared and paid - -
Total dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax) 12.73 30.99

After the reporting dates the following dividends were proposed by the Board of Directors subject
to the approval of the shareholders at Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the dividends have
not been recognised as liabilities.

Dividend on ordinary shares:

Proposed for approval at Annual General Meeting March 31,

2022: Nil per share (March 31, 2021: ¥ 1.00* per share) B 12.73

- 12.73

*0On April 29, 2021, the Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend on equity shares of ¥
1.00 per share for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the same was approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on September 14, 2021.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia
Chairman Managing Director Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870) (DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
New Delhi London London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(FCA : 110412) (ACS : 018339)
New Delhi New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022

Signature to notes 1 to 46 forming part of the financial statements

For Price Waterhouse LLP For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: Firm Registration Number:
301112E/E300264 001035N/N500050

Sharad Vasant Sudhir Maheshwari

Partner Partner

Membership Number: 101119 Membership Number: 081075
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022 Date: April 29, 2022
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Salient features of Financial Statements of Subsidiaries/
Joint Ventures pusuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014

Part "A”: Subsidiaries

Amount (% In Crore)

Sl No. Particulars
1 Name of Subsidiary Company FinHairgeHL?:w?’ng
2 Reporting period Marcﬁegg,egcc)lgg
3 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on last date of financial )

year in case of foreign subsidiaries

4 Share Capital 460.79
5 Reserves & Surplus (28.75)
6 Total Assets 3,060.69
7 Total Liabilities ® 3,060.69
8 Investments 196.16
9 Turnover M 311.67
10 Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation 2.09
11 Provision for Taxation -
12 Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 2.09
13 Proposed Dividend -
14 % of Shareholding 99.47%

Notes:

(i) Total liabilities are inclusive of share capital and reserves.
(ii) Turnover includes other income and other operating revenue.
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Part "B"”: Associates

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
related to Associate Companies

SI No. Particulars 2021-22
1 Name of Associate N.A.
2 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date N.A.
3 Shares of Associates held by the company on the year end

Amount of Investment in Associate N.A.
Extend of Holding %
4 Description of how there is significant influence N.A.
5 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated N.A.
6 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance N.A.
Sheet
7 Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation N.A.

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Hero FinCorp Limited

Pawan Munjal Renu Munjal Abhimanyu Munjal Pradeep Dinodia
Chairman Managing Director Jt. Managing Director & CEO Director
(DIN No.: 00004223) (DIN No.: 00012870) (DIN No.: 02822641) (DIN No.: 00027995)
New Delhi London London New Delhi
Jayesh Jain Shivendra Suman
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(FCA : 110412) (ACS : 018339)
New Delhi New Delhi

Date: April 29, 2022
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